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RESULTS

Revenues

Gross profit/(loss)
Operating loss

(Loss)/profit attributable to:

(i) Owners of the Company

(i) Non-controlling interests
Loss per share - Basic (RMB)

*

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND SUMMARY
MBRERMER

For the year ended 31 December
HE+-A=t-BiLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE ZB-N\F ZE-tf CZZ-XE CZEB-1%
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFn ARBTr ARETR ARETR

O 122,374 55,016 43,428 57,759 66,972
8/ (£8) 21,044 18,495 11,956 9,725 (5,849)
KeEEE (121,284)  (156,578) (58,999) (44,461)  (159,294)
AT EHEN

(B1B)/&5H:

() AARFBEE (139,165)  (164,403) (56,493) (57,129) (163,792
(i) IEEBES (4,358) (194) 162 737 (3,388)
SRES

—-EX(AR®) (0.2028) (0.3161) (0.1560)* (0.1756)* (0.7020)*

Prior years' loss per share was retrospectively adjusted after the e BEFEZEREBRESERS i@

capital reorganisation as discussed in the “Directors' Report”. ZRAEHBIELBHRE-
EEREE
As at 31 December
Rt=A=+-A
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Total assets

Total debt

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to:
(i) Owners of the Company
(i) Non-controlling interests

—Z-hfE —T-N\§& ZT—tF ZE-R"F =ZE-If
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARETr ARETT ARETn

BEE 465,158 477,201 312,323 367,427 227,070
BEE 169,124 177,061 9.113 11,350 13,579
BwaE 350,043 289,239 64,716 67,508 81,352
AN BB R
() XRAFMEE 106,907 175,282 239,638 294,227 140,763
(i) FEERER 8,208 12,680 7,969 5,692 4,955
THERERAOA
ZE-NEFEFR



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND SUMMARY

MBEREREE

FINANCIAL RATIOS

Gross profits margins:
(i) Overall
(i) Newspaper advertising
(iii) Marketing, consulting and printing services

(iv) Online services
(v) Sales of agricultural products
(vi) Others
Operating margins
Net margins
Return on equity ™
Return on assets @
Trade receivables turnover (days)
Trade payables turnover (days)
Gearing ratio

Notes:

m Return on equity is calculated based on loss for the year divided by

total equity.

@ Return on assets is calculated based on loss for the year divided by

total assets.
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BHENFIERER ()

BEBERE
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For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t+-HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016
“E-AE ZE-Nf ZZB-tF ZEBE-X%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTE ARETT ARETRT ARETR

17.2% 33.6% 27.7% 16.8%
45.4% 57.1% 40.9% (5.4%)
25.6% 30.7% 24.9% 26.2%
12.5% 0.5% = =
37.5% 100% = =
(99.1%) (284.7%) (135.9%) (77.0%)
(117.2%) (299.3%) (129.7%) (97.6%)
(124.7%) (87.6%) (22.8%) (18.8%)
(30.8%) (34.5%) (18.0%) (15.3%)
26 46 54 52

55 404 609 464
36.4% 37.1% 2.9% 3.1%

B &L -

2015
—E-F
RMB'000
AREFT

(8.7%)
(25.1%)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2019 (the “Review Period”), the Chinese economy maintained
an overall stable development trend. However, global economic
and trade growth were slowing down, and there have been
a growing source of volatility and risks across the world.
According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, China's
annual gross domestic product (GDP) was RMB99,086.5 billion,
which represented a year-on-year growth of 6.1% (in terms of
comparable price) and was within the expected range of 6-6.5%.
The GDP grew 6.4%, 6.2%, 6.0% and 6.0% in the first, second,
third and fourth quarter, respectively. In terms of industry sectors,
the value-added of the primary, secondary and tertiary industries
amounted to RMB7,046.7 billion, RMB38,616.5 billion and
RMB53,423.3 billion, representing year-on-year growth of 3.1%,
5.7% and 6.9%, respectively.

The changing and worrying economic environment dampened
advertisers’ confidence in 2019, which translated into correction
in China’s advertising market. In the first three quarters of 2019,
China’s advertisement market declined by 8.0%, with traditional
advertising decreasing by 11.4%.
decreased by 10.8%,

Advertising revenue on TV
and advertising length fell by 15.2%.
Advertising revenue on radio declined by 10.7%, with advertising
length decreasing by 14.7%. Advertising revenue on newspaper
and magazine decreased by 27.4% and 7.0%, respectively.
Revenue of traditional outdoor advertising decreased by 19.8%,
and advertising area decreased by 20.4%. Advertising revenue
on TVs in elevators increased by 2.8%. Advertising revenue on
posters in elevators increased by 4.5%. Advertising revenue on
videos in cinemas increased by 3.6%. Internet advertising revenue

decreased by 4.2%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEREWED N

During the Review Period, Chinese film industry, as major
component of China’s culture and entertainment industries,
maintained steady development trend. According to data from
China Film Administration, during 2019, China recorded a
box office of RMB64,266 million, representing a year-on-year
growth of 5.4%. The box office of domestically-produced films
was RMB41,175 million, representing a year-on-year growth of
8.65% and accounting for 64.07% of total box office. The total
viewership in cities reached 1,727 million, representing a slight
growth from the previous year. 9,708 new film screens were
installed in 2019, making the total screen number of 69,787.
China further solidified its global leading position in terms of the
number of film screens. Related statistics showed that China’s film
viewership increased to 1,716 million in 2018 from 440 million
in 2012, representing a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of
25.5%. Domestic box office increased to RMB64,270 million in
2019 from RMB17,070 million in 2012, representing a CAGR of
20.85%. Against the backdrop of a rapid economic development,
China’s film industry also grew quickly. In terms of box office,
China is now the world’s second largest film market, only second

to the US. Moreover, China has the most film screens in the world.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recorded revenue of RMB122.4 million from its principal business
(2018: RMB55.0 million). The gross profit was RMB21.0 million
(2018: RMB18.5 million). During the year, the gross profit margin
decreased from 33.6% in 2018 to 17.2% in 2019, principally
due to the lower gross profit margin of the sales of agricultural
products. The net loss after taxation was reduced to approximately
RMB143.5 million (2018: RMB164.6 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Newspaper Advertising

The business environment remained challenging in the print media
market as the market was hit by new online media. With the
competition from new media and the Internet, the daily circulation
and the number of printed pages of Southeast Express operated
by the Group remained unsatisfactory, resulting in a decrease of
the advertising revenue from the newspaper to RMB4.4 million for
2019 (2018: RMB7.0 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWETN

Marketing, Consulting and Printing Services

In 2019, many cities in China continued to adopt policies to
stabilize property price. Amidst such macro-operating environment
and the consequential reduction of marketing budget by property

developers.

The Group’s revenue from marketing and printing services
decreased from RMB44.3 million in 2018 to RMB28.2 million in
2019, while the gross profit margin decreased to 25.6% (2018:
30.7%).

Internet and Other Services
During the Review Period, the Group was still in the process of
market research, in order to formulate the business model of

www.dnkb.com.cn and www.duk.cn. Accordingly, the Internet

services segment has not contributed any revenue to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Tourism and integrated developments segment

Distinctive town development is one of the strategic emerging
sectors that create new economic growth momentum amid the
downward pressure on China’s economy in 2019. A new round of
large-scale distinctive town construction and investment activities
were seen in 2019. The Group has entered into a framework
agreement with the government of Yongtai County, Fuzhou City,
Fujian Province. According to the agreement, the Group intended
to establish an investment fund to support the development
of “Yongtai Kungfu Distinctive Town”, a film and cultural
entertainment project named by Yongtai government. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged in development,
construction, management and operation of commercial
activities such as tourism, sightseeing, resort, culture, sports and
entertainment. The first phase of Longmen Canyon Scenic Area
has completed most of its construction work during the year.
The first phase of “Yongtai Kungfu Distinctive Town” featuring
a 60-Chinese mu eco-friendly greenhouse farm and ecologic
forests with a total area of over 10,000 Chinese mu. The phase
will develop into a full-chain ecological production center that
integrates seed production, plantation, processing and sales of

agricultural products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWETN

To further develop our eco-agricultural business, during the year,
the Company has commenced a cooperation project in Yongfu
County, Longyan City, Fujian Province. Under this cooperation
project, qualified cultivators joined the Company's cooperatives
to form an eco-agricultural demonstration base. Cultivators
under the cooperation will be responsible for growing the
agricultural products, and the Company will be responsible for
sourcing seeds, soil, fertilizers, auxiliary materials and other
productive materials them. Moreover, the Company will provide
all-round technical guidance and latest industrial information
to cultivators under the cooperation. The Company will procure
the agricultural products that cultivators produced and sell such
products through various marketing channels. During the year,
the Company has established an 020 website, mobile app and
WeChat mini programme to promote online and offline sales of

these agricultural products.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Total revenue increased by 122.5% from RMB55.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB122.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019, primarily due to the increased revenue
from the sales of agricultural products. Revenue from the sales
of agricultural products in 2019 was RMB87.3 million (2018:
RMB2.9 million). Revenue from newspaper advertising decreased
from RMB7.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
RMB4.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Revenue
from marketing and consulting services decreased from RMB39.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB23.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019. Revenue from printing
services decreased slightly from RMB4.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to RMB4.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

RE-—TERBFMNERERER KARFE
REREREERERMKBEERIBAERR -
REZAEERR TaEkHENEEPMALXR
AAE HEERRETREE L - MAAIED
BEFKAARBREREM ARAKARR/K
FRBRT LB B BHFEEMNH-F
B ARAEBASAENEEPREHREZ TR
MIEE MG EXEM ARBKRBEES
FEMEEM YEBRSELHREHERS
Eone W ARFIFKILO204 - FHAPPK
MIs MR REZFREMOGR ERGTH
&=

Bt 7% [ R

WA
BWABRBE_Z-N\F+_A=+—H1
FEHARBSS.0EETEM2225%EHE
—E-NF+ZA=+-BLEFEMNARE
1224880 FERARHEEREMFABEA
MR —T—NF HERERMABKRA
BARBIIEEL(ZE—N\F: AR%29
BEL) BEBSBAHBEE-_T—N\F+=
A=+ —BLEFENARBIOBETREE
ECE-NFT-AZ T BLEFENARKE
AABBT - EHEERBARBWANBEE=-Z
—NF+ZA=+—BLFEHNARE3I.58
BTREBE-_T—NF+A=+—HLF
EHARK238EET - HIRIREBABEE
ZE-NFF+Z A=+ —HLEFENARKLS
BB LHRAZEEE-_T—NF+=-A=+—8
IEFEMARKI4BE T



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit increased by 13.5% from RMB18.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB21.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019. Gross profit margin decreased
from 33.6% in 2018 to 17.2% in 2019, which was primarily
attributable to the lower gross profit margin of the sales of

agricultural products.

Other income

Other income decreased by 66.7% from RMBO0.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to RMBO0.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019, mainly due to the decrease in customer
compensation income of RMBO.5 million which is an one-off item

for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses increased by 258.8% from
RMB3.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
RMB12.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2019, mainly
due to the increased selling and marketing expenses of the sales

of agricultural products.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses decreased by 28.3% from
RMB88.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
RMB63.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2019, mainly
due to (i) decrease in provision for an onerous operating lease for
the year ended 31 December 2018; and (ii) decrease in foreign
exchange loss from RMB6.3 million to foreign exchange gain of
RMB3.6 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWETN

Loss before income tax

As a result of the non-recurrence in 2019 of the one-off fair value
loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2018, but partially offset by the effect of
(a) increase in selling and marketing expenses; (b) higher finance
costs; and (c) provision for impairment on goodwill, loss before
income tax for the year ended 31 December 2019 was RMB148.6
million, representing a decrease of 9.3% as compared to loss
before income tax of RMB163.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Loss for the year

The Group recorded a net loss for the year of RMB143.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019, mainly attributable to
decrease in one-off fair value loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2018, offset by the effect of (a) increase in selling and marketing
expenses; (b) higher finance costs; and (c) provision for
impairment on goodwill. Loss for the year ended 31 December
2019 was RMB143.5 million, representing a decrease of 12.8%
as compared to loss of RMB164.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests

As a result of the above factors, loss attributable to non-
controlling interests increased from RMBO0.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to RMB4.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the above factors, loss attributable to owners of the
Company decreased from RMB164.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to RMB139.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Liquidity and capital resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total assets of
approximately RMB465.2 million (2018: RMB477.2 million) and
total borrowings of approximately RMB169.1 million (2018:
RMB177.1 million), representing a gearing ratio, defined as total
borrowings over total assets, of approximately 36.4% (2018:
37.1%).

The Group had net current liabilities of approximately RMB20.0
million (2018: net current assets of RMB17.7 million), calculated
from the current assets of approximately RMB67.7 million (2018:
RMB86.5 million) and current liabilities of approximately RMB87.7
million (2018: RMB68.8 million), representing a current ratio of
approximately 0.8 (2018: 1.3).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and bank balances
of approximately RMB10.9 million,
RMB1.1 million (2018: RMB33.9 million).

including restricted cash of
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Going concern

During year ended 31 December 2019, the Group reported a
net loss of RMB143,523,000 and had a net cash outflow from
operating activities of RMB26,269,000. As at 31 December
2019, the Group's current liabilities exceeds its current assets
by RMB20,068,000 while it had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB9,753,000. In early 2020, after the rapid
outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19 outbreak”),
a series of precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across mainland China, including
postponement of work resumption after the Chinese New Year
holiday in some regions, certain level of restrictions and controls
over the travelling of people and traffic arrangements, quarantine
of certain residents, heightening of hygiene and epidemic
prevention requirements and encouraged social distancing, etc.
Such precautionary and control measures is causing short-term
disruption to the Group's tourism and integrated developments,
whereas the Group'’s advertising and marketing related services
are also affected by the poor consumer sentiment caused by the
epidemic. If the present situation in respect of the COVID-19
outbreak continues and the restrictions and control measures are
prolonged, the Group's operation performance and cash flow may

be further negatively affected.

The above situations indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the ability of

the Group to continue as a going concern.

In order to improve the Group's financial position, the directors of
the Company have been implementing various measures as set out
in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, including the
commencement of commercial operations of projects to generate
income and operating cashflows, obtaining and negotiations of
bank facilities, alternative financing including equity or project
finance, cost-control measures, expedition in debt collection and

sales and deference of capital expenditure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Directors, after making due enquiries and considering the
basis of management’s projections described above and after
taking into account the reasonably possible changes in the
operation performance, believe there will be sufficient financial
resources available to the Group at least in the coming twelve

months to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.

Cash flows used in operating activities

For the year ended 31 December 2019, net cash used in operating
activities amounted to RMB26.3 million, primarily attributable
to the net loss for the year amounted to RMB143.5 million and
partially offset by non-cash items, which primarily included (i)
provision for impairment of goodwill amounted to RMB66.1
million; (ii) finance costs of RMB26.0 million; and (iii) depreciation

and amortisation of RMB13.6 million.

Cash flows used in investing activities
For the year ended 31 December 2019, net cash used in investing
activities amounted to RMB23.8 million, resulted primarily from

payment for property, plant and equipment of RMB29.2 million.

Cash flows generated from financing activities

For the year ended 31 December 2019, net cash generated
from financing activities amounted to RMB25.9 million, mainly
attributable to the net proceeds from issuance of convertible
bonds.

Capital expenditures

Capital expenditures incurred during the year are mainly for the
purchase or construction costs related to properties, plant and
equipment. Capital expenditures were RMB39.6 million and
RMB31.0 million for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2019, respectively.
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Trade receivables — net
The aging analysis of the Group's trade receivables based on
invoice dates is set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Trade receivables increased by 21.5% from RMB7.9 million as at
31 December 2018 to RMB9.6 million as at 31 December 2019.
Such increase was mainly attributable to more revenue generated

during the year in general and particularly near year end.

Properties held for sale

As at 31 December 2019, properties held for sale amounted to
approximately RMB25.4 million (2018: RMB24.6 million). The
properties in the PRC were received in exchange of advertising
services to real estate developers in the PRC. The Group’s
intention is to sell these properties and, accordingly, such rights
are recognised as properties held for sale upon the completion of
the advertising sales transaction if the related properties are ready

to be sold.

Management assessed the fair value less costs to sell of the
properties with reference to their market value. For the year ended
31 December 2019, the management compared the carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell of the properties and have
not made any further provision for impairment (2018: provision

for impairment of RMB4.3 million).

Trade payables

The aging analysis of the Group's trade payables based on
invoice dates is set out in Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements. Trade payables increased from approximately RMB4.6
million as at 31 December 2018 to RMB8.1 million as at 31
December 2019. Trade payables turnover days decreased from
404 days for the year ended 31 December 2018 to 55 days for
the year ended 31 December 2019 due to significant increase of

purchases in sales of agricultural products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Indebtedness
Indebtedness consists of obligations to lenders, including
commercial banks and certain related parties and companies, and

lease obligations to landlords.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group obtained
mortgage loans amounting to RMB15,470,000 to finance the
Group's acquisition of properties. Transaction costs directly
attributable to mortgage loans amounted to RMB35,000. The
mortgage loans were drawn on 27 February 2015 and a further
prepayment of RMB15,470,000 was made by the Group to
Xiamen Information Group Ltd. for the properties. The mortgage
loans are secured by the ownership rights of the properties and
the personal guarantees of Zheng Bai Ling and Zhang Hui, a
key management and the spouse of a key management of a
subsidiary of the Group respectively. Total consideration for the
properties is RMB22,164,000, of which the initial down payment
of RMB6,694,000 was paid by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2019, the mortgage loans were classified as
current liabilities due to the related loan agreements containing a
repayment on demand clause which gives the bank unconditional
right to call the loans at any time. The mortgage terms are 7 years
and are denominated in RMB. The mortgage loans are carried at
quarterly adjusted floating interest of 1.15 times the benchmark
loan interest as prescribed by the People’'s Bank of China for loans
of a similar length. The effective interest rate for the year was
7.31% (2018: 7.15%) per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group obtained a
loan amounting to RMB 1,500,000 from a third party. The balance
is unsecured, carries an interest rate at 6.0% per annum with
a term of 2 years, and is repayable on demand. The balance is
denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2019, the loan was
classified as current liabilities due to the related loan agreements
containing a repayment on demand clause which gives debtor the

unconditional right to call the loans at any time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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On 23 April 2019, the 3% per annum convertible bonds in
the principal amount of RMB215,750,000 were issued by the
Company to TopBig International Development Limited (“TopBig
International”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Zhi, the
Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, an Executive Director
and a shareholder of the Company. The convertible bond has
a term of 3 years. The effective interest rate for the period is
11.5% per annum. As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding
principal amount of the convertible bond was approximately
RMB177,309,000.

Gearing ratio, being the proportion of the Group’s total
borrowings to total assets, decreased from 37.1% for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to 36.4% for the year ended 31
December 2019.

On 12 March 2020, the Group obtained a revolving bank
borrowing facility of RMB5,900,000 that is available for
drawdown for a period from 6 April 2020 to 20 March 2021. The
amounts drawn under this facility will be repayable a year from

the date of drawdown.

The Group is in negotiation with a bank to obtain a RMB50
million long term project finance facilities to fund the Group's
working capital and capital investment for one of the Group's
tourism and integrated development projects. Such borrowing
facility is expected to be secured by the Group’s properties and
properties-held-for-sale with carrying amount of approximately
RMB23,790,000 and RMB20,421,000, respectively, as at 31
December 2019. Based on the communication with the Bank,
the Directors are confident that such borrowing facilities will be

approved by the bank by May 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Commitments

(a)

I

BEENWEDH

Operating lease commitments — as a lessee (o) REHERE-—FEREABAA
The Group leases various land and properties under non- AEERBEIIRECEHERZ HE
cancellable operating lease agreements. The operating lease BERTHWEME-TXRAR_Z—LF
commitment as at 31 December 2019 presented below T A=+ —BEEHERERTAER
represents the future aggregate minimum lease payments for BER—FMNEHEREEEHENAE L
the leases with lease terms less than one year and low value ERENRERE - BB RANN G2
leases. The remaining leases have been recorded as lease RIBIRR B s R 2RI 1658 - R THER
liabilities as at 31 December 2019 under newly adopted RZEBE-NF+ZA=+—AAKRIE
accounting standard IFRS 16 (Note 2.2). The operating lease HEBE(WFE2.2) - FTXATRZZE—N
commitment as at 31 December 2018 presented below FH+Z A=+ —B2EEHERIEER
represents the future aggregate minimum lease payments ETARECEHERE T2 HERERNR
under all non-cancellable operating leases. BB
As at 31 December
R+=HA=+—H
2019 2018
ZE-NF —N\&F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBTT
Not later than 1 year —F AT 51 5,232
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FUAERAFNUT - 3,870
51 9,102

Provision for an onerous operating lease of RMB2,902,000
as at 31 December 2018 is made for the abovementioned
operating lease commitments. Provision for the onerous
operating lease contract has been adjusted to set-off the
carrying amount of right-of-use asset upon adoption of IFRS

16 on 1 January 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

e A e A
BB mEE D AT
(b) Operating lease commitments — as a lessor (b) REHEERE-ERHEEAA
The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non- TR REEEHEN R EREHEENK
cancellable operating leases are as follows: MEWS
2019 2018
—E-NF ZTE-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTTT
Not later than 1 year —FUT 2,000 2,000
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FUAERAFUT 4,000 6,000
6,000 8,000
(c) Capital commitments (c) EBEAREIE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of RBEMRETNERBERREEBEZE
the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as REXRAZWAT:
follows:
2019 2018
ZE-AE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETF T
Property, plant and equipment W BB k&E 4,266 7,930
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Contingent liabilities

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” to determine when should
contingent liabilities be recognised, which requires significant

judgement.

A contingent liability will be disclosed when a possible obligation
has arisen, but its existence has to be confirmed by future events
outside the Group's control, or when it is not possible to calculate
the amount. Realisation of any contingent liabilities not currently
recognised or disclosed could have a material impact on the

Group's financial position.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had no material

contingent liabilities.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 257 full-time employees
(2018: 236). Total staff costs including directors’ remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2019 were RMB44.3 million (2018:
RMB46.1 million).

The remuneration of the directors is evaluated by the
remuneration committee, which also makes recommendations to
the Board. In addition, the remuneration committee reviews the
performance, and determines the remuneration structure, of the

Group's senior management.

The Company operates an employee share option scheme, the
purpose of which is to incentivise or reward eligible individuals
who provide services to the Company for their contributions and
their continuing efforts to promote the interests of the Company,
and for other purposes as the Board may approve from time to

time.
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PROSPECTS

In 2019, the world saw escalating trade tension and the slowing
down of growth in all major economies. Chinese economy is
shifting from the stage of

“rapid development” to the stage

of “quality-oriented development”. Moreover, the supply-
side structural reform was further advanced, and the economic
structure is optimized and upgraded. Economic activities were
operating within the reasonable range, creating good market
environment for industrial development. The ongoing economic
reform and supportive policies for innovation and market-oriented
competition have provided new growth momentum and eased the

downward pressure on China’s economy.

2020 will be the last year in China’s 13th five-year plan. It's also
the year that China plans to complete the building of a moderately
prosperous society and secure the decisive victory against poverty.
In the beginning of 2020, the whole country joined together to
fight the COVID-19 epidemic. As a socially-responsible company,
we responded quickly at the earliest opportunity and took various
measures to contain the spread of the virus to protect our staff
and customers and to minimize the impact of the epidemic on our

business operations.

A series of regulatory policies for the film industry were launched
in the past two years. This caused Chinese film industry to shift
from a high-growth stage to a stage where priority is given to
quality contents, right direction and good culture. Overall, Chinese
consumers’ rising demand for cultural entertainment will support
the long-term growth of film industry, but we believe the growth

mode of the industry will become more quality-oriented.

In addition, the rise of webcast and online TV dramas will
continuously add value to the film and television culture industry.
The Group will continue to identify small and medium-sized
development and investment opportunities with the view to
capitalising on its rich experience in advertising, marketing and
media industry in China and seizing the opportunities in the film
industry of Mainland China through proactively rolling out quality

productions in due course.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In support of the 13th Five-Year Plan of the state and the central
government’s plan to build 1,000 “distinctive towns” in China
by 2020 to promote the integrated development of the primary,
secondary and tertiary industries in rural areas, the Group actively
leverages its experience and resources in the advertising, film,
culture and media industries to develop integrated projects on the
theme of film or media. The Group has been seeking locations with
unique environmental elements for developing integrated projects
with industry positioning, cultural heritage, tourism features,
entertainment and community functions such as health and

wellness, so as to form synergies with existing businesses.

Supreme Glory Limited, which was acquired by the Group last
May, owned an eco-cultural tourism project located in Hebei Town,
Fangshan District, Beijing. The project, covering a measurable
usable area of approximately 4,022 Chinese mu (equivalent to
approximately 2,681,347 square meters) and with beautiful natural
sceneries, has a 50-year lease which expires in December 2058.
The Group intends to develop the project into a unique natural
and cultural scenic spot integrating media, resort, and eco-cultural

tourism.

To further consolidate the Group's integrated project development
business, broaden its revenue sources and reduce its reliance on
the print media business, the Group has entered into a framework
agreement with the government of Yongtai County, Fuzhou City,
Fujian Province. According to the agreement, the Group intended
to establish an investment fund to support the development
of “Yongtai Kungfu Distinctive Town”, a film and cultural
entertainment project named by Yongtai government. “Yongtai
Kungfu Distinctive Town" covers an area of 15.6 square kilometers.
Under this project, the Group aims to reestablish the Longchuan-
Longmen Canyon Scenic Area as a 4A scenic spot. The Group
has the 40-years’ exclusive operation right of the project covering
the development, construction, management and operation of
commercial activities such as tourism, sightseeing, resort, culture,
sports and entertainment. The first phase of the project will be

completed in 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWETN

Leveraging the Group's rich experience in marketing, distribution
management and consultancy, we are actively developing a
marketing service ecosystem. We used the outdoor advertising
screen as the portal and analyzed the advertising conversion rate
using big data technologies, in order to provide marketing services
with high precision. In the meanwhile, the Group has launched
a smart mobile app that uses blockchain technology and delivers
information, e-commerce, advertising and constancy services. We

believe this app will help us grab market opportunities.

Looking ahead, the Group will proactively explore and expand
business opportunities for investment, production, management
and content distribution of films and TV dramas. Leveraging the
Group's track record and experience in advertising, marketing and
integrated project development, the Group will continue to strive
to find suitable industry partners and investment and production
projects, and continuously promote the management of film
and television projects to capture opportunities arising from the
growing market of China’s film and television culture industry, as
well as the complementary integration between and upgrade of

online and offline activities in the era of new media.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Zhi, aged 54, is an executive Director. He is a qualified
accountant as conferred by the Ministry of Finance. Mr. Chen
was a cadre of the Fuzhou Minhou Tax Bureau from 1982 to
1989 (during which he was granted leave from 1985 to 1988
to pursue his studies at Fujian Radio and Television University),
deputy section chief of the Fuzhou Economic and Technology
Development Area Tax Bureau from 1989 to 1993, and
subsequently the section chief from 1993 to 2002. He joined our
Group in 2003 and pioneered our distinctive business model of
cooperating with newspaper partners to provide integrated print
media services to advertisers, undertook the main decision-making
role in the management of our overall operations and oversaw
the strategic development of our Group. He was appointed as
the chairman, chief executive officer and an executive Director
of our Company on 9 December 2009, resigned as the chief
executive officer of the Company on 29 January 2016 and
resigned as the chairman of the Company on 25 February
2016. On 9 October 2019, Mr. Chen Zhi was appointed as the
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Chen
has accumulated more than ten years of relevant experience
from developing the business of our Group and possesses a deep
understanding of the PRC print media and advertising industries.
Mr. Chen graduated from Fujian Radio and Television University
in 1988 with a diploma in financial economics. Mr. Chen is one
of our controlling shareholders. He is also a director of TopBig
International Development Limited (“TopBig International”). Mr.
Chen is the brother of Ms. Chen Min, a non-executive Director of

the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EENSREEERE

Mr. Yu Shi Quan, aged 44, is an executive Director and the chief
financial officer. He is a qualified accountant as conferred by the
Ministry of Finance. Mr. Yu was an accountant at Fujian Lan Tian
Tax Accounting Co., Ltd. from 1996 to 1997, the finance director
of Fujian Huanyu Investment Development Co., Ltd from 1997 to
1998 and the finance director of Fujian ShiFang Investment Co.
Ltd. (“Fujian ShiFang”) from 1998 to 2000. He joined our Group
in 2000 and was head of finance of Fujian ShiFang until 2008
when he became the head of finance of Olympia Media, and,
subsequently, vice president of finance of China TopReach Inc.
in 2009, and was appointed as Director of our Company on 20
December 2011. He graduated from Fujian Radio and Television
University in 1996 with a diploma in finance and accounting.
Mr. Yu has gained significant management experience from his
work with the overall financial operations of our Group and was
appointed as the chief financial officer of the Group on 9 June
2014,
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Wei Dong, aged 49, is a non-executive Director. He
was appointed as our Director on 1 April 2015. He is currently
served as the managing director of Xiamen Siruite Business
Consulting Co., Ltd. (EFIETSR S EEZ AR AR A F), a position
with effective since January 1 2014. From January 2010 to
October 2017, he served as the managing director of Shenzhen
China Science & Kingwin Venture Capital Co., Ltd. He served as
the deputy director of business of Shenzhen China Science &
Merchants Capital Management Group Co., Ltd., from January
2003 to December 2009. From March 1996 to December 2012,
Mr. Chen held the position as an assistant general manager of &
P B B 25 AR A A (Xiamen Huamin Packaging Co., Ltd.). From
December 2013 to November 2018, He has served as the general
manager of China Science & Kingwin Investment Management
Limited. In addition, he also had approximately six years of
experience working in the Local Taxation Bureau of Pingyu County,
Henan Province. Mr. Chen received his Bachelor’s degree from the
College of Online Education (now known as College of Continuing
Education) of the Xiamen University in China in 2006, and has
been enrolled in the Executive Master of Business Administration
programme of School of Management of the Xiamen University

since September 2009.
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EENSREEERE

Ms. Chen Min, aged 49, is a non-executive Director. She
graduated from the Faculty of Arts, Fujian Normal University with
a bachelor’s degree in arts in June 1993 and a master’'s degree
in arts specialising in contemporary Chinese drama in June 2002.
She also obtained a doctorate degree in arts specialising in
theatrical aesthetics from the Central Academy of Drama in June
2006. Ms. Chen had taken up various academic teaching posts
at the College of Chinese Language and Literature Fujian Normal
University between September 1993 and May 2007 and has been
an associate professor of drama literature at the Central Academy
of Drama since May 2007. Ms. Chen has also served as a secretary
and a member of council of the China Branch of The International
Association of Theatre Critics and a member of the expert panel
of academic degrees and graduate education of the Ministry of
Education of the PRC since May 2007. She was appointed as our
Director on 20 December 2011. Ms. Chen is the sister of Mr. Chen

Zhi, an executive Director of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Chang Ren, aged 72, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as our Director on 8 November 2010,
and is a qualified senior economist as conferred by the Fujian
Provincial Department of Personnel. Mr. Zhou was appointed as
the chairman of the Qingliu Country Party Committee in 1990.
He was engaged in the newspaper industry in the PRC and held
several positions including the deputy bureau chief and editorial
board member of Fujian Daily from 1996 to 2002, and the general
manager, senior economist and Party Committee deputy secretary
of the Fujian Daily Newspaper Group from 2002 to 2008. In
addition, Mr. Zhou was the vice chairman, and later chairman,
of the Fujian Province Newspaper Industry Association during
the same periods, before retiring in 2008. He graduated from
Fujian Provincial Party School of the CPC in 1986 with a diploma
in politics. Mr. Zhou has extensive print media experience and
expertise with particular knowledge of the Fujian newspaper
industry.

Mr. Wong Heung Ming Henry, aged 50, is an independent
non-executive Director. He was appointed as our Director on
8 November 2010. Mr. Wong took some senior positions, by
serving as the finance directors and the internal audit director,
for some multinationals, including United States and Hong Kong
listed companies engaged in fast-moving consumables, real
estates, shopping malls operation and media industry. Prior to
that, Mr. Wong had worked for two international accounting
firms, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Mr. Wong graduated from City University in Hong Kong in 1993
with a bachelor’s degree in accountancy and also obtained a
master’s degree in electronic commerce from the Open University
of Hong Kong in 2003. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants as well as a certified internal
auditor. Mr. Wong has accumulated more than 26 years in
financing, internal controls and corporate governance experience.
Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director of Raffles
Interior Limited (stock code: 1376), a company listed on the Stock

Exchange..
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EENSREEERE

Mr. Cai Jian Quan, aged 57, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as our Director on 20 December 2011.
He graduated from the Anhui University of Finance Economics
with a bachelor’s degree in financial accounting in July 1984. Mr.
Cai was a finance manager of the finance department of Shanghai
Baihuo Headquarters Watches and Glasses Branch between July
1984 and June 1992. He was the general manager of the sales
department of Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co. Ltd. between
June 1992 and June 2002. He has also been the chairman of the
board of directors of Shanghai Guantong Investment Co. Ltd.

since September 2002.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Chan Ching Yi, aged 45,

is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

is our company secretary. She

Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Ms. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy and has accumulated more than 20 years of financial
and auditing experience. She is currently the company secretary of
Xinjiang Tianye Water Saving Irrigation System Company Limited
(stock code: 840), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Ms. Chan joined our Group in August 2010.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of ShiFang Holding Limited (the
“Company”) present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the

"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the business of publishing and
advertising (the “Publishing and Advertising Businesses”) in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC”). The Group has been
focusing on restructuring its publishing and advertising businesses
by consolidating with cultural media and film media businesses in

PRC, and diversifying into tourism and integrated developments.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income on pages 97 to 98.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 and proposed that

loss for the year be retained.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development and
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are
provided in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of

this annual report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. Particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year ended
31 December 2019 are set out in note 37 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the “Financial
Highlights and Summary” section on pages 5 to 6 of this annual

report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 12
June 2020 to 17 June 2020, both days inclusive, during which
no transfer of shares will be registered. To determine eligibility
to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road

East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 11 June 2020.

CAPITAL REORGANISATION AND CHANGE OF
BOARD LOT SIZE

According to the special resolution numbered 3 as set out in the
notice of the EGM dated 1 February 2019 and as approved by
Shareholders at the EGM held on 25 February 2019, all conditions
precedent to the Capital Reorganisation have been fulfilled, the
Capital Reorganisation became effective from 9:00 a.m. (Hong
Kong time) on the 21st day (if it is not a business day in Hong
Kong, the immediately following business day in Hong Kong) after
the effective date of the Change of Domicile in Hong Kong time.
As the Change of Domicile took effect on Tuesday, 19 March 2019
(Hong Kong time), the Capital Reorganisation took effect from

9:00 a.m. (Hong Kong time) on Wednesday, 10 April 2019.

Upon the Capital Reorganisation becoming effective on 10 April
2019 (Hong Kong time), the board lot size for trading in the
Shares will be changed from 1,000 Existing Shares to 10,000 New

Shares each.
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FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Convertible Bonds Subscription

On 24 January 2019, the Company entered into the convertible
bond subscription agreement with TopBig International
Development Limited ("TopBig International”), a wholly
owned company by Mr. Chen Zhi, the Executive Director
and a shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to issue, and TopBig International
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the 3% convertible bonds
(the “Convertible Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of

HK$250,000,000 (equivalent to RMB215,750,000).

The initial conversion price of the Convertible Bonds is HK$0.24
per conversion share (equivalent to HK$0.06 per share prior to the
Capital Reorganisation), subject to adjustment. The Convertible
Bond matures at the day falling on the third anniversary of
the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the conversion
period covers the period commencing on the date of issue of the

Convertible Bonds and ending on maturity date.

Assuming full conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.24 per conversion share, the Convertible
Bonds will be convertible into up to 1,041,666,666 shares (on
the basis of consolidated shares after the Capital Reorganisation

becoming effective).
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The gross and net proceeds from the subscription was
approximately HK$250 million and HK$245 million respectively.
At the time of subscription, it was the intention of the Company
to apply the net proceeds from the subscription as to: (a)
approximately HK$104 million for repaying the principal and
accrued interest on the HK$100 million loan facility previously
granted by TopBig International; (b) approximately HK$107.1
million for early redemption of the promissory notes issued as
consideration for the Supreme Glory acquisition and the accrued
interest thereon; and (c) approximately HK$33.9 million for the
Group’s general expenses such as salaries, rental expenses and
professional fees. As at 31 December 2019, all proceeds from the

subscription were utilized as intended.

The Convertible Bonds and the new Shares to be issued upon
conversion of the Convertible Bonds shall be allotted and issued
by the Company pursuant to the specific mandate granted by the
independent shareholders of the Company to the Directors at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 8 March
2019.

Conversion of convertible bonds

Based on the conversion price of HK$0.24 per Share, 185,600,000
Shares (the “Conversion Shares”) were allotted and issued by the
Company to TopBig International on 21 May 2019 (the "Partial
Conversion").. As a result of the Partial Conversion, the issued
share capital of the Company has increased from 571,999,030
Shares to 757,599,030 Shares. The Conversion Shares rank
pari passu with all the existing Shares in issue as at the date of
allotment and among themselves in all respects. The 185,600,000
Conversion Shares represent: (a) approximately 32.45% of the
issued share capital immediately before the Partial Conversion;
and (b) approximately 24.50% of the issued share capital as

enlarged by the Partial Conversion.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the year of 2019, the Group had acquired property, plant

and equipment of approximately RMB31 million.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year of 2019 are set out in

note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association or the bye-laws of the Company (the “Articles” or the
"Bye-laws"), or the laws of the Cayman Islands or Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis

to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during

the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company has no reserve available

for distribution to the Shareholders.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations have been made by the Group

during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year of 2019, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group's five largest customers comprised approximately 21.8% of
the Group's total sales and the sales attributable to the Group's
largest customer were approximately 5.3% of the Group’s total

sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year of 2019 attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers were approximately 31.7% of
the Group’s total purchases and the purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier were approximately 8.9% of the Group's

total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any interest in

the Group's five largest suppliers and customers.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company's
subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group's establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC. During the Year, the Group has complied, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, with the relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the Group.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. Chen Zhi, Chairman and chief executive officer
(appointed as a Director on 9 December 2009)

Mr. Yu Shi Quan
(appointed on 20 December 2011)

Mr. Siuming Tsui, chief executive officer
(appointed as a Director on 6 December 2015
and resigned on 9 October 2019)

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Chen Wei Dong
(appointed on 1 April 2015)
Ms. Chen Min
(appointed on 20 December 2011)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren
(appointed on 8 November 2010)
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry
(appointed on 8 November 2010)
Mr. Cai Jian Quan
(appointed on 20 December 2011)

In accordance with the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Moreover,
the Directors appointed during the year will hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and will be

eligible for re-election.
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management

of the Group are set out on pages 27 to 32.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS'
CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of its independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhou Chang Ren, Mr. Wong
Heung Ming, Henry, and Mr. Cai Jian Quan a confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of its independent non-executive Directors

are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and the non-executive Director
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of three years, which may be terminated by not less than six
months’ notice (for executive Directors) or one month’s notice (for
non-executive Directors) in writing served by either party on the
other. Each of the independent non-executive Director has been
appointed by the Company for a term of three years and shall be
terminable by either party by giving not less than one month prior

notice in writing.

During the year, none of the Directors had a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management
members of the Group was based on their individual performance
as well as market trends and practices. In addition, each of the
executive Directors and the non-executive Directors is entitled
to a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of
the bonuses payable to all the executive Directors at the sole and
absolute discretion of the Company. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors are set out in note 39 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the
Directors) during the year ended 31 December 2019 were within

the following bands:
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN
OR DEBT SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Other than the pre-IPO share option scheme of the Company (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) adopted by written resolutions
of its shareholders on 26 February 2010 and the post-IPO share
option scheme of the Company (the “Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) adopted by the written resolutions of its shareholders
on 8 November 2010, at no time during the year of 2019 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including

debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save and except the Convertible Bonds held by TopBig
International (a wholly owned company by Mr. Chen Zhi), no
Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow

subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors held any interests in any competing business
against the Company or any of its jointly controlled entities and

subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2019.

POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by the shareholders
of the Company on 8 November 2010, the Company adopted the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. The purpose of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward to (i) any full-time
or part-time employees, executives or officers of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; (ii) any Directors (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive Directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; or (iii) any advisors,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or

any subsidiaries (each an “Eligible Person”).

The Board may, at any time within 10 years after the date of
approval of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, make an offer
to grant options to any Eligible Person. The Scheme will remain
in force for a period of 10 years commencing on 8 November
2010 up to 7 November 2020. The subscription price for shares
granted pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall be at

least the highest of:

(i)  the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock

Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;
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(i)  the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date on

which such offer is made; or

(iii)  the nominal value of a Share.

The total number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the Listing Date, i.e. 73,216,512 shares (prior to the Capital
Reorganisation), without prior approval from the shareholders
of the Company. The maximum number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted, and
yet to be exercised, under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time. The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme to each Eligible Person (including both exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit

is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In addition, if shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to a participant who is a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their associates, in any 12-month period (i) represent in
aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number of shares in issue,
and (ii) have an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares of the Company at the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5,000,000, the proposed grant of option must be approved by

the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting.
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The amount payable on acceptance of an option is RMB1.00. The
exercise period of any option granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall not be longer than 10 years from the date
of grant of the relevant option. There is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before the exercise of the option

except otherwise imposed by the Board.

Up to 31 December 2019, no share option had been granted
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. As at the date of this
report, the number of shares available under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme is 18,304,128 Shares (as adjusted by the Capital
Reorganisation), representing approximately 2.4% of the total

number of shares of the Company in issue.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS SUBSCRIPTION

On 24 January 2019, the Company entered into the convertible
bond subscription agreement with TopBig International
Development Limited ("TopBig International”), a wholly
owned company by Mr. Chen Zhi, the Executive Director
and a shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to issue, and TopBig International
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the 3% convertible bonds
(the “Convertible Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of

HK$250,000,000 (equivalent to RMB215,750,000).

The initial conversion price of the Convertible Bonds is HK$0.24
per conversion share (equivalent to HK$0.06 per share prior to the
Capital Reorganisation), subject to adjustment. The Convertible
Bond matures at the day falling on the third anniversary of
the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the conversion
period covers the period commencing on the date of issue of the

Convertible Bonds and ending on maturity date.

Assuming full conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.24 per conversion share, the Convertible
Bonds will be convertible into up to 1,041,666,666 shares (on
the basis of consolidated shares after the Capital Reorganisation

becoming effective).
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The Convertible Bonds and the new Shares to be issued upon
conversion of the Convertible Bonds (The “Conversion Shares”)
shall be allotted and issued by the Company pursuant to the
specific mandate granted by the independent shareholders of the
Company to the Directors at an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 8 March 2019.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the directors in the share capital and underlying shares (the
“Share(s)”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers, were set out as follows:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEHRE

AR ES R AT MR EFBEEREE T EITL
A (TR RG] SEARAREEBEY
BRRRARAAE_Z-NAF=ZANARITZR
REHIAEG EMESFR L 255X % K 2%

7o

St

EERKROKREHERKROVER KR
B

R-E-AFE+-_A=1t—B BFERAQT
s HAREOEE (T ERFSHRPEKAEXV
) RARBERS ([BRH]) R R CEN
BRIEEHFAEEHEIEAREAFTEDN
EEf RE EMBITAZERETESRRS
HIZ T RIE AE AR R KRB R AT RO M 2 JO%
BEIIMT:

(i) Long position in the Company (i) REARNHER

Approximate
Number of percentage of
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EEnA B REME BROHBE EEEPESWL
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Notes:

(1) Mr. Chen Zhi (an executive director of the Company)
was deemed to be interested in 1,083,265,340 Shares
and underlying Shares, comprising (i) 1,758,164 Shares
directly held by him; (ii) 225,440,510 Shares held by TopBig
International Development Limited (“TopBig International”),
a controlled corporation which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen
Zhi; and (iii) 856,066,666 underlying Shares attributable to
the conversion right attaching to convertible bonds issued by
the Company held by TopBig International.

(2) The percentage interests are calculated on the basis of
757,599,030 issued Shares of the Company as at 31
December 2019.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

GES

() ARARTEFTHELEHEBAR
1,083,265,3400& A% 15 R ABRARR (D A
Hm BENBEEEFEMN,758,164
PR (N E2EBEANZIEFEE
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B 7 %5 42 4 FI| FE 15856,066,6660% 15 &
B 1m
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Long positions in Shares: REBROHER:
Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interest
EEpg B REME ROBE HERBNEIHL
TopBig International Beneficial Owner (Note 1) 1,081,507,176 142.75%
A EER EmfAE (M)
Shi Jianxiang Beneficial Owner 46,712,500 6.17%
h R EnfAE
Chen Rong Interest of controlled 39,335,004 5.19%

corporation (Note 2)

BRA& REZEHEENER (H5E2)
Happy Day Development Ltd. Beneficial owner (Note 2) 39,335,004 5.19%

Happy Day Development Ltd.
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Notes:

(1) TopBig International is a controlled corporation wholly-owned by Mr.
Chen Zhi, an executive Director. TopBig International was deemed
to be interested in 1,081,507,176 Shares and underlying Shares,
comprising (i) 225,440,510 Shares held by TopBig International; and
(i) 856,066,666 underlying Shares attributable to the conversion
right attaching to convertible bonds issued by the Company held by

TopBig International..

(2)  Based on disclosure of interest filings, Happy Day Development Ltd.

is a controlled corporation wholly-owned by Chen Rong.

(3)  The percentage interests are calculated on the basis of 757,599,030
issued Shares of the Company as at 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of
any other person (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO as at 31 December 2019.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into the transactions set out below
which will be regarded as continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules and subject to the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Unless otherwise defined,
capitalised terms below has the same meanings as those defined

in the Prospectus.
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The Structure Contracts

Background

Fuzhou ShiFangCe Culture Media Co., Ltd. (“Original WFOE"),
which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company prior
to 24 December 2015, entered into (a) structured contracts
(the “Internet Structured Contracts”) to enable the Group to
capture the economic benefits of and obtain the effective control
over Beijing BaiChuanDuKe Science and Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Internet Opco” or “Beijing BaiChuanDuKe") and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Internet Opco Group”); and (b) structured
contracts (the “Publishing Structured Contracts”) to enable
the Group to capture the economic benefits of and obtain the
effective control over Beijing HongXinTu Culture Communication
Co., Ltd ("Publishing Opco” or “Beijing HongXinTu"”) and its

subsidiaries (collectively, the “Publishing Opco Group”).

Pursuant to the Catalogue of Industries for Guiding Foreign
Investment jointly promulgated by the National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC and the Ministry of Commerce
of the PRC, foreign investors are (i) prohibited from investing in
news websites and online publication services; and (ii) restricted
from investing in more than 50% controlling stake in value-
added telecommunication and printing of publications. At the
time of the entering into of the Internet Structured Contracts
and the Publishing Structured Contracts, the Company could
not directly acquire the equity interest in Internet Opco and the
controlling equity interest in Publishing Opco. Therefore, the
Company entered into the Internet Structured Contracts and the
Publishing Structured Contracts to capture the economic benefits
of and obtain the effective control over the Internet Opco and the

Publishing Opco.
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On 17 December 2015, in anticipation of the imminent disposal
of Original WFOE by the Group to an independent third party,
the Internet Structured Contracts were novated from Original
WFOE to another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Fuzhou DingCe Culture Communication Co. Ltd. (“New WFOE" or
“Fuzhou DingCe"”). With the disposal by the Group of its equity
interests in Original WFOE, the Group ceased to be interested in
the Publishing Structured Contracts or the Publishing Opco Group.
With the novation of the Internet Structured Contracts to New
WFQOE, the Group continues to consolidate the financial results of
the Internet Opco Group through the contractual arrangements

under the Internet Structured Contracts.

Internet Opco and Internet Opco Shareholders

Internet Opco is a limited liability company established under
the laws of the PRC with a registered capital of RMB1 million
and principally engaged in value-added telecommunication
business, news websites, online publication services and printing
of publications. Internet Opco Group holds a Permit for Internet
Publication (BB 43 R FF ] 2% ) , an Operation Permit for Value-
added Telecommunication Business (12 EEZ ¥ F L&Al &)
and an Operation Permit for News Publication Printing ( ¥7 & i i
) ED I 48 & 7F 7] 8

The registered capital of Internet Opco is registered as to 60%
in the name of Zheng Bo Ling (“Zheng”) and 40% in the name
of Xu Kai Ning (“Xu”, and together with Zheng, collectively the

“Internet Opco Shareholders”).
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Reasons for the entering into of the Internet Structured
Contracts

The principal reasons for the entering into of the Internet
Structured Contracts were (a) to establish a contractual position
which allows the economic benefits of the businesses and
operations of the Internet Opco Group to flow to the Group; (b)
through the control of the right of nomination of directors of
Internet Opco, to monitor, supervise and effectively control the
business, operations and financial policies of the Internet Opco
Group which in turn ensure due implementation of the Internet
Structured Contracts; (c) to prevent any possible leakage of assets
to the Internet Opco Shareholders; and (d) to enable the Group to
acquire the equity interest of the Internet Opco at an agreed price,
which was fixed as a matter of relatively nominal sums and being

the lowest prices permissible under PRC law.

Save for the foreign investment restrictions described above, the
contractual arrangements under the Internet Structured Contracts

are not related to any other regulations or requirements.

Key terms of the Internet Structured Contracts
In the summary table below, we set out the current status and the

key terms of the Internet Structured Contracts:

Date: 17 December 2015
—E-—AF+-A++tH

Loan Agreement

EXiHE SEE

AIVEBARBENNER

RIMEMBERBANNEREH ()M —(E
B EERRALELATEERBRLEE
E’J%@?’FU BARAREE : (b)iF B B B
MEBELREENREAE R ERNE
i%‘lﬁﬁﬁp,ﬁ%@ﬂﬁjﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁ*‘%@&ﬁﬁ“
BE - EMERZRETEBMBERBESLD: (O
B3 LE B & E R 8L ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁwﬂgkL\jﬂx
REOBEI - R (d)E A& B ] 1% 17 e (B 4% (3248
HERBREE 'Eﬂqﬂiﬂi—l—/mﬁlﬁﬁfﬁﬁfﬁ
R)BADBEEERAAMRME-

,\/T\

B L SR BRI EMERBE O TH
BRI R PRI b AR 0] AR E RS o

EBRRAERBENNEERN
TRMIEBAEEBESOBE MR R EZE
g

Parties: New Wfoe (as lender), Zheng and Xu (as borrowers)

RIRIT A EBELE (ERERA)

B RFF (EREFRA)

Loan sum: RMB600,000 (for Zheng) and RMB400,000 (for Xu)
B % AR¥600,0007T (#) & A R#400,0007T (5F)

Term: 10 years, automatically renewable for successive periods of 5 years unless terminated

by notice by New Wfoe
FH:
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Equity Pledge
Agreement

REE RIS

Voting Right Proxy
Agreement

BRERRRZEHS
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No early repayment: Each of Zheng and Xu is not permitted to repay any loan without prior
written consent of New Wfoe.
TRREER BRAATESERLTIEBECEEFLEARE TEEEMER-

Date: 17 December 2015
HH: —hAF+=ZA++tHR

Parties: Zheng and Xu (as pledgors), New Wfoe (as pledgee), Internet Opco
07 BRF (FBERA)  FABBALE (FAEAA) ERELEENT

Pledged assets: 60% equity interest in Internet Opco (by Zheng), 40% equity interest in
Internet Opco (by Xu)
BEREE BBMBLELNF0%KRE (REZER) BHALEDFI0%KRE (RFTFEMR)

Guaranteed obligations: To guarantee the repayment of the loans under the Loan Agreement

and the payment of the service fees under the Service Agreement.

BEREM: EREEEFHBZE THERRINRBHE TORBE -

Dividends: Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement, New Wfoe is entitled to all of the
benefits arising from the pledged equity interests including dividends.
BB REREER RS FTIBEECEARNSMECERREEEANN S (BRERE) -

Date: 17 December 2015
HH: —hRF+ZA++tH

Parties: Zheng and Xu (as appointers), New Wfoe (as appointee), Internet Opco
AR BREF(EREZEAN) FINEBERE (EREEREAN) EHBEEERT

THERERAF
ZE-NFER
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Exclusive Purchase
Option Agreement
BRREREEGS

Service Agreement

BR %% 165

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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Power granted: Each of Zheng and Xu granted to New Wfoe and its designee(s) the power to
exercise all relevant voting rights in Internet Opco including but not limited to those relating
to: (i) the amendment of company constitution; (ii) the appointment, election or dismissal
of the directors, supervisors or senior management; (iii) the transfer or disposal of all or part
of the equity interest in Internet Opco; (iv) the increase or reduction of capital, other capital
reorganization, dissolution or liquidation of Internet Opco: and (v) the right to inspect all
documents and information of Internet Opco.

XN BRHFER I”Eﬂ%ﬁﬁl\ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁ%?ﬁtﬂﬁﬁlﬂ’éi EI/NEC] ﬁ*ﬁ*@ R ES
BOES BRETRNENTEBEESE  ((MEFTRAER: (n)é& EENBFRER B
FAERERE: (NEEHNEELTHMPELER Tﬁﬁﬁﬁ“%’ Hﬂ& ; (iv)ibﬂié\b@zﬁﬂé wmeE
NAMER  HibRAER BEFR: RVEREBRBEERTMAEX M RERNER -

Restriction on equity transfer: None of Zheng nor Xu may transfer all or any part of their
equity interest in Internet Opco without the prior written consent of New Wfoe.
BREEZERT: BRFAITEERCHIABECEXFAENRS TEERRSENEBBLE
N HY & BB Sk A ] 3R o AR o

Date: 17 December 2015
HEf: —hRF+-A++tH

Parties: Zheng and Xu (as grantors), New Wfoe (as grantee), Internet Opco

IR R (EREEAN) HINBBELE (ERARA) EMEZERQR

Option: Each of Zheng and Xu irrevocably granted to New Wfoe or its designee(s) an
exclusive option to purchase, at any time if and when permitted under PRC laws, all or part
of their equity interests in Internet Opco at the agreed price, being the higher of (i) RMB1
million; and (ii) the lowest price permissible under PRC laws.

BEE ERFSETARLEMAMAIIEBECENAEREREBFEZBERE  URNH
BOEEAFNEMKREANEBEER (BOARKIEST: RPBEEETATNREER
MEFNESE)BERSREBBLER AN DI AR E D AME -

Date: 17 December 2015
HH: —hRF+ZA++tH

Parties: New Wfoe (as consultant) and Internet Opco (as appointer)

R I EBELE (FRER) RERREELNR (FREREAN)
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Term: 10 years, automatically renewable for successive periods of 5 years unless terminated
by notice by New Wfoe
FH0F RIFFRFIMNABECERHBARLE TRIESHERERSF

Scope of services: New Wfoe agreed to provide to Internet Opco consulting services including
(i) market research; (ii) business development and market consultation; (iii) consulting services
in respect of labor matters; (iv) construction and maintenance of information networks and
network security; (v) technical support for software and technology; and (vi) other services in
relation to its business operations.

RBEE: FTHINABECXRAEMEBMELENRRMBARYE  BFEOTHHRE ()EKE
EEMS®ZR: (iVBASBOBARYE: (VERXLGEEEMBERLRBRLE D (VT RBHR
itk RVyEBEBMBLERREBL LN HMRE -

Service fees: The service fees are according to the nature of the service content and time

spent based on market price.

REE: REBEZRREARTEERMERBKRMEFTE-

Unwinding of the Structured Contracts

The Internet Structured Contract has not been unwound up
to the date of this report. The Company does not intend to
unwind any Internet Structured Contract unless and until the
foreign investment restriction relating to ownership of the equity
interest in Internet Opcos is lifted. When the foreign investment
restriction is lifted, the Company intends to exercise its exclusive
purchase right under the Exclusive Purchase Option Agreement
to acquire the entire equity interest in Internet Opco, so that
the Company can control the Internet Opco Group through the
direct shareholding relationship rather than through the Internet

Structured Contracts.

BHERBEYN
BEARSBEH BEBARES QL REH
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RARNIIERERFREE STARQEE
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Accounting policies and financial information

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
information of the Company, its subsidiaries, and structured entity
where the Company is deemed the primary beneficiary. Fuzhou
DingCe (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
the Internet Structured Contracts with Beijing BaiChuanDuKe,
whereby Fuzhou DingCe provides consulting services to Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe and is entitled to (1) receive a substantial portion
of the economic benefits from Beijing BaiChuanDuKe; (2) exercise
effective control over Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, and (3) have an
exclusive option to purchase all or part of the equity interests
in Beijing BaiChuanDuKe when and to the extent permitted by
the PRC laws. By virtue of the contractual arrangements under
the Internet Structured Contracts, Beijing BaiChuanDuKe is a
structured entity and deemed as a subsidiary of the Company
under the requirements of IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial

statements”.

When assessing whether to combine a structured entity, the
Group evaluates a range of factors, including whether (1) the
activities of the structured entity are being conducted on behalf
of the Group according to its specific business needs so that the
Group obtains the benefits from the structured entity’s operations,
(2) the Group has decision-making powers to obtain the majority
of the benefits, (3) the Group obtains the majority of the benefits
of the activities of the structured entity, and (4) the Group retains
the majority of the residual ownership risks related to the assets
in order to obtain the benefits from its activities. The Group
consolidates a structured entity if an assessment of the relevant
factors indicates that it controls the structured entity. Based on the
contractual arrangements under the Internet Structured Contracts,
the Company consolidated the results, assets and liabilities of
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe in the consolidated financial statements of

the Group.
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PRC laws strictly prohibits foreign investment in, and ownership
of, companies engaging in news websites and online publication
services, and place significant restrictions on foreign investment
in, and ownership of, companies engaging in the value-added
telecommunication business (Chinese parties as controlling
shareholders) and printing of publications (Chinese parties as
controlling shareholders). The Company is considered as a foreign-
invested enterprise, and is required to comply with the PRC laws
and regulations applicable to foreign-invested enterprises. Due
to such restrictions, the Company are not permitted to have
and does not have direct ownership of any interest in Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe as Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, together with its
subsidiaries, holds a Permit for Internet Publication ( & B 48 - iR &F

A] 78 ), an Operation Permit for Value-added Telecommunication

Business (2B B {5 £ B E Tl &
News Publication Printing ( 7 & i 4 ED ol 48 & 2 7] %) .

the Company conducts the above operations in China principally

) and an Operation Permit for

Instead,

through contractual arrangements among its subsidiary Fuzhou
DingCe on the one hand, and Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and its
shareholders, on the other. These contractual arrangements permit
the financial results of Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to be consolidated
with and effectively all of the economic benefits of its business to
be transferred to Fuzhou DingCe. The contractual arrangement is
not related to any regulations other than the restriction on foreign

investment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue generated
from the printing and online services businesses through Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe was RMB4.4 million and nil (2018: RMB4.8
million and nil) respectively, which accounted for 3.6% and 0%
of total revenue (2018: 8.7% and 0%) of the total revenue; and
the assets of Beijing BaiChuanDuke and the relevant businesses
amounted to RMB25.7 million (2018: RMB30.7 million). As
Beijing BaiChuanDuke and the relevant businesses have not
contributed any significant profit to the Group in the past, Beijing
BaiChuanDuke and the relevant businesses were insignificant
to the Group respectively, of total revenue. The Company relied
on and expects to continue to rely on contractual arrangements
with Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and its shareholders to operate the
printing and online services business components in China. The
PRC legal advisor has advised the Company that the contractual
arrangements are in compliance with and enforceable under the
relevant PRC laws. However, there exist uncertainties regarding
the interpretation and application of PRC laws and regulations
regarding the performance and enforcement of such contractual
arrangements. As such, there can be no assurance that the
relevant PRC regulatory authorities will not, in the future,
determine that the contractual arrangements are in breach of
applicable PRC laws. If the contractual arrangements are found
to be in breach of any existing or future PRC laws, the relevant
PRC regulatory authorities would have broad discretion in
dealing with such violations, including revoking the business and
operating licenses held by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, restricting or
prohibiting any transactions between the Company and Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe, imposing penalties or other requirements with
which the Company may not be able to comply, or requiring
the Company to restructure the relevant ownership, control or
operating structure of the Company or its business. The imposition
of any of these penalties or requirements could result in a material
and adverse effect on its business, and could even result in us
being required to cease the printing and online services businesses

completely.
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In addition to the possibility of administrative penalties or other
requirements being imposed upon us due to the relationships
with Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and its shareholders, the Company
may not be able to effectively enforce such contractual
relationships in a cost-effective manner or at all. Under the current
contractual arrangements, if Beijing BaiChuanDuKe or any of
their shareholders fails to perform their respective obligations
under these contractual arrangements, or are required to incur
substantial costs to do so, the Company may be forced to incur
substantial costs and resources to enforce such arrangements
or to rely on PRC law to obtain remedies, including specific
performance or damages, and we may not be successful in
obtaining such remedies or obtaining such remedies might be cost
prohibitive. In the event the Company is unable to enforce these
contractual arrangements, its business, financial condition and

results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

Fuzhou ShiFang Printing Co., Ltd., Kunming HanDing Printing
Technology Consulting Co., Ltd. and Guizhou ShiFang Printing
Co., Ltd, which are subsidiaries of Beijing BaiChuanDuKe,
currently hold Operation Permits for News Publication Printing (7
B B 40 ED il 48 & 5F AT
& Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Beijing BaiChuanDuKe,
currently holds a Permit for Internet Publication ( & B 48 ) hiw 5 7]
#&)and a Operation Permit for Value-added Telecommunication
Business (JBEEFEEBHL TR &) for the operation of www.
duk.cn. Pursuant to the Catalogue of Industries for Guiding
Foreign Investment (5MNE#% & & % #58 B #%) jointly promulgated
by NDRC and MOFCOM, news websites and online publication

. Xiamen DuKe Information Science

services are classified as industries in which foreign investors are
prohibited from investing, and value-added telecommunication
business (Chinese parties as controlling shareholders) and printing
of publications (Chinese parties as controlling shareholders) is
classified as an industry in which foreign investors are restricted
from investing. These views have been confirmed by our PRC legal

advisor.
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The Directors believe that the Company’s structure whereby
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe's financial results are consolidated into
the Company’s financial statements as if it was a wholly-owned
subsidiary and the flow of economic benefits from its business to
the Company, places the Group in a special position in relation
to the connected transactions rules. Accordingly, notwithstanding
that the transactions contemplated under the Structure Contracts
technically constitute continuing connected transactions for
the purposes of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the Directors
consider that it would be unduly burdensome and impracticable
and would impose unnecessary administrative costs on us to be
subject to strict compliance with the requirements set out under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of these continuing
connected transactions.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, in relation to the transactions
regarding Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, the Company has applied
for and the Stock Exchange has granted a waiver from strict
compliance with the reporting, announcement, independent
shareholders’ approval, annual cap and agreements with fixed
term of no more than three years requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing connected
transactions under the Structure Contracts for so long as the

Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

In accordance with the relevant Structured Contracts, no dividends
or other distributions has been made by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to

their shareholders.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Structure Contracts and the above continuing connected
transactions. In the opinion of the independent non-executive
Directors:

(i)  the continuing connected transactions carried out during
the year are in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group and have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Structure Contracts so that
the revenue generated by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and the
subsidiaries of the Company have been mainly retained by
the Group;
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(i)  the continuing connected transactions were entered into
either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there
is no available comparison, on terms that are no less
favourable to the Group than terms to or from independent

third parties;

(i) no dividends or other distributions have been made by

Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to their shareholders; and

(iv) any new Structure Contracts entered into, renewed or
reproduced between Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and the
Company during the relevant financial period are fair and
reasonable, or advantageous, so far as the Company are
concerned and in the interests of our shareholders as a

whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, to report
on the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
PricewaterhouseCoopers has reported the results and their work
to the Board, confirming that the transaction has received the
approval of the Directors, has been entered into in accordance
with the relevant Structured Contracts and that no dividends or
other distributions has been made by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to its

Shareholders.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 24 January 2019, the Company entered into the convertible
bond subscription agreement with TopBig International (a
wholly owned company by Mr. Chen Zhi, the Executive Director
and a shareholder of the Company), pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to issue, and TopBig International
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the 3% Convertible Bonds
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$250,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB215,750,000). The subscription was completed on 23 April
2019. Details of the subscription of the Convertible Bonds were
of this

set out in the section headed "Fund Raising Activities"

report.

Other than disclosed above, there was no other transaction which
needs to be disclosed as connected transaction in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at

the date of this report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDER

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner
while balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including
customers, suppliers and employees. Through regular stakeholder
engagement via different channels, the stakeholders are
encouraged to give their opinions regarding the environmental,

social and governance policies of the Group.

This includes providing quality services to customers, developing
effective and mutual beneficial working relationships with its
suppliers, and offering competitive remuneration package with

safety working environments to employees.
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The details of environmental, social and governance policies
and performance of the Group will be disclosed in a standalone
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which is available
on the Company’s website (www.shifangholding.com) and on the

website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chen Zhi

Executive Director (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Hong Kong
7 May 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance and value of achieving
high standards of corporate governance practices. The Board
believes that good corporate governance is an essential element
in maintaining and promoting shareholder value and investor

confidence.

The Company has adopted the principles and complied with the
former and revised code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules”) as its own code of
corporate governance since the date of the listing of the shares
of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 3
December, 2010, which shall also be revised from time to time
in accordance with the Listing Rules. Saved as disclosed below,
the Board considers the Company has complied with the code

provisions as set out in the CG Code.

Apart from the corporate governance aspect, which will be further
discussed in this report below, the Company has prepared and
published its first environmental, social and governance report
(the "ESG Report”) in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), which sets out
information regarding the year from 1 January to 31 December
2019, which is available on the Company's website (www.
shifangholding.com) and on the website of the Stock Exchange

(www.hkexnews.hk).

Set out below the corporate governance principles and the
practices adopted and observed by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year under review,
the position of chairman was vacated before 9 October 2019,
while Mr. Chen Zhi was appointed as the Chairman and the CEO
of the Company on 9 October 2019.

The Board met regularly to consider and review the major and
appropriate issues which may affect the operations of the
Company arising from the overlap of chairman and CEO and/
or the vacancy of chairmanship. As such, the Board considers
that the sufficient measures had been taken, and that either the
overlap of chairman and CEO and/or the vacancy of chairmanship
should not impair the balance of power and authority between

the Board and the management.

THE BOARD

The Board provides effective and responsible leadership for the
Company in setting the strategic decision and overseeing the
Company's overall operations. The Board meets regularly and each
Director has to make decisions objectively in the best interests of

the Company and its shareholders.

Board Composition

At the date of this report, the Board comprises 7 Directors,
of which two are executive Directors, two are non-executive
Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors. The
Composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having extensive knowledge, experience and expertise relevant
to the business operations and development of the Group. The
biographies of all Directors are set out on pages 27 to 32 of this
annual report. Ms. Chen Min is the sister of Mr. Chen Zhi. Save
as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors has any
other financial, business, family or other material or relevant

relationships among members of the Board.
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The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2014. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board of the Company which includes but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional experience. The
Nomination Committee made an annual review on the structure,
size and composition of the Board and where appropriate, made
recommendations on changes to the Board that are relevant to the

Company’s business growth.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. During the year
under review, the position of chairman was vacated before 9
October 2019, while Mr. Chen Zhi was appointed as the Chairman
and the CEO of the Company on 9 October 2019.

The Board met regularly to consider and review the major and
appropriate issues which may affect the operations of the
Company arising from the overlap of Chairman and CEO and/ or
the vacancy of chairmanship. As such, the Board considers that
the sufficient measures had been taken and that either the overlap
of chairman and CEO and/ or the vacancy of chairmanship should
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board

and the management.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed three independent non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each of its independent non-executive Directors the
written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board, based on such confirmation,

considers all independent non-executive Directors independent.

Board Proceedings

The Company will hold at least four board meetings at
approximately quarterly intervals and will also meet at such other
times when necessary. Formal agenda of all Board meetings are
distributed to the Directors for comments and approval, generally,
at least 14 days before the meetings. Adequate time and sufficient
resources will be provided to all Directors to discharge their duties
at which the Directors actively participate and hold informed
discussions. All minutes of Board meetings will be recorded in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions

reached.
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During the year, the Board convened 3 shareholders’ general
meetings, 6 board meetings, 4 Audit Committee meetings, 1
Remuneration Committee meeting and 1 Nomination Committee
meeting respectively. The attendance of individual Directors at
general meetings and meetings of the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee is as

follows:

EP\?'% @"EU%F';%E/KH&%K@ R
a& o — B

ZEggaL X E%§§ gz -EHES
RERRKEUAREFTE EERZES FHZ
EekRAZEeRe@RMbERMT:

+

Meeting attended/held
HE/ETERRY
Shareholders’
general Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination
meeting Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
BRAE 58 #NZEe® §MWzEe REZES
Executive Directors HiESs
Chen Zhi (Chief Executive Officer) (appointed as E(TREH) (R=F-1F
Chief Executive Officer of 9 October 2019) 75’7}? REZAE Uﬂff@’?ﬁ) 3 6 N/AT @ N/AT @ N/AT @
Yu Shi Quan (Chief Financial Officer) RiFE(BEIEE) 3 6 N/AT i N/AT i N/AT i
Siuming Tsui (Chief Executive Officer) RN (B3 )
(resigned on 9 October 2019) (RZE-NFETANAEE) 3 5 N/AZ @ 1 1
Non-executive Directors FoTEs
Chen Wei Dong RER 0 6 NATER NATER NATER
Chen Min R 0 6 NATER NATER NATER
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHFES
Wong Heung Ming, Henry EMH# 3 6 4 1 1
Zhou Chang Ren AL 0 6 4 1 NAT @R
Cai Jian Quan L 0 6 4 N/AT @ 1

All the Directors have access to relevant and timely information.
They also have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary of the Company, who is responsible for providing the
Directors with Board papers and related materials. Where queries
are raised by the Directors, prompt and full responses will be given

if possible.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder of the Company or a Director arise, the matter will be
discussed in a physical Board meeting, as opposed to being dealt
with by a written resolution. Independent Non-Executive Directors
with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings dealing

with such conflict issues.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors are identified in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors. An
updated list of the Directors identifying the Independent Non-
Executive Directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is
maintained on the website of the Company and the website of

the Stock Exchange.

Roles and responsibilities of the Board
The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success and
interest of the Group through its leadership and supervision. The

principal tasks of the Board are to:

(i)  provide entrepreneurial leadership for the Company with a
framework of prudent and effective controls which enables
risks to be assessed and managed;

(i) set the Company's strategic aims, ensuring that the

necessary financial and human resources are in place for the

Company to meet its objectives and review its management

performance; and

(iii) set the Company’s values and standards and ensure that its
obligations to its shareholders and others are understood

and met.

The Directors, after making due enquiries and considering the
basis of management’s projections and after taking into account
the reasonably possible changes in the operation performance,
believe that there will be sufficient financial resources available
to the Group at least in the coming twelve months to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fail due. Accordingly,
the Directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements set out in the audited financial
statements on pages 95 to 248 of this annual report on a going

concern basis.
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Skills, knowledge, experience and attributes of Directors

All Directors of the Board served in office during the year. Every
Director commits to give sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company. The Directors also demonstrate their
understanding and commit to high standards of corporate
governance. The Executive Director brings his perspectives
to the Board through his deep understanding of the Group's
business. The Non-Executive Directors and the Independent Non-
Executive Directors contribute their own skills and experience,
understanding of local and global economies, and knowledge
of capital markets to the Group’s business. The Company is
responsible for arranging and funding suitable continuous
professional development programmes for all Directors to hone

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Induction and training

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is
required to undertake an induction program to ensure that he
has a proper understanding of his duties and responsibilities.
The induction program includes an overview of the Group's
business operation and governance policies, the Board meetings’
procedures, matters reserved to the Board, an introduction of
the Board committees, the Directors’ responsibilities and duties,
relevant regulatory requirements, review(s) of minutes of the
Board and Board committees in the past 12 months, and briefings

with senior officers of the Group and site visits (if necessary).
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Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the year, all Directors had participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by ways of
attending training and/or reading materials relevant to the
Company's business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
In addition, all Directors have been updated on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. A summary of
training recovered by Directors for the year ended 31 December

2019 according to the records provided by the Directors is as
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Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against the Directors. Throughout 2019 no claim had been made

against the Directors and the officers of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of
three years, which may be terminated by not less than six months’
notice (for executive Directors) or one month’s notice (for non-
executive Directors) in writing served by either party on the other.
The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for
a term of three years and shall be terminable by either party giving
not less than one month prior notice in writing. The Directors have
power at any time and from time to time to appoint any person
to be a Director, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the existing Directors. Any Director so appointed shall hold office
only until the next annual general meeting of our Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. In accordance
with the Articles or Bye-laws of the Company, at every annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being or, if the number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to, but not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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Relationships and associations among the Directors
Ms. Chen Min is the sister of Mr. Chen Zhi. Save as disclosed,
there was no relationship between members of the Board
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant

relationship(s)).

Company secretary

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) is responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each
meeting of the Board or the Board committees including any
which should

be made available to all Directors for inspection. She is also

dissenting views expressed by the Directors,

responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures comply with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on
corporate governance matters. All agenda, relevant materials and
document are required to be sent out at least 3 days prior to the
intended dates of the Board meetings or meetings of the Board
committees. It is the responsibility of the Company Secretary to
send the draft minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board
committees to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings
of the Board or the Board committees are also required to be sent
to all Directors for record. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board

procedures and all applicable laws are followed.

Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all
Directors updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as

well as internal codes of conduct of the Company.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that she

had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by the Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set forth in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct for dealing in securities by the directors of the Company.
Specific enquiries have been made with all the incumbent
directors of the Company and all of them confirmed and declared
that they have complied with the required standards as set out in

the Model Code during the year ended to 31 December 2019.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
has been established on 8 November 2010 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three members, all being independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry (Chairman), Mr.
Zhou Chang Ren and Mr. Cai Jianquan.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are:

- To make recommendations to the Board on (i) the

appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditors; (ii) the audit fee and terms of engagement of the
external auditors; and (iii) any questions of resignation or

dismissal of that auditor

- To review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in

accordance with applicable standards
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- To monitor the integrity of the financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s annual report and
accounts, interim report and quarterly financial highlights,
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgements

contained in those reports

- To review the adequacy and monitor the effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control and

risk management systems.

- To review the financial reporting system, risk management

and internal control system.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management in
conjunction with the external auditor, the annual results and
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019, including the accounting policies and practice adopted by
the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee
had performed their primary duties to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and the internal control procedures of
the Company. The Audit Committee has also held meeting with
the Company’s external auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers
("PwC") without the presence of executive Directors and
management, to discuss matters arising from the auditing
and report to the Board on material issues, if any, and make

recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit
Committee can be viewed on the website of the Company and the

website of the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration Committee
The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) has been established on 8 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three members,

Mr. Zhou Chang Ren (Chairman), Mr. Chen Zhi and Mr. Wong

namely

Heung Ming, Henry, the majority of which being independent
non-executive Directors. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to evaluate and make recommendations to the
Board regarding the remuneration packages to the Directors and
senior management which will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market

trends and practices.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are more specifically set out in its latest
terms of reference, details of which can be viewed on the website

of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the year:

(@) formulating and recommending the policy and structure of
the remuneration of the Directors and senior officers of the

Group to the Board;

(b) assessing individual performance of the Directors and senior

officers of the Group;

(c)  reviewing specific remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior officers of the Group with reference to the
Board's corporate goals and objectives as well as individual

performances; and

(d) reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on

compensation-related issues.
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) has been established on 8 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
Mr. Chen Zhi, and Mr.

Wong Heung Ming, the majority of which being independent

namely Mr. Cai Jian Quan (Chairman),

non-executive Directors. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee selects
and recommends the candidates for directorship shall base on
the criterion including professional knowledge, competence,

experience, independence and integrity.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee are more specifically set out in its latest
terms of reference, details of which can be viewed on the website

of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2014. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board of the Company which include but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional experience. The
Nomination Committee will review annually the structure, size
and composition of the Board and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board that are relevant to the

Company’s business growth.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the

Nomination Committee during the year:

(@) reviewing and evaluating the composition of the Board
with reference to certain criteria. These criteria included
qualifications required under the Listing Rules or any other
relevant laws regarding characteristics and skills of the
Directors, professional ethics and integrity, appropriate

professional knowledge and industry experience, as well as

ability to devote sufficient time to the work of the Board and
its committees and to participate in all Board meetings and

shareholders’ meetings;

(b) reviewing and recommending the re-appointment of the
retiring Directors for re-election at the previous general

meeting; and

(c) assessing independence of the Independent Non-Executive

Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee had performed their primary duties to review and
make recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, including its diversity, based on a
range of perspectives with reference to the Company’s business
model and requirements, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional qualifications,
skills,

Committee considered that the current composition of the Board

knowledge and regional experience. The Nomination

is balanced in terms of diversity and is able to meet the objectives
of the Board.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 which reflect true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company and the Group and in compliance with relevant
law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is
responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required

under the Listing Rules.

The Group appointed PwC as the Group’s external auditor. The
statement by PwC regarding their reporting responsibility to the
shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 82

to 94 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration
paid or payable to PwC for audit services and non-audit services
amounted to RMB4,197,000 (2018: RMB3,437,000) and nil (2018:
RMB1,142,000) respectively.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems, and for reviewing their
design, operational adequacy, and effectiveness on an ongoing
basis to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the assets
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group through the Audit
Committee. The Board engaged an internal audit team which
carries out the analysis and independent assessment of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems and reports to the Board. Review of
the Group's internal controls cover major financial, operational
and compliance controls as well as risk management functions of
different systems has been done on a systematic basis based on
the risk assessments of the operations and controls. The scope
of review for the year had been determined and approved by the
Audit Committee. Saved as disclosed below, no major issues but
areas for improvement have been identified. The Board and the
Audit Committee considered that the key areas of the Group's

internal control systems are reasonably implemented.

The Company recognises that the overlap of chairman and CEO
and/or the vacancy of chairmanship may affect the operations of
the Company. The Board has met regularly to consider and review
the major and appropriate issues. As such, the Board considers
that the sufficient measures had been taken and the overlap of
chairman and CEO and/or the vacancy of chairmanship should not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and

the management.
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Corporate governance functions
The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate

governance duties as required under the CG Code:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices

on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior officers

of the Group;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(d) to develop, review and monitor the codes of conduct

applicable to employees and the Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board considered the following corporate

governance matters:
(i)  review of the compliance with the CG Code; and

(i) review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and
risk management systems of the Group through the Audit

Committee.

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of effective communication
with shareholders and continues to act in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The Company keeps
shareholders and investors informed of its business performance
and strategies by adopting a transparent and timely disclosure
policy which complies with the Listing Rules and provides all
shareholders equal access to such information. The Company
also publishes all documents on the Company’s website at

www.shifangholding.com.
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The annual general meeting of the Company (the "AGM") also
provides a forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the
Shareholders directly. The Directors and the committee members

are available to answer questions during the AGM.

Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and related
papers were posted to shareholders of the Company for their
consideration at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM.
AGM proceedings of the Company are continually reviewed in the

light of corporate governance best practices.

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders
of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirements under Paragraph O of the CG
Code which is effective from 1 April 2012.

(a) Convening of general meeting on requisition by
shareholders
General meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of any one or more members of the Company
to the Board or the Secretary of the Company deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that
such requisitionist(s) held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be
convened on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist,
provided that such requisitionist held as at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting to be held within further 2 months of the deposit
of such requisites, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to put forward
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 or the bye-laws of the Company.
However, Shareholders who wish to put forward a resolution
may request the Company to convene an special general

meeting following the procedures set out above.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available on the Company's

website.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in
writing to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the

enquiries.

Constitutional documents

During the year, there had been no significant change in the

Company’s constitutional documents. The New Memorandum

of Continuance and Bye-Laws was adopted conditionally at an

Extraordinary General Meeting held at 25 February 2019 with

effect from the date of continuance of the Company under the

laws of Bermuda.
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To the Shareholders of ShiFang Holding Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of ShiFang Holding Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on

pages 95 to 248, which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the

year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then

ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which

include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our

report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss
of RMB143,523,000 and a net cash used in operating activities
of RMB26,269,000 during the year ended 31 December 2019,
while the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by RMB20,068,000 as at the same date. These conditions, along
with other matters as described in Note 2.1 to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified

in respect of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit

matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as

follows:
o Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible
assets

o Valuation of the Group’s properties held for sale
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Key Audit Matter
HBEETSER

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets

BERE MR & ZE R EF

Refer to note 2.9 (Accounting policies), note 4(a) (Critical
accounting estimates and assumptions) and note 8
(Intangible assets) to the consolidated financial statements.
B2HAMMBHREAMT29(GTHE)  Witda) (BAREE
TG RRER) KM A8 (B|LEE) °

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of
goodwill and other intangible assets were approximately
RMB70,013,000 and RMB212,394,000, respectively before
the provision for impairment.

RZB-NF+A=+—B BAEREMETLEERTR
WEREMNREED G AARKT0,013,000T 2 AR
212,394,0007T °

The Group tests annually or whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate an indicator of impairment of
goodwill. For other intangible assets, impairment test is
performed whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate an indicator of impairment.
EEESFRAMEBRE INKLEEHNEREHETRSE
BRERET - REMELEEMS RELEAXBRLE
BB R E R EITRE RIS

R EE e

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMHEFNMEERRRTEE

Our procedures in relation to management'’s

impairment assessment included:

B REEEREMNENETF R

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iii)

Evaluating the independent external valuer's
objectivity, capability and competency to
perform the valuation;
BN ERI R R R E A I KRBT
EITIEE

Evaluating management’s assessment on
identification of CGU;
FEEREEHEBRNRESEEEMED 2
fth :

Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology adopted and the reasonableness
of key assumptions used in determining the
recoverable amount with the involvement of
our internal valuation expert;
HANAMEEERS R GETE AT W E 25
PR EETEAREE R ERE EREA
SN
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Key Audit Matter
BEETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMHETNMEERRRTEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets (Continued)

BERAEMAEYEZEREF G (E)

The Group has performed impairment assessments to
compare the recoverable amounts of the cash generating
units (“CGUs") to which these assets belong, based on
discounted cash flow projections using fair value less costs
of disposal (“FVLCD") or value in use (“VIU") calculations,
to their carrying amounts. The key assumptions used in the
valuation included, adjusted land unit rate, discount rate,
revenue generated from operation, revenue growth rate
and terminal growth rate. Based on the impairment tests
performed, impairment charge of RMB66,058,000 was
recognised against goodwill for the year ended 31 December
2019.

EEEENFRRERETTA  EAQAABER D EKAKEA
BEAENTE WEREEEMBB R eEEEUMA
WEEEREREE #ICETREN G - HEMAIZEREK

BREHBIMWEMER MREX - EEEE 2 M - Wt
RRPKABER ERAETZRENR BE-_T—NF

TZA=+—HLEFEEREEREEHR ARK66,058,000

7T|:o
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(iv)

(vi)

Considering the appropriateness of the
valuation methodologies used based on our
industry knowledge and relevant market
practice;
ERBRANTEMZERAABTISE D
REENEZREREES

== i

Assessing the reasonableness of key
assumptions used in the valuation by
comparing assumptions such as adjusted
discount rate,

land unit rate, revenue

generated from operation, revenue growth
rate and terminal growth rate against the
approved budget, latest development of
projects, relevant market data and industry
information; and
BRBHHEEHELIMEMER BRE K28
EAE W W\ﬁET&ﬂiﬁﬁ %%%
R AR ETER T8 B BT A RAR - 48
IS EERITEER

RERAE R

At EEMAEER

Considering management'’s sensitivity analysis
with respect to variations of key assumptions
adopted, to evaluate the extent to which
reasonably possible changes, both individually
and in aggregate, would result in material
changes in the assessment on impairment.
ZREEERHEMRMAIERREDNGRE
O AFHEER BRI ITHENM A e 28 (&
PR & &) FTRE SR ERT S ERES -

EI
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRESBR BEMHEFNMEERRRTEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets (Continued)

BERAEMAEYEZEREF G ()

We focused on this area due to the significant management Based on the above, we found management'’s

judgment involved to determine the assumptions used in the judgments and assumptions involved in the

impairment assessment. impairment assessment were supported by available
BT ERRENRENERAABRRILERERE evidence.
1 ER EXArt - IR EEE S EREY R

B KRB A RE S
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B AR

Key Audit Matter
BEETER

Valuation of the Group’s properties held for sale

BEEFIFLEYFEAIGE

Refer to note 2.10 (Accounting policies), note 4(d) (Critical
accounting estimates and assumptions) and note 12
(Properties held for sale) to the consolidated financial
statements

B2HA MU BBERMT2.10( G EER) W4 (RS
FHbET RRFR) KM 12(FHIEHEME)

The Group owns certain properties held for sale which are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The net carrying value of the Group's properties
held for sale was RMB25,386,000 as at 31 December 2019.
EEERAETHELENR ZEVEREREERLE
MEERAREEIER BEEERELEVER_T—A
FT-A=1t—BHREFERAKR25,386,0007T°

Management engaged an independent external valuer to
appraise the value of the properties held for sale using the
direct market comparable approach and income approach.
Management assessed the appropriateness of methodologies
and assumptions underlying the valuations performed by the
independent external valuer.

EIRE RIS B SR (A E AT A A B T 5 L BUE R AOKRTE
ERFELEMENEBE EEESFEBILINBEERMETT
HERNEBTEZERBRELAE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMHETNMEERRRTEE

Our procedures in relation to management'’s

judgement and estimates used to determine the

fair value less costs to sell of the Group’s properties

held for sale included:

BRI EREERNAEE

BEEE ELEnEND

AEREEXANEREHE R AATBREFEE:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

evaluating the independent external valuer's
objectivity, capability and competency to
perform the valuation;
AEBUIIBEEMESTE B BT
HEITHE:

considering the appropriateness of the
valuation methodologies used by the
independent external valuer with reference
to the nature and purposes of the Group’s
properties and relevant market practice;

2R BEEEMEZHERAERAREETS
EDl - ZERBLIINBEEMAAGBAETERS

I

np
(o
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Key Audit Matter
HBEETSER

Valuation of the Group’s properties held for sale (Continued)

BEEFIFLEYFEAGE (B)

We focused on this area due to the significant management
judgement and estimates used to determine the fair value
less costs to sell and, consequentially, the provision for loss
for the Group's properties held for sale.
BHABILSRERENEET SEEEFIEFLENENRAE
BMHEXRRNRE R SHOERRERREREANEIERE HE
K flgte

R EE e

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMHEFNMEERRRTEE

(iii)

(iii)

(iv)

(iv)

discussing with management the
appropriateness of the selection criteria of
comparable properties and the adjusting
factors used in the independent external
valuer’s valuation under market comparable
approach having regard to the location, size
and nature of the properties;

B IR E 5 i F) L B MO DR HE B K B 7 A0
BB ERMBRBETISLEERYELSE KR
MERMANHARRERESAE:

Assessing the reasonableness of key
assumptions used in the valuation under
income approach, including expected rental
income, growth rate and discount rate,
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry and comparing with relevant market
data;
REXRMEEBRERITEOMEZ FEHRE
WAEETHRERMMANBRRR (RERS
HeWA BRELRFEXR)ZTEEE  WENE
BT IS BB TR

Based on the above, we found management'’s

judgments and assumptions involved in the

impairment assessment were supported by available

evidence.
ER EX R HMBERBRENFEMSIERNERE
HET RGBS RELE -

89
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

s 8
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

R EE e

EENERZEENSHUBERSR
AERENEE

mfg

REEZTARABRE (BRMBERSER)
REBEARFHRE) WRBEREREEEMS
BREHMBHE THERSBES HTH
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REERRAPTFNAMIEHER -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Leung Chi Hang, Benson.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 7 May 2020

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
EHEERRER

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
KR=F—NE+=A=+—H

2019 2018
—®-hE —2-N\F
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AR® TR ARET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment N =] 7 90,212 67,426
Right-of-use assets EREEE 24 7,280 —
Intangible assets R E 8 216,349 283,912
Interests in an associate i RN =0k = 1,635
Prepayments, deposits and other BT ZIE He KEM
receivables FE g 218 9 83,638 37,689
397,479 390,662
Current assets REEE
Biological assets EYEE 10 239 =
Inventories VeS¢ 11 774 1,420
Properties held for sale BEHEDE 12 25,386 24,622
Financial assets at fair value NIELEZRAERRN
through profit or loss L RVBE 13 6,165 6,173
Trade receivables — net B 5 EWIE — H=E 14 9,561 7,858
Contract assets — net EHEBE—F5E 5 3,744 2,173
Prepayments, deposits and EARIE RE REHM
other receivables FE U =18 9 9,845 9,593
Amounts due from related parties FEULREE A T 508 35(c) 1,114 820
Restricted cash SR IR & 1,098 =
Cash and cash equivalents e RESEEER 15 9,753 33,880
67,679 86,539
Total assets BMEE 465,158 477,201
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners RNATREEELES
of the Company
Share capital A% 2 16 6,402 191,994
Share premium & 5 4 (B 16 36,376 851,682
Other reserves H AR 17 183,903 53,914
Accumulated deficits 2t E 4t (119,774) (922,308)
106,907 175,282
Non-controlling interests IEPE R M = 18(a) 8,208 12,680
Total equity S 115,115 187,962
THFERERAR
— T NFFR
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
EHEERER

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
K=F—nFE+=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 7 AR%T AREFIT
LIABILITIES X
Non-current liabilities ErRHEaE
Lease liabilities HEEE 24 9,215 =
Other payables H fth fE A SR IE 20 52,000 —
Promissory notes A EE 22 - 81,552
Convertible bonds o] s (& & 23 150,669 =
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTEHRAaE 19 50,412 51,723
Loans from a related party RAEE B R 35(c) = 87,132
262,296 220,407
Current liabilities REERE
Trade payables B 5 Ef5RE 20 8,106 4,597
Other payables and accrued expenses HihpEN B R ESTHS 20 41,100 34,046
Financial guarantees B S R 1,518 =
Lease liabilities HEAE 24 3,010 =
Borrowings &3 21 6,230 8,377
Current income tax liabilities ENHRpT Efi & & 17,310 21,184
Amounts due to related parties FETREE A T 708 35(c) 10,473 628
_____ PN 68832
Total liabilities HEE 350,043 289,239
Total equity and liabilities EZLEEHRE 465,158 477,201

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 KEREeN T -_TFRALBMETRET

May 2020 and signed on behalf of the Board by: B UWHATIIEERKREZTEESE:
Chen Zhi Yu Shi Quan
BR & RevfE
Director Director
EZE -4

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in LA HEEAGEREEBENME— &

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Bt EERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
BHE-E—NFF+-A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E—hEF —E—N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 7 ARET T AREF T
Revenue ON 5 122,374 55,016
Cost of sales 5 Ak A 26 (101,330) (36,521)
Gross profit EF 21,044 18,495
Selling and marketing expenses SHE 2R X 26 (12,209) (3,439)
General and administrative expenses —MRITEAX 26 (63,521) (88,635)
Net fair value loss on financial assets at AREBELETRARNESREE
fair value through profit or loss B A EEEFEE (8) (84,498)
Net change in provision for impairment 4 &t & & %)°4 2 5 (8 B & & 5%
of financial and contract assets 2 26 (786) 582
Provision for impairment on goodwill R ERE (66,058) =
Other income H At A 25 336 917
Other loss — net HihEiE— F58 25 (82) =
Operating loss KEEE ~(121,284)  (156,578)
Finance income 5 75 Mg A 29 62 111
Finance costs 87 7% B A 29 (26,032) (7,260)
Finance costs — net B RS RKAR — 58 29 (25,970) (7,149)
Share of losses of an associate JE (5 Bk & A B E5 18 (1,366) (165)
Loss before income tax BRET 15 B Al 5 18 (148,620) (163,892)
Income tax credit/(expense) FriefiEe, (%) 30 5,097 (705)
Loss for the year FRER (143,523) (164,597)
Loss attributable to: T %18 B EREIE:
— Owners of the Company —KRBIMEE (139,165) (164,403)
— Non-controlling interests —JEIE AR R (4,358) (194)
(143,523) (164,597)
THFERERAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SO 2ERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
BE-E-—NFIT-A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt % AR®T T ARET T
Other comprehensive loss Htt2mEsE
Items that may be reclassified to A 37 7 28 2 18 2 Bk H) 2H B
profit or loss
Currency translation differences Bt E =g (1,392) (2,571)
Other comprehensive loss for the FRHEMZEEE
VEEL 392 (2,571)
Loss and total comprehensive loss FREERZHEERE
for the year Fog ] (144,915) (167,168)
Loss and total comprehensive loss T3EEHELHERR
attributable to: THEEEEE:
— Owners of the Company —ARRARIMBE (140,557) (166,974)
— Non-controlling interests —JEIE AR R (4,358) (194)
(144,915) (167,168)
Loss per share for loss attributable AATAEEEEEEN
to owners of the Company BREE
— Basic (RMB per share) —EARX(BRAREK) 31 (0.2028) (0.3161)
— Diluted (RMB per share) —#E(BERARE) 31 (0.2028) (0.3161)
* The loss per share was retrospectively adjusted after the capital WM FE3 1T EE B EE D RIRAE

reorganisation as disclosed in Note 31.

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

B EESBR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
BE—F-AE+A=+—AIEE

FRRFEEER
Convertible Capital Non-
Share Share bonds  redemption Capital ~ Contributed Exchange Statutory  Accumulated controlling Total
Capital premium reserve reserve Teserves surplus Teserves Reserves deficits Total interests equity
WER RERE
e REER RERE i fei ] R4RH EiGE ERRE R4 #i  FERER RHAE
Note RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
s ARMTR  ARBTR ARMTR  ARMTR AR®TR ARETR  ARMTR  AR®TR ARMTR  ARETR ARBTR  ARMTR
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZF-NF-A-ANESR 191,994 851,682 = 997 4,297 = (1,362) 12,982 (922,308) 175,282 12,680 187,962
Changes in accounting policy 22 - - - - - - (28) - (287) (315) (114) (429)
Restated total equity as at 1 January
2019 191,99 851,682 = 997 4,297 = (1,390) 12,982 (922,595) 174,967 12,566 187,533
Comprehensive income 2EK
Loss for the year FhERE - - - - - - - - (139,165)  (139,165) (4358)  (143,523)
Other comprehensive income 2 2ENE
Currency translation differences ERREZE - - - - - - (1392) - - (1,392) - (1,392
Total comprehensive income PEREEE - - - - - - (139) - (139165)  (140,557) (4358)  (144,915)
Transactions with owners HEEANRS
Cancellation of share premium THRHEE 16(b) - (851,682) - - - 851,682 = = = = = B
Capital reorganisation RAEd 16(0) (187,194) - - - - (754,792) - - 941,986 - - -
Equity component of convertible bonds B3 7 R s 2 55
issued, net of transaction costs ABRHRE b} - - 42,003 - - - - - - 42,003 - 42,003
Conversion of convertible bonds ERTBRER 16(c) 1,602 36,376 (7,484) - - - - - - 30,494 - 30,494
Total transactions with owners HEFANRS4E (185,592) (815,306) 34,519 - - 96,890 - - 941,986 72497 = 72,497
Balance at 31 December 2019 i e
TZRA=t-RMEH 6,402 36,376 34519 997 4,297 96,890 (2,782) 12,982 (119,774) 106,907 8,208 15,115
Attributable to owners of the Company
TRAMEEER
Available-
for-sale
financial Capital Non-
Share Share assetfair ~ redemption Capital Bxchange Statutory ~ Accumulated controlling Total
Capital premium  value reserve reserve reserves reserves Reserves deficits Total interests equity
e
e BHEE AAERE REBDERE s 351 EERE Zit By B ke
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WiE AREFT  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTn  ARETr  ARETT  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZ-\F-A-BHE& 123919 816,907 (7,063) 997 41,97 1,209 12,464 (750,092) 239,638 7,969 247,607
Changes in accounting policies EHBREE 22 - - 7,063 - - - - (7,299 (23) = (23)
Restated total equity as at 1 January 2018~ W=%-\§-F-ANEERHER 123919 816,907 - 997 41,297 1,209 12,464 (757,387) 239,406 7969 27375
Comprehensive income 2ERE
Loss for the year FRER = = = = = = = (164,403) (164,403) (194) (164,597)
Other comprehensive income Et2ENE
Currency translation differences ERBEEE - - - - - 2571) - - @51 = 2,57)
Total comprehensive income 2EkEEE - - - - - (25m) - (164403)  (166,974) (194)  (167,168)
Transactions with owners AEEANRS
Appropriation to statutory reserves BRZETRE - - - - - - 518 (518) - - -
Issuance of ordinary shares ROLER 16(a) 23,461 9,792 - - - - - = 33,253 = 33,253
Issuance of ordinary shares as consideration for ~ ¥/TLBRIEANBHEADZRE
acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired R FTKAEE 44,614 24,983 - - - - - - 69,597 B 69,597
Capital injection from non-controlling RE-RHERAFER
shareholders of a subsidiary BRMTE - - - - - - - - - 4,005 4,005
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi -AH R AR - - - - - - - - - 900 900
Total transactions with owners HEEANRSLE 68,075 34,775 - - - - 518 (518) 102,850 4,905 107,755
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-NFtZA=t-BH&EH 191,994 851,682 = 997 41,297 (1,362) 12,982 (922,308) 175,282 12,680 187,962

The above consolidated statement of

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

changes in equity should be

THERARDA
—E-NFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EOHRTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
BE-E-—NFIT-A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
=EB-NF —E-)N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt % ARET T ARBT T
Cash flows from operating activities K& EBFAEHESRE
Cash used in operations LEEEAR® 33(a) (25,910) (57,423)
Interest received &S 29 62 111
Interest paid 2R E (333) (459)
Income tax paid B FTEH (88) (520)
Net cash used in operating activities g REFT AR 558 (26,269) (58,291)
Cash flows from investing activities REEFBHFFESESRE
Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary U8 — & Bff /& A 7] 2 T8~ 508 - (3,000)
Payments for property, plant and M B RFEZ N
equipment (29,239) (21,767)
Additions of intangible assets REEVEE 8 (8) (12)
Return of deposit for township NETE B FAEMIRS R
development 9(i) 5,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEVE BEK
plant and equipment RIS/ O 33(b) 487 11
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, W EEHTE A & 2 H 7
net of cash acquired Bk AT UK BRER & - (55,551)
Investment in an associate & — AL QA = (1,800)
Acquisition of assets through acquisition % i@ U< B8 — R M BB A Rl Uk BE & &
of a subsidiary - (4,100)
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBFARESHE (23,760) (86,219)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEZFBHFIERERE
Capital injection from non-controlling  2RE —REH B F 2
shareholders of a subsidiary AT AR R A EE - 4,005
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBITHER (2,237) (2,236)
Net proceeds from issuance of BT MR E SIS RIRF R
convertible bonds 33,510 =
Principal payment of lease liabilities MEABZASKIE (7,944) =
Net proceeds from issuance of BT L BT RIA SR
ordinary shares - 33,253
Drawdown of loans from a related party 25X 8B 75 & X 2,564 80,113
Proceeds from other borrowing H b (& X PT18 FIB - 1,500
Net cash generated from financing BB EEMERS FE
activities 25,893 116,635
Net decrease in cash ReRRSEEBRARDFE
and cash equivalents (24,136) (27,875)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#IRE S NIE S EEEAR
of the year 15 33,880 60,178
Exchange gains on cash and cash RekREFMBEEE W
equivalent HINE LUK 9 1,577
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRXNEERBEELEEHER
the year 15 9,753 33,880
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in LA IS E R HERENI T S — Rl o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

ShiFang Holding Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the business of publishing and
advertising (the “Publishing and Advertising Businesses”) in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Group has
been focusing on restructuring its publishing and advertising
businesses by consolidating with cultural media and film
media businesses in PRC and diversifying into tourism and

integrated developments.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 9 December 2009 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (2009 Revision
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified) of the

Cayman Islands.

The Company announced on 18 January 2019 that
the Company proposed to change the domicile of the
Company from the Cayman Islands to Bermuda by way of
discontinuation in the Cayman Islands and continuation
as an exempted company under the laws of Bermuda. The
change has been effective on 18 March 2019 (Bermuda

time).

The address of its registered office has been changed from
PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands to Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda after the change of domicile.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been

approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 May 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of ShiFang
Holding Limited have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared

on a historical cost basis, except for below:

o financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

— measured at fair value; and

o biological assets — measured at fair value less

costs to sell.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4. The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 BERESTTHESE (&)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 mEBLEE (&)
Going concern BFERE

During year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
reported a net loss of RMB143,523,000 and had
a net cash outflow from operating activities of
RMB26,269,000. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group’s current liabilities exceeds its current assets by
RMB20,068,000 while it had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB9,753,000.

In early 2020, after the rapid outbreak of Coronavirus
Disease 2019 (“COVID-19 outbreak”), a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across mainland China,
including postponement of work resumption after the
Chinese New Year holiday in some regions, certain
level of restrictions and controls over the travelling
of people and traffic arrangements, quarantine
of certain residents, heightening of hygiene and
epidemic prevention requirements and encouraged
social distancing, etc. Such precautionary and control
measures is causing short-term disruption to the
Group's tourism and integrated developments, whereas
the Group’s advertising and marketing related services
are also affected by the poor consumer sentiment
caused by the epidemic. If the present situation in
respect of the COVID-19 outbreak continues and the
restrictions and control measures are prolonged, the
Group’s operation performance and cash flow may be

further negatively affected.

The above conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about
the ability of the Group to continue as a going

concern.

BHE_Z-NF+-HA=+—H1L
FE AEESESBHIEFEARE
143,523,0007T & 4 = & &) IR & /it
HF 5 A R #26,269,0007T ° A =
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©HEEBERH X AKY9,753,0007T ©
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Bt XMt ZE IR E i EBUR
SEMRERGEEREBEHF
B AR B B &% AR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

The directors of the Company have assessed the
appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis
for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019. In
order to improve the Group's financial position, the
directors of the Company have been implementing

various measures as follows:

(i) The Group has been diversifying its business
to the tourism and integrated development
operations in order to strengthen the Group's
operating income and reduce its reliance on the
declining printed media business as it is suffering
from the competition of new online media.
The Group is closely monitoring the impact of
the COVID-19 outbreak on the progress of the
Group’s various projects in the tourism and
integrated developments segment and despite
there were some delay in the preparation work,
the Group anticipates the projects will be ready
for commercial operation according to the
planned schedule. The Group will commence
the commercial operations of its projects when
the mainland tourist market condition and
customer sentiment resume to normal. The
Directors are confident that the Group would be
able to commence the commercial operations
of its projects in the tourism and integrated
developments segment in 2020 which will start
generating income and operating cashflows to

the Group.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Subsequent to 31 December 2019, the Group has
successfully obtained a revolving bank borrowing
facility of RMB5,900,000 that is available for
drawdown during the period from 6 April 2020
to 20 March 2021.

this facility will be repayable a year from the date

The amounts drawn under

of drawdown;

The Group is in negotiation with a bank to
obtain a RMB50 million long term project finance
facilities to fund the Group’s working capital
and capital investment for one of the Group's
tourism and integrated development projects.
Such borrowing facility is expected to be secured
by the Group’s properties and properties-held-
for-sale with carrying amount of approximately
RMB23,790,000 and RMB20,421,000,
respectively, as at 31 December 2019. Based on
the communication with the Bank, the Directors
are confident that such borrowing facilities will
be approved by the bank in the second half of
2020;

The Group is in discussion with a placing agent
to issue new shares of the Company to raise
approximately HK$18,000,000 to finance the
Group's working capital needs and this share

placement is targeted to complete by June 2020;

The Group has obtained a written confirmation
from a director and his related parties which
confirm that they will not demand the Group for
repayment of the amount due by the Group of
RMB9,966,000 for the next twelve months from
31 December 2019;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2 EXRESTHESE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

The Group will continue to take initiatives to
implement cost control measures, including
adjustment to management remuneration and

streamlining administrative costs; and

The Group will continue its efforts to implement
measures to strengthen its working capital
position, including expediting collection of
outstanding trade receivables, expediting the
sales of properties-held-for-sale, deferring
discretionary capital expenditures, and seeking
equity or project finance for the tourism
and integrated development projects, where

necessary.

The directors, after making due enquiries and

considering the basis of management’s projections

described above and after taking into account

the reasonably possible changes in the operation

performance, believe there will be sufficient financial

resources available to the Group at least in the coming

twelve months to meet its financial obligations as and

when they fall due. Accordingly, the directors consider

that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated

financial statements on a going concern basis.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, material uncertainty exists

as to whether management of the Group is able to

achieve its plans and measures as described above.

Whether the Group will be able to continue as a going

concern would depend upon the Group's ability to

generate adequate financing and operating cash flows

through achieving the above plans and measures:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Successful implementation of measures to
address the disruptions caused by the COVID-19
outbreak so as to complete the preparation work
and commence the commercial operation of the
projects of the Group's tourism and integrated
development projects as planned. Successful
implementation of business plan for these project
to improve the Group's operating results and

generate cash inflow;

Successful in securing the project bank
borrowings of RMB50 million from the bank in
the second half of 2020;

Successful in completing the placement of
the Company's shares to raise approximately
HK$18,000,000 by June 2020;

Successful implementation of measures to
control operating cost, expedite collection from
customers and generate cash inflow from the
sales of property held for sale to improve the

Group's cash flow position; and

Obtaining additional sources of financing as and

when needed.

SO MR

2 BERESTTHESE (&)

2.1

mAEEE (H)
FREE (/)

BEHBRLAE

EGREER bt

o AEBEEIERE
LB R ERTES

AT EERR - AEEELSFEL
LRURNAKE B BER Eact &
REEDRGEREREREERER
EHEET

(i)

(iii)

B T B it 5 1 i R COVID-19
1R %% S| A BT - DAIRET 8IS
AN B R R AR A ERIBE
WEETERMRZEZERH
PMELE KW EMZEZIER
WEBTETIRALEEN
BEERERASRTA:

R-ZF_TFETFERNBR

1TESTE B R1TE R AR K50
BET:

R-_ZE_ZFXARIKIY T
REERRRRGD  AEELD
18,000,000/ T :

B T B ite Fi B 28 o) A S S
MR MR P H R FGETR RIHE
RIELEMEEER SR
UHEAEENREEREM
R

REEREGSELZHMER
IR

THFERERAR

—E-NFFH}

107



108

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the

consolidated financial statements.

()  Amendments to standards effective in 2019

IFRS 16 Leases

Annual improvements  Annual Improvements 2015-2017
project Cycle

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax
treatment

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment features with negative
compensation

Amendments to IAS 28  Long-term interests in associates
and joint ventures

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined benefit plan amendment,

curtailment or settlement

The Group had to change its accounting policies
and make certain retrospective adjustments on the
opening consolidated balance sheet on 1 January
2019 following the adoption of IFRS 16. The adoption
of other amendments to standards did not have
any material impact on the consolidated financial

statements for the current year or any prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

New standards, amendments to standards

and interpretations that are not yet effective

and have not been early adopted by the

Group
Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IAS 1
and IAS 8

Conceptual framework
for financial reporting
2018

IFRS 7, IFRS 9 and
IAS 39

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Definition of a business'

Definition of material’

Revised conceptual framework for
financial reporting’

Interest rate benchmark reform -

amendment to IFRS 7, IFRS 9
and IAS 39'

Insurance contract?

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its

associate or joint venture?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2021

3 Effective date to be determined

A number of new standards, amendments to standards

and interpretations are effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and have

not been applied in preparing these consolidated

financial statements. None of these is expected to

have a significant effect on the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS
16, “Leases” on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 retrospectively from
1 January 2019, but has not restated comparatives
for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under
the specific transition provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from
the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the
opening balance sheet on 1 January 2019. The new

accounting policies are disclosed in note 2.28.

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously
been classified as ‘operating leases’ under the
principles of IAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were
measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The weighted
average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to

the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 4.8%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

2 EXRESTHESE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the
Group has used the following practical expedients

permitted by the standard:

3 applying a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar

characteristics

o accounting for operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months

as at 1 January 2019 as short-term leases

o reliance on previous assessments on

whether leases are onerous

o excluding initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at

the date of initial application, and

3 using hindsight in determining the lease
term where the contract contains options to

extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the
date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date the
Group relied on its assessment made applying
IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 Determining whether an

Arrangement contains a Lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EXSTHESE (H)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 22 BEHBERESH (&)

(i) Measurement of lease liabilities (i) FFEHEERE
RMB’000
ARBT T

Operating lease commitments disclosed RZZE-—NF+ZA=1+—HEE

as at 31 December 2018 BT E A 9,102

Discounted using the lessee’s incremental B RS B A A AT A

= =5 | Tﬁ 7
borrowing rate at the date of initial REBRFIERR

application (439)
(Less): short-term leases recognised on CRl)  RERRER 2 R HHEE
a straight-line basis (392)
(Less): low-value leases recognised on CR)  RERAERZ REEES
a straight-line basis (46)
Add: adjustments as a result of a different o RS IR AR 1T T R B 3R
treatment of termination options frib 2 s 6,251
Lease liabilities recognised R=ZF-—NF-A-BEIZ
as at 1 January 2019 HEAR 14,476
Of which are: Hep:
Current lease liabilities EEEAR 5,372
Non-current lease liabilities ERNHHEERE 9,104
14,476
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii)

Measurement of lease liabilities (Continued)
The recognised right-of-use assets are solely
The
associated right-of-use assets were measured

related to rented land and properties.

on a retrospective basis as if the new rules had
always been applied. The right-of-use assets at 1
January 2019 have been adjusted for the amount
of provision for onerous leases recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet immediately before
the adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019.

The change in accounting policy affected the
following items in the balance sheet on 1 January
2019:

- right-of-use assets — increase by
RMB10,679,000

- lease liabilities — increase by RMB14,476,000

- other payable — decrease by RMB3,368,000

- exchange reserve — decrease by RMB28,000

- non-controlling interests — decrease by
RMB114,000

The net impact on accumulated deficits on 1
January 2019 was an increase of RMB287,000.

Loss per share decreased by RMB0.0006 for the
year ended 31 December 2019 as a result of the

adoption of IFRS 16.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how

these are accounted for

The Group leases various land and properties
as offices. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 1 to 41 years but may have
termination options as described below. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants, but leased assets may not be used

as security for borrowing purposes.

Until the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group's leases were classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) were
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis

over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised
as a right-of-use asset and the corresponding
liabilities at the date at which the respective
leased asset is available for use by the Group.
Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease

term on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iii)

The Group's leasing activities and how
these are accounted for (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the

following lease payments:

- fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives

receivable

- variable lease payment that are based on an

index or a rate

- amounts expected to be payable by the

lessee under residual value guarantees

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that

option, and

- payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee

exercising that option

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a
similar economic environment with similar terms

and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how

(iv)

these are accounted for (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of

12 months or less.

Termination options are included in a number of
leases across the Group. These terms are used
to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing contracts. The termination options held
are exercisable only by the Group and not by the

respective lessor.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

In preparing this consolidated financial
statements, the significant judgements made by
management in applying the Group’s accounting
policies and the key sources of estimation
uncertainty were the same as those that were
applied to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date

that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and

consolidated balance sheet respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
It means the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements

of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

2 EXRESTTHEBE (&)

23 EOFARER (&)

(a)

MEAR (&)
&N B 2 Al
REBKREAEHIRE RER
B (E fr] R BB A 2 A 1R 2K KA
EEHNAANBEEHFE A
HAEEEEHEREEREN
BR-REBEARIERZED
A EEEXERMEENR
Bz EAAERYKER
SR oIN ERREMEE
WENEREZEREBNE
MeBRMNASEEERED
EEREEXEBENTRAA

R-EERELANEEMEE
H&ﬁﬁﬂQEQE WEBEEMHOEE
B

LB

TRH B R R IR B T LA AR
WMER T ELR - KABER
B EEEEKA B RA
Y SRAR 2 AR B IS R R
BARK-

W BB BT BB A R A9 1R B 8O AR
B MREEBAMBARES
AR S EE R 2 E K25
HMB Y M B HRRVIRERE
CRHBARKERFEE (B
EREE)EEHMBERRAOK
H&f RV EHE@AKREE
TR ERIR -

m Ao



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Structured entity

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company,
its subsidiaries, and structured entity
where the Company is deemed the primary
beneficiary. Fuzhou DingCe Culture, one of
the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries,
entered into contractual agreements with Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe (the “Structural Agreements”),
where Fuzhou DingCe Culture provides consulting
services to Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, and is entitled
to (1) receive a substantial portion of the
economic benefits from Beijing BaiChuanDuKe;
(2) exercise effective control over Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe, and (3) have an exclusive option
to purchase all or part of the equity interests in
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe when and to the extent
permitted by the PRC laws. By virtue of the
contractual arrangements, Beijing BaiChuanDuKe
is a structured entity and deemed as subsidiary of
the Company under the requirements of IFRS 10

“Consolidated financial statements”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Structured entity (Continued)

When assessing whether to combine a structured
entity, the Group evaluates a range of factors,
including whether (1) the activities of the
structured entity are being conducted on behalf
of the Group according to its specific business
needs so that the Group obtains the benefits
from the structured entity’s operations, (2) the
Group has decision-making powers to obtain the
majority of the benefits, (3) the Group obtains
the majority of the benefits of the activities of the
structured entity, and (4) the Group retains the
majority of the residual ownership risks related
to the assets in order to obtain the benefits from
its activities. The Group consolidates a structured
entity if an assessment of the relevant factors

indicates that it controls the structured entity.

Based on the contractual arrangements, the
Company consolidated Beijing BaiChuanDuKe's
results, assets and liabilities in its consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after
the date of acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is

accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is

reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
If this

is the case, the Group calculates the amount

investment in the associate is impaired.

of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of losses of associates’
for using equity method in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EXREHBEME (#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

2.3 EOFARER (&)

(c) Associates (Continued)
Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised in the Group's
financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

2.4 Business combination

The Group applies acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at

the acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Business combination (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised in assets
are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting

policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors (the “Board"”)

that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is
the Company's functional and the Group's

presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within ‘general and

administrative expenses'.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(iy  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate

at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on

the dates of the transactions); and

(iiiy all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2 BEXRESTTHESE (&)

2.6 SR E (&)

(c) Group companies (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or

loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and

translated at the closing rate.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in

which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated

useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 40 years
BF 404

Leasehold improvements
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27 ME- -BERHZAE (&)

WE - BB RREOTERNERZE
AE R ERFEHERAD
BEENBREE-FRAFHET:

5 — 10 years or the remaining term

of any non-renewable lease, whichever is shorter

HEMEERE SEN0FH A EEHENRTFR (UBREERE)
Machinery 5 - 10 years
ez 5E10%F
Fixture, furniture and equipment 5 years

KB HMMRRE 5%

Motor vehicles 5 - 10 years
nE 5Z10F
Exhibition animals 5 years
RESHY 54

Bearer plants 15 — 25 years
HEEMEY 152 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

The Group’s golden camellia trees qualify as bearer
plants under the definition in IAS 41 “Agriculture” and
are therefore accounted for under the rules for plant
and equipment. Golden camellia trees are classified
as immature until the produce can be commercially
harvested. At that point they are reclassified and
depreciation commences. Immature golden camellia

trees are measured at accumulated cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2.8

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘General and administrative
expenses’ in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair

value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored

at the operating segment level.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as

an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Trademarks and licences

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown
at historical cost. Trademarks and licences acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Trademarks and licences have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of trademarks
and licences over their estimated useful lives of seven

years.

Contractual customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. The contractual customer relations
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate over the
expected life of the customer relationship of three

years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)
Computer software and web site
Costs associated with maintaining computer software
program and web site are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable
and unique computer software and web site controlled
by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when

the following criteria are met:

o It is technically feasible to complete the computer
software and web site so that they will be

available for use;

o Management intends to complete the computer

software and web site, and use or sell them;

o There is an ability to use or sell the computer

software and web site;

o It can be demonstrated how the computer
software and web site will generate probable

future economic benefits;

. Adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell
the computer software and web site are available;

and

o The expenditure attributable to the computer
software and web site during their development

can be reliably measured.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)

Computer software and web site (Continued)

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part
of the computer software and web site cost include
the software development employee costs. Other
development expenditures that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense

are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Remaining computer software and web site costs
recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated
useful lives and the terms of validity granted by

corresponding authorities, which are three years.

Right to a land lease

Right to a land lease represents the operating lease
with favourable terms relative to market terms as
acquired in a business combination that is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The right to a land
lease has a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected useful

life of 41 years.

Township operation right

Township operation right represents a 40-years’
exclusive operation right to develop, construct, manage
and operate commercial activities in the operation site.
The township operation right are shown at historical
cost. It has a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected useful

life of 40 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)

Township operation right (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible
assets is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised as

an expense as incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting

date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Properties held for sale

Properties are classified as properties held for sale
when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell if their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than

through continuing use.

2.11 Biological assets

Biological assets are measured at fair value less
cost to sell, see Note 10 for further information on

determining the fair value.

Costs to sell include the incremental selling costs,
including commission and estimated costs of transport
to the market but excludes finance costs and income

taxes.

The golden camellia trees are bearer plants and are
therefore presented and accounted for as property,
plant, and equipment (Note 7). However, the golden
camellia flowers growing on the trees is accounted for
as biological assets until the point of harvest. Harvested
golden camellia are transferred to inventory at fair

value less costs to sell when harvested.

Changes in fair value of golden camellia flowers on
trees are recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Farming costs such as labour costs and fertiliser costs

are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

2 BEXRESTTHESE (&)

QNERERAMMEMEE

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or

through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets

changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit

or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and

interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement

of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI:

contractual cash flows and for selling the

Assets that are held for collection of

financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other losses. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Net foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in general and administrative expenses
and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised
in profit or loss and presented net within other

losses in the period in which it arises.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)
Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has

been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be

recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other financial assets at amortised cost, the Group
measures the impairment as either 12-month expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred since
initial recognition, then impairment is measured as

lifetime expected credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a "loss event”) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets

that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that
there is objective evidence of an impairment loss

include:

o Significant financial difficulty of the obligor;

. A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

o The Group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that

the lender would not otherwise consider;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

It becomes probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial

difficulties; or

Observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a portfolio of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets

in the portfolio, including:

(i)  adverse changes in the payment status

of borrowers in the portfolio; and

(i)  national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the

assets in the portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective

evidence of impairment exists.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of
an instrument’s fair value using an observable

market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income.

SO MR

2 BEXRESTTHESE (&)

2NRERAEMERMEE (F)

e (&)

(a)

BB 5K A5 ) B ()
BECRREERASRER
TREERBERAN RTINS
AARRRSRERE (TR
HAEENAREEER)Z
FNERAE-EERAESR
ST AHIR MEBESEERN
BffEEKERARER - HE
FILFBA KL A EE
MREBERNTREBRIES
MEBENENERNX -EE
BREME L AEE A RE AR &R
EMEEENIAAAERE
T BRIE

B E R B & B E R AR
D iR 7 A £ A SRR (B R B
EREHERERE (HImE
BAGEFHNLZ)  BIRA
PrEERERNEREEBE

BB EEE -
THERARDA
—E-NEFER



142

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the

Company or the counterparty.

2.14 Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability
is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at

the higher of:

° the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under IFRS 9 Financial

Instruments; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a third

party for assuming the obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Financial guarantees (Continued)
Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of associates are provided for no compensation, the
fair values are accounted for as contributions and

recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

2.15 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods comprises
of newsprint paper and printing consumables. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.

2.16 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. See Note 14 for further information about
the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and Note
3.1(b) for a description of the Group’s impairment

policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash on hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three

months or less.

2.18 Restricted cash
Bank deposits which are restricted to use are classified
as “restricted cash”. Restricted cash are excluded
from cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated

statement of cash flows.

2.19 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,

from the proceeds.

2.20 Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.

Trade payable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to

be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a

net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as current accrual and other payables in the

consolidated balance sheet.

Pension obligations

Full time employees of the PRC entities
participate in a government mandated
multiemployer defined contribution plan pursuant
to which certain pension benefits, medical care,
unemployment insurance, employee housing
fund and other welfare benefits are provided to
employees. Chinese labor regulations require the
Company to accrue for these benefits based on
certain percentages of the employees’ salaries.
Management believes full time employees who
have passed the probation period are entitled to
such benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group contributes to Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF”) for eligible employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF are
held in a separate trustee administered fund.
The Company’s contributions to the MPF are

expensed as incurred.

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is

available.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on performance and takes
into consideration the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive

obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EXREHBEME (#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Provisions

2.23 &%

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

2.24 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Borrowings (Continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over

the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.25 Convertible bond

2 BEXRESTTHESE (&)

225 TR E S

The fair value of the liability portion of a convertible
bond is determined using a market interest rate for a
non-convertible bond with similar terms. This amount
is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion, early redemption
or maturity of the bonds. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option. This
is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity or
derivative liability according to the conversion feature
embedded. Any directly attributable transaction costs
are allocated to the liability and equity or derivative
liability component in proportion to their initial carrying

amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of a convertible bond is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The equity component of a convertible bond is not re-
measured subsequent to initial recognition except on

conversion or expiry.

2.26 Revenue recognition

The Group determined when to recognise revenue
and how much revenue to recognise through a 5-step
approach: (i) identify the contract(s) with customer; (ii)
identify separate performance obligations in a contract;
(iii) determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate
transaction price to performance obligations; and (v)
recognise revenue when performance obligation is

satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Newspaper advertising

The Group renders services for the creation,
production and placement of advertising
materials through certain newspaper publishers.
Revenue from providing the advertising services
are recognised at a point in time when the

services are rendered.

The Group’s role in the provision of services
on newspaper advertising is that of a principal.
When deciding the most appropriate basis for
presenting revenue or costs of revenue, both
the legal form and substance of the agreement
between the Group and its business partners are
reviewed to determine each party’s respective
role in the transaction. Hence, revenue from
newspaper advertising services is recognised on a

gross basis when services are rendered.

Marketing and consulting services

Revenue from marketing services comprised of
(i) revenue from provision of marketing planning
and consulting services and (ii) commission from

sale of properties.

Revenue from marketing planning and consulting
services is recognised over time when the services
are rendered. Revenue are recognised over the

respective contract terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Marketing and consulting services
(Continued)

Commission from sale of properties is recognised
at a point in time when the services are rendered
and the customer (i.e. property developer) has
entered into the sales and purchase agreement

with the buyer.

Customers are invoiced based on the payment
schedule. If the services rendered by the
Company exceed the payment, a contract asset is
recognised. If the payments exceed the services

rendered, a contract liability is recognised.

Printing services

Printing revenue is recognised at a point in time
when printing services are rendered and the
legal title of the newspaper is transferred to the

customers.

Sales of agricultural products

Revenue from the sales of agricultural products is
recognised at a point in time when control of the
goods has transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery of the goods to the customer. Delivery
occurs when the goods have been placed at
the customer’s disposal (generally at the seller’s
premises), the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer, and either the
customer has accepted the goods in accordance
with the sales contracts, the acceptance provision
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been

satisfied.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v) Others
Other revenue mainly includes rental income
and other miscellaneous income. Rental income
are recognised on a straight-line basis over the
respective lease terms. Other miscellaneous
income are recognised at a point in time when
the respective control on goods or services are

transferred to the customers.

2.27 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with

all attached conditions.

Government grants are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate. Government grants
relating to expenses are shown separately as other

income.

2.28 Leases

Accounting policy applied before 1 January
2019

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over

the period of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EXREHBEME (#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Leases (Continued) 228HE (&)

Accounting policy applied before 1 January
2019 (Continued)

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in revenue on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. The respective leased assets are
included in the consolidated balance sheet based on

their nature.

Accounting policy applied since 1 January
2019

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date
at which the leased asset is available for use by the

Group.

The Group leases properties and land as lessee. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 41

years but may have termination options.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s

useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.28 Leases (Continued)

Accounting policy applied since 1 January
2019 (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease

payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group

under residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that

option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that

option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,

security and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.28 Leases (Continued)

2 BEXRESTTHESE (&)

2288 (&)

Accounting policy applied since 1 January
2019 (Continued)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising

the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives

received
o any initial direct costs, and

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. The useful life used for the asset’s
depreciation purpose are:

Rented land and properties Remaining lease term

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,

where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in

the period in which they are incurred.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The Group has not used any
derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk

exposures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk and other payables

The Group operates principally in the PRC.
Majority of recognised assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB and majority of
transactions are settled in RMB. Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from cash
and cash equivalents, deposits and other
receivables balance and other payables
denominated in Hong Kong dollar (“HKD").
The Group does not hold or issue any
derivative financial instruments to manage

its exposure to foreign currency risk.

if HKD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against

As at 31 December 2019,
RMB with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss for the year would have
been RMB337,000 lower/higher (2018:
RMB8,329,000 lower/higher), mainly as
a result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of HKD denominated cash
and cash equivalents, deposits and other

receivables balance and other payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
bank borrowings and other borrowing and
bank deposits. Bank borrowings obtained at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk which is partially offset by

bank deposits held at variable rates.

Other borrowing carries a fixed rate interest
which expose the Group to fair value

interest rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rate risk on its variable rate bank
borrowings and bank deposits at the
balance sheet date and prepared assuming
the amount of bank borrowings and bank
deposits outstanding at each balance sheet

date was outstanding for the whole year.

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates
had been 100 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2019, would have been
RMB46,000 higher/lower (2018: RMB52,000
higher/lower), mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on the bank

borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from
related parties, restricted cash, and bank balances
included in the consolidated financial statements
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The
objective of the Group’s measures to manage
credit risk is to control potential exposure to

recoverability problem.

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade
receivables, contract assets, other financial assets
at amortised cost (including deposits and other
receivables and amount due from related parties)
and financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Management considers the Group has
limited credit risk with its banks which are
leading and reputable and are assessed as
having low credit risk. Majority of bank
balances are deposited with reputable
banks. The Group has not incurred
significant loss from non-performance by
these parties in the past and management

does not expect so in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group trades only with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis with the result that the
Group's exposure to bad debts is not

significant.

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by IFRS 9, which permit the use
of lifetime expected loss provision for trade

receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
expected credit loss rates are determined
based on historical credit losses and also

incorporated forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the balance of
loss allowance in respect of these trade
receivables was RMB3,163,000 (2018:
RMB2,474,000) based on expected credit
loss rates up to 100% (2018:100%) applied

on different groupings.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
expected credit losses also incorporated
forward looking information. The Group has
identified the GDP of the countries in which
it sells its goods and services to be the most
relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates based on the expected

changes in this forward-looking factor.

When trade receivables is uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account
for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are

credited against the same line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iif)  Other financial assets at amortised cost

For other financial assets at amortised
costs, the Group considers the probability
of default upon initial recognition of asset
and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis

throughout each reporting period.

Management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual assessment
on the recoverability of the balances
based on historical settlement records,
past experience and forward-looking

information.

To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of default as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following

indicators are incorporated:

o actual or expected significant adverse

changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the

debtors” ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes

in the operating results of debtors
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iif)  Other financial assets at amortised cost

(iv)

(Continued)
o significant increases in credit risk on
other financial instruments of the

same debtor

o significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of
debtors, including changes in the

payment status of the debtor in the

Group and changes in the operating

results of the debtor

Other financial assets at amortised cost
have low risk of default and it is not
expected any losses from non-performance
by the counterparties. As at 31 December
2019, the Group assessed that there is no
significant increase in credit risk for these
balances from the end of previous reporting
date and the expected credit loss rate for
these financial assets is immaterial under 12

months expected credit losses model.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

The Group is also exposed to credit risk
in relation to debt investments that are
measured at fair value through profit or
loss. The maximum exposure at the end of
the reporting period is the carrying amount

of these investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements for
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The
Group invests surplus cash in time deposits
and money market deposits with appropriate
maturities.
RMB143,523,000 and operating cash outflow
of RMB26,269,000 during the year ended
31 December 2019. As at the same date,

The Group reported net loss of

the Group held cash and cash equivalent of
RMB9,753,000 (2018: RMB33,880,000) (Note
15), trade receivables of RMB9,561,000 (2018:
RMB7,858,000) (Note 14) that are expected
to readily generate cash inflows for managing

liquidity risk and to fund the Group's operations.

As at 31
mortgage loans with a repayable on demand
clause amounted to RMB4,640,000 (2018:
RMB6,877,000). Details of the bank borrowings

are disclosed in Note 21(i).

December 2019, the Group has

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has an other
borrowing amounted to RMB1,590,000 (2018:
RMB1,500,000). The balance is unsecured, carries
an interest rate at 6% per annum with a term of

2 years, and is repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO MR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HM¥ERERE (&)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiEERER (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) c) RBELEMR (&)
The table below analyses the Group's financial TRIBRBEHEEBEZES KT
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based HE IERAERE BAEEK
on the remaining period at the balance sheet TRAEE S AHBREEA
date to the contractual maturity date. The RS -RPBRENSER
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BRRMBE RN - ARITIR
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within VB K  R1218 B W EIER
12 months equal their carrying balances, as HAESRESENEREAR A
the impact of discounting is not significant. BmE HREEHA RIS
Specifically, for bank and other borrowing 1T BB 2 KB R IR RV ERTT
which contain a repayment on demand clause REMER - A TR
which can be exercised at the discretion of the EmbEHAE B ER
counterparties, the analysis shows the cash MR RFHRAER -
outflow based on the earliest period in which the
entity can be required to pay.
Less than More than
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years Total
—ENR —-EWE WMERE BENE o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETR
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-N%
+=A=+-8
Trade and other payables B REMERFE 31,236 - 52,000 - 83,236
Bank borrowings RITIER 4,660 - - - 4,660
Other borrowing Hib a3 1,654 = = = 1,654
Amounts due to related parties JERBEATHE 10,473 - - - 10,473
Convertible bonds aRESR - 182,628 - = 182,628
Financial quarantees BB ER
(maximum amount guaranteed) (ZREREHE) 5,430 2,800 9,330 - 17,560
Lease liabilities BEAE 2,865 2,775 3,038 7,368 16,046
56,318 188,203 64,368 7,368 316,257
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\%
+=B=+-8
Trade and other payables BHREMEMFKIE 18,768 - - - 18,768
Bank borrowings RITMER 6,896 - - - 6,896
Other horrowing H 1,500 - - - 1,500
Promissory notes RAZE 4,819 4,819 89,310 - 98,948
Loans from a related party B A B - 93,491 - - 93,491
Amounts due to related parties ERBEATHIE 628 - - - 628
32,611 98,310 89,310 - 220,231
THFERERAR
—E-NFFH}
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HM¥ERERE (&)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiEERER (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) c) RBELERE (&)
The Group's undrawn borrowing facilities were as N5 B [ R IR BB SRR B 40
follows: N
As at As at

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
R=-B-NE R-_F-N\F
+=A +T=A
=+—H =+—~H
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

Fixed rate — expiring within EEFE-—R—FREM
one year - 2,629
Floating rate — expiring within FENAE - —F N E W
one year - 100,000
- 102,629
On 6 April 2020, the Group obtained a RZZFEZZEFMANHE K&
revolving banking facility with a facility limit of ERGERBITHEREEE
RMBS5,900,000 and is available for drawdown for A R #5,900,0007T ' Z @t &
a period up to 20 March 2021. A= —F=A=+HAE

HY o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HBEBEER (&)
(Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

3.2 EXEREE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total assets, as shown in the consolidated

balance sheet.

During the year, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2018, was to maintain the gearing
ratio below 40%. Gearing ratio as at 31 December
2019 is 36.4% (2018: 37.1%).

EEAERE b AEBENHARRR
EARENSBEERELERELE
HBE N BRBBIREHROHR RS
HAF 0 &EH KM A RER R
BRHNEARRBUREEZKA

REFIHREEARRE AEEHK
SRBIRN TRIRAOREE &7
AR E B EAHDREE -

AEERBEEABRLXERE
KB RBAEHEBEERBRAT
ERERRAREESE

AEERFANKEIKEESR
B RERFEIONU T BT
—NEHR-R=FT—hFE+=A
=+ BMEEARBLEAR36.4%
(ZE—NF:371%) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBERERER (&)
(Continued)

3.3 Financial instruments by category

3.3 REREITHNEMTA

2019 2018
ZE-hEF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTF T
Assets as per balance sheet EEEBERMINEE
Financial assets at fair value through ARELEERARSY
profit or loss TRLEE 6,165 6,173
Other financial assets at amortised cost: 1% §5 5% AN 51 BR &9 E 4th
CREE
Trade receivables, deposits and other B RWHIE He &k
receivables H A [l Y RIR 69,560 17,608
Amount due from related parties FEUEE i A T RIE 1,114 820
Restricted cash PR HIER & 1,098 -
Cash and cash equivalents Be kB EEER 9,753 33,880
Total #a st 87,690 58,481
2019 2018
ZE-AE —E)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBETF T
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEEBRAMIINERE
Carried at amortised cost: RS AR
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E b S FRI8 78,407 18,768
Borrowings (EE 6,230 8,377
Promissory notes A E R - 81,552
Loans from a related party 8 Bk 77 {E 5K - 87,132
Amounts due to related parties FET A A T 5B 10,473 628
Convertible bonds A 2 IR R 25 150,669 -
Financial guarantees B IS ER 1,518 =
Lease liabilities HEARE 12,225 =
Total #Et 259,522 196,457
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HM¥ERERE (&)
(Continued)
3.4 Fair value estimation 4 AREME
The carrying amounts of the following financial assets LTeRmEERSRABENEREES
and financial liabilities approximate their fair values HEHQNADEMEE WHBERZE

as all of them are short-term in nature: cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties, trade
and other payables, bank and other borrowings,
amounts due to related parties, financial guarantees,
lease liabilities and convertible bonds. The fair value
of other financial liabilities for disclosure purposes
is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Group for similar financial instruments,

unless the discounting effect is insignificant.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018,
there are certain financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss measured at value in use using discounted
cash flow method which approximate their fair values.
See Note 13 for disclosures relevant to financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018,
there are certain properties held for sale measured
at fair value less cost to sell using direct market
comparable approach and income approach which
are approximate to their fair values. See Note 12 for

disclosures relevant to properties held for sale.

As at 31 December 2019, there are certain biological
assets measured at fair value less cost to sell using
discounted cash flow model which approximate to
their fair values. See Note 10 for disclosures relevant to

biological assets.

HAYBERMEEMY B LA
£%FEEA XRHAL - %%&ﬁ
b W IR - R UK BESE A 508
%&E@Eﬁﬁmlﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂh
o AR A T RIE - IS HER
%E EaERABKRES - LEEM
CHEMERBENRARERAR
SHRERENAEERUSRHT
BERMBRTH SRR AE
HMRTELFEKN-

]]> nn

\

25

A—E—NE+_A=+—8B &R

- N\F+-A=+—H &F
NERKERERARZERHEER
BRI ERNEXREH RN RERE
WEREBEEFE-FEAAEKL
HRARZEMEECEKR &
2R3 -

)

fﬁiﬂHE

=t

- NFE+-_A=+—Ak=
—NFE+_A=t—H8 FTH
f?u%%%%%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%tt@ii&
WA IR A BRI ER A E
BEANAERE - FHELHEMED
HERERMEI2

I

4+

R-ZZE-NLF+_A=+—H
TEMEERAMREeREERX
BRARBERHEEKAGE HAR
RERE - EMEENHBARKRER
BEEE10 o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.5 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities
No disclosure of the offsetting of financial assets
and financial liabilities is made as there is no netting

arrangement in place during the year.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of assets
The Group follows the guidance of IAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” to determine when assets are impaired,
which requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration and extent to which the recoverable
amount of assets is less than their carrying balance,
including factors such as the industry performance
and changes in operational and financing cash flows.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest level for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (a CGU). The
recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
higher of value in use or fair value less cost of disposal.
These calculations require the use of estimates,
including operating results, income and expenses of
the business, future economic conditions on growth

rates and future returns.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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i e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Management of the Group has performed goodwill
impairment review annually on 31 December 2019.
Details of goodwill impairment review are disclosed in
Note 8.

Changes in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount of the assets is based could
significantly affect the Group’s financial position and

results of operations.

Valuation of biological assets

The biological assets are stated at fair values less cost
to sell. This requires an independent valuer’s valuation
of the fair value of the biological assets based on
management’s estimates and assumptions. Changes in
the underlying key assumptions of the valuation could
impact the fair value of the assets. Further details are

disclosed in Note 10.

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

The Group owns an investment in a movie income
right and a network drama which have been classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
The management performed an assessment on the fair
value of the balance based on discounted cash flow
model which required significant estimates, including
the streams of income which the Group is entitled,
determination of appropriate discount rate and
expected timing of settlement. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of the financial assets
at fair value in the period in which such estimate has

been changed.

SO MR

4 BREEITRER (&)

(a)

(b)

EERE (&)
AEEERFR-T—AE+=A
S+ BHEERTEEAER
o HBEBRER T 2 FERM
HS8NHE -

BEABLRSEMRBENERERR
) 5 B m] SR £R 18 O B A O B AR
ERBEERBEATE-

EYEEME
EYEERMERAREBERLERAS
SRR - W D HFEB L GEMERE
BEEMNGRBEREENEEZR
REMG-HENHBEIERRE
BRRHEEN IR BEELERE -
BRFRRMEI0RTE -

AAERERRARZEME
EfhE
AEEREE-HEX WaE Rk 1A
MBI DR E ZRFREW
BRAAAERBEaRARZIER
BEE-EHERUARSAEEA
RSSO ARE KHFTEEX
et BRASEEEZE KA
KR BEARENBRERBERE
B - WIBHA RN RAMEET - &
ZREBTERREHEHHMERL
REJRZEREEZRHEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(d)

Valuation of properties held for sale

The Group owns certain properties held for sale which
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. In absence of current price in
an active market for similar properties which is the best
evidence of fair value, the management determined
the amount within a range of reasonable fair values
estimates. In making its estimates, the management
considers information from the valuations of properties
performed by external professional valuer by (i)
direct market comparable approach, including the
assumptions of the adjusting factors regarding to the
location, size and nature of the properties; and (ii)
income approach, including the assumptions of the
expected rent income, growth rate and discount rate to
determine the fair value. Had the Group used different
inputs or assumptions, the fair value of the properties
would be different and thus caused impact to the
consolidated income statement. Details of the valuation

of properties held for sale are disclosed in Note 12.

Impairment of trade and other receivables and
contract assets

The Group recognises impairment provisions based
on expected credit losses model. The model involves
the assessment on the probability of default on the
balances based on historical settlement records,
past experience and forward-looking information.
Impairment is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes. The identification of probability of
default requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Details of key assumptions and inputs used are

disclosed in Note 3.1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

5

(f)

Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
income tax provision and deferred income tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination

is made.

REVENUE

Revenue from external customers are mainly derived from

the provision of newspaper advertising services to advertisers

in the PRC, the provision of marketing and consulting

services, printing services and sales of agricultural products.

The total sales amount of the Group's five largest customers
is RMB26,713,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: RMB18,642,000). An analysis of the Group's revenue

for the year is as follows:

SO MR

4 BREETRER (&)

() FrEM
REBFTEREREBMMAER-
EEMGHERR mf”EﬁEK#'J
o EE%%V BRBEFE
kitEes @Z%’ﬁu\ﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬂjﬁ*ﬁﬁ’]
MEETE - WMEAEREKKROTEB
HEREAZYZANSEIR AIZ
EEHEVEFELET AR
FTSHBEURETEMEHEER
BfE-

PN
REINEE P WA £ ZIRRA [ B E
%%ﬁ%ﬁfﬁ&i&?ﬂﬁ%%&%fﬁé&
B BARE ERIRBEREERER-
ﬁi:;fh¢+:ﬂz+f5¢¢
F'$’$£T\%§J5Fﬂ£$ﬁ’§%@§§%/\
R#26,713,000T (ZZE—\F: AR%
18,642,0007T) ozlS%liﬁwz)\ﬂﬂzu
T

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBTF T

Newspaper advertising WEES 4,376 6,952
Marketing and consulting services &5 R AR TS 23,813 39,498
Printing services E Rl AR 75 4,408 4,765
Sales of agricultural products HE RE m 87,265 2,892
Others HAth 2,512 909
122,374 55,016

THERERA A
—E-NFER

g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

5 REVENUE (Continued) 5 WA(E&)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEF T
Timing of revenue recognition g 25 7 3R B

- At a point in time — 3 (B 115,225 39,912
— Over time — [ B 5,149 14,195

— Under IFRS16 — 1R B B B s i 5 E A
E165% 2,000 909
122,374 55,016

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no

customer of the Group accounted for more than 10% of the

Group’s revenue.

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with

customers

The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities

related to contracts with customers:

RBE_Z-NAFER-_ZFT-N\F+_HA
=t+—BLEFE HBERELAKENEFS
B ABEARBUANI0% °

BEFENHEBZEERAR

AEECHRBUATERTFANHEBRCE
ERBE:

2019 2018

—E—hEF —E—)N\F

RMB’‘000 RMB'000

ARE TR AREF T

Contract assets (Note (i) EHEE (HEG)) 3,891 2,224
Less: Provision for impairment (Note (ii)) R E RS (B EEG)) (147) (51)
Contract assets — net EHNEE—F5 3,744 2,173
Contract liabilities (Note (iii) and Note 20) EHaE (M sEG) XM EE20) 6,717 5,649
Total contract liabilities EHaERzE 6,717 5,649
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ENUE (Continued)

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with

customers (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Contract assets represent the Group’s right to consideration
in the exchange for services that the Group has transferred
to customer. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the right to bill the customer has established
and receipt of the consideration is conditional only on the

passage of time.

The Group expects that contract assets have the same risk

characteristics as trade receivables.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses (Note 3.1(b)). As at 31 December 2019,
a provision of RMB147,000 (2018: RMB51,000) was made
against the gross amount of contract assets. The impairment

of contract assets is disclosed in Note 2.12.

Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance of non-

refundable payments made by customers.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue, which
was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning
of the year, recognised during the year relates to carried-

forward contract liabilities.

Revenue recognised that was included in the
[EEEON

contract liability balance at the beginning of

the year

SO MR

5 WA (&)
BEFENHEB2EERAE ()

(i)

(iii)

SEAFTENBERZRZ

BHEEEASEHNAREERTE
PR ZBRBHRER -8 mE P UK
B4 A B #E S B (B FOR (2 B8 B DR
MBI aNEEREEE 5 E KK
I8 o

AEERBANEERER S REFIER
A 18 [ R R A o

REBEFABOEEEREEBREED
B (HaE3.1(b)) cR=ZFE—hE+=
A=+—HB HRENEELBELRE
AR#147,000T (ZE—N\F: AR
51,0007T ) BB - & K& ERER KT
2128 % -

AMBREERESPEETTRENRK
A1 MR H0 20 -

BENBBEBRINHBA
TRINTFAMEREEESNBER
HORASR (EFAFTANAERS
£2) e

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZET-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBF T
521 1,092
THFERERAR
—E-NFFH}

177



178

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

5 REVENUE (Continued)
Assets and liabilities related to contracts with

customers (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)  Unsatisfied performance obligations
The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations

resulting from newspaper advertising services contracts:

Newspaper advertising services AR S RS

Management expects the above unsatisfied (or partially
satisfied) contracts will be recognised as revenue

during the next reporting period.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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(iv)

HARBITZBROERME

TRITBRESRE A HELEZ R

BITRAOEE:

2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
AR¥T

6,717

2018
—ZT—)N\F
RMB'000
AR T T
5,649

BEEEMN LA RET (HEHD
BIT)MEHENT —REHHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Description of segments and principal activities

The Executive Directors have been identified as the
CODM. Management has determined the operating
segments based on the information reviewed by the
CODM for the purposes of allocating resources and

assessing performance.

During the year, the Group adjusted its organisation
structure into two business segments, namely (i)
Publishing and advertising segment and (ii) Tourism and
integrated developments segment. The comparative

information has been restated accordingly.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of earnings
before interest, other income, other loss and income
tax. This measurement basis excludes the effects of
non-recurring expenditure from operating segments.
Interest income and finance cost are not allocated
to segments, as this type of activity is driven by the
central treasury function, which manages the cash
position of the Group. No analysis of segment assets
and liabilities is regularly provided to the Executive

Directors.

As the CODM considers most of the Group’s
consolidated revenue and results are attributable to the
market in the PRC and the Group’s consolidated assets
are substantially located in the PRC, no geographical

information is presented.

6
(a)
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PEREEXRBH B

HITEFSHRATRAREERR
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BHEFHEEEL-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Segment revenue and segment results

As at 31 December 2019, the Executive Directors

considered the nature of the Group’s business and

determined that the Group has two reportable

operating segments as follows:

(i)

(i)

Publishing and advertising segment, which mainly
included provision of the advertising services,
marketing and consulting services, and printing

services.

Tourism and integrated developments segment,
which mainly included provision of tourism and
integrated services through its media, resort and
eco-tourism integrated development projects and
the sale of agricultural products, including the
Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project, Yongtai
Distinctive Town and Cooperation Project in

Yongfu Town.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Segment revenue and segment results

(Continued)

The table below shows the segment results and other

segment items provided to the Executive Directors

for the reportable segments for the year ended 31

6 DEER (&)

b) 2ERARSEEE (H)

TRANTREZ-_ZFE—NLF+=-A
=t HIEERERDFERET
WTES 2o BEXEREMoEE

December 2019. H o
Tourism and
integrated  Publishing and
developments advertising Total
MR
BARE LR ES st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETL AREFT
Segment revenue from RENBEFHD BN =
external customers 91,267 31,107 122,374
Timing of revenue recognition W g T R B ]
At a point in time FERE 87,509 27,716 115,225
Over time BE s ] 1,758 3,391 5,149
Under IFRS16 1R 15 B BR 1 75 4 25 2 Bl 1 655 2,000 = 2,000
Share of losses of an associate i ArNGl - (1,366) (1,366)
Segment results NEER (85,167) (37,737) (122,904)
Other income Hepl A 336
Other loss Hib & (82)
Finance costs — net PR A — 558 (25,970)
Loss before income tax BRETERAER (148,620)
Income tax credit FrETiik % 5,097
Loss for the year EnEE (143,523)
BRERAF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6

The table below shows the segment results and other

TEEN (&)

182

segment items provided to the Executive Directors for the

reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2018.

TRITBE=E-NF+=A=1—
7]

HIEFRER2HR
DEEENEMORIAR -

PRREHRTATES

Tourism and
integrated  Publishing and
developments advertising Total
MR
REER R ES st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETL AREF T
Segment revenue from external RENFE P E R E
customers 9,280 45,736 55,016
Timing of revenue recognition W g T R B ]
At a point in time FERE 3,801 37,020 40,821
Over time BE s ] 5,479 8,716 14,195
Share of losses of an associate e (R B &N B 1R - (165) (165)
Segment results NEER (16,514) (141,146) (157,660)
Other income Heb e A 917
Finance costs — net B A — 358 (7,149)
Loss before income tax BRETERAIER (163,892)
Income tax expense EHAX (705)
Loss for the year FRER

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the

same as the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO MR

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 YME - BRERZE
Fixture,
Land and Construction  Leasehold furniture and Motor  Exhibition
buildings in progress improvement ~ Machinery  equipment vehicles animals Total
HENZ %E.
IHERF  ERIRE k8 BE BLRRE RE  REDN @it

RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBOOD  RMB'OOD  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTT ARETT AR%BTn  ARETR ARETR ARBTn ARMTT ARETR

At 1 January 2018

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment losses

Net carrying amount

Year ended 31 December 2018

Opening net carrying amount

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Acquisition of assets through
acquisition of a subsidiary

Additions

Transfer

Disposals

Depreciation (Note 26)

Impairment

Currency translation differences

Closing net carrying amount

At 31 December 2018

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment losses

Net carrying amount

R=2-NF-A-A
A 4,681 - 8,104 3,13 8,770 6,720 - 60,398
ZEtiE (234) - (4,636) (27,912) (6,158) (5,021) - (43,961)
ZitHEES - - - (1,730) - - - (1,730)
REFE 4,447 - 3,468 2,481 2,612 1,699 - 14,707
BE-E-0%

TZA=t-HBLEE
FNREFE 4,447 - 3,468 2,481 2,612 1,699 - 14,707
KENBAR 16,900 - - - - - - 16,900
FRNE-ENBAR

YEaE - - - - 707 - 4,293 5,000
hE 24,567 7,597 1737 - 45) 220 - 34,573
&3 3418 - - - - - - 3418
i = = - - (1) - - (1)
R (675) - (1,732) (679) (455) (600) (143) (4,284)
RfE - - (1,227) (1,802) - - - (3,029)
EEnEEE - - 83 - 52 17 - 152
FREEFE 48,657 7,597 2,329 - 3,357 1336 4,150 67,426
R=Z-N\§+=H=t-H
KR 49,565 7,597 10,071 32,13 9,675 6,970 4,293 120,294
ZiHE (908) - (6,515) (28,591) (6,318) (5,634) (143) (48,109)
ZiWERS - - (1,227) (3,532) - - - (4,759)
BEFE 48,657 7,597 2,329 - 3,357 1,336 4,150 67,426
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

7 WME- -BMER®RE(E)

(Continued)
Fixture, Mature  Immature
Land and Construction  Leasehold furniture and Motor  Exhibition bearer bearer
buildings  in progress improvement ~ Machinery  equipment vehicles animals plants plants Total
BENE £E KA it RHA
THRET  HBIR E1 BE kR RE REDY ERREM ERREN fit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-S-NF
tZAZt-RLEE
Opening net carrying amount ENERTFE 48,657 7,597 2329 - 3357 1,336 4,150 - - 67,426
Additions RE - 12,171 2,101 - CIN 187 - 5,585 10,048 31,009
Transfer E+ - (4363) 4363 - - - - - - -
Disposals e - - (604) = (25 - - - - (629)
Depreciation (Note 26) 1% (Hfi20) (1,4%9) = (1,514) = (834) (591) (859) (137) = (5,434)
Impairment AE - - (969) - (966) @n) - - - (2,208)
Currency translation differences EHBEER - - 3 - il 5 - - - 4
Closing net carrying amount EXRAFE 47,158 15,411 5,738 - 2,454 664 3,291 5,448 10,048 90,212
At 31 December 2019 RZB-0F
t=A=t-8
Cost B 49,565 15411 10,777 3213 10,589 JANA 4293 5,585 10,048 145,562
Accumulated depreciation itiE (2,407) = (4,070) (28,591) (7,169) (6,234) (1,002) (137) - (49,610)
Accumulated impairment losses 2 RERE - - (969) (353 (966) (273) - - - (5,740)
Net carrying amount EEFE 47158 15,411 5,738 - 2,454 664 3,291 5,448 10,048 90,212

During the year ended 31 December 2018, certain buildings
with net book value of RMB3,418,000 were transferred from

properties held for sale.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation of the Group's property, plant and equipment
has been charged to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

SO MR

M- BERRE (&)

AEBHYE BERREBNEDIE TS
FRAREHEEBERING

2019 2018

—E-AE —T-N\F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET ARETF T

Cost of sales HE KA 137 1,192
General and administrative expenses —BRITHBAX 5,297 3,092
Total #ast 5,434 4,284

The Group recognised an impairment charge reflecting
the aggregate difference totaling RMB2,208,000 (2018:
RMB3,029,000) for these property, plant and equipment.
These impairment charges for the year ended 31
December 2019 were recorded in the Group’s consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within “General and

administrative expenses” (Note 26).

REERZEYE  BE KRR ERRRE
REFTEREHRER X AK®2,208,000
7T (ZF—/)\F: AR%3,029,0007T) °
HE-_Z-hEt+-_A=+—HBILEE"
ZERERIGFALREBREHEZE KR
=H [ — M RITEFAS] A (KaE26) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

2 5
8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 EEEE
Township
Computer Non-compete Customer Rightto  operation
software  agreement  Goodwill relationships  Trademark ~ Website a land lease right Total
MEER
E EGIES £ BR  EFRE [l /% thEgE Fd-L @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2018 R=%-N§-A-B
Cost A 3127 11,500 12,573 14,500 9,400 8476 - - 59,576
Accumulated amortisation ZitHH (2,665 (11,500) - (14,500 (6,655) (8,476) - - (43,79%)
Accumulated impairment losses 2ithEsE (410) - (12,573) - (2,265) - - - (15,248)
Net carrying amount REFE 5 - - - 430 - - - 53
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-2-0\%
t2AZt-ALEE
Opening net carrying amount BREFR 5 - - - 480 - - - 532
Additions AE 1 - - - - - - 28,000 28,012
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEREAR - - 66,058 - - - 193,439 - 259,497
Amortisation (Note 26) £ (It26) () - - - (480) - 317 (4n) (4,129
Closing net carrying amount FREAFE 57 = 66,058 = - = 190,268 27,529 283,912
At 31 December 2018 R=B-NE+ZB=1-A
Cost A 3,139 11,500 78,631 14,500 9,400 8,476 193,439 28,000 347,085
Accumulated amortisation 238 (2,672) (11,500) - (14,500) (7,135) (8,476) (3171) (4n) (47,925)
Accumulated impairment losses 2 HEER (410) - (12,573) - (2,265) - - - (15,248)
Net carrying amount FRFE 57 - 66,058 - - - 190,268 27,529 283,912
Township
Computer Non-compete Customer Rightto  operation
software  agreement  Goodwill relationships ~ Trademark ~ Website a land lease right Total
MEER
£ LU R B2  EFBE [ B IHEEE feR @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARET:R
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-Z-AF
TZAZt-BLEE
Opening net carrying amount ENRATFE 57 - 66,058 - - - 190,268 27529 283912
Additions hE 8 = = = = = = - 8
Acquisition of subsidiaries WK EAT - - 3,955 - - - - - 3955
Amortisation (Note 26) #4 (I126) (6) - - - - - (4,757) (705) (5,468)
Impairment AE - - (66,058) - - - - - (66,058)
Closing net carrying amount ERRAFR 59 - 3955 - - - 185,511 26,824 216,349
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
t-A=t-H
Cost A 3,146 11,500 82,586 14,500 9,400 8,476 193,439 28,000 351,047
Accumulated amortisation ZitH (2,676 (11,500) - (14,500 (7,135) (8.476) (7.928) (1,176  (53391)
Accumulated impairment losses ZitHEER (411) - (78,631) - (2,265) - - - (81,307)
Net carrying amount FHFE 59 - 3,955 = - = 185,511 26,824 216,349

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to

“General and administrative expenses”

in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

SO MR

8 /\\\ﬁ/ﬁ% (I%E)
BV EERFECERAHEERERN—
AR EATHF S ] A -

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been RREBARMES BEEIEZE TR
allocated to the cash generating units as summarised below: EEBA:
Acquisition
Opening  of subsidiaries Impairment Closing
3] KEHEAT A EX
HK$ RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BT AREFT ARETT ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2019 HEZ-Z2-N%
+-A=t-ALEE
Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project ERAERBENER (M)
(Note (i) 66,058 - (66,058) -
Cooperative project in Yongfu Town KEEAEEA
(Note (ii) (it Gi)) - 3,955 - 3,955
66,058 3,955 (66,058) 3,955
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE2-E-N\%
TZAZt-BLEE
Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project T RATRSERER
(Note (i) (P55 - 66,058 - 66,058
(i) Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project (i) EtERAEBSFEMREER
During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, BHE_Z-N\FR_ZE-NAF+=

the basis of determining the recoverable amount of the

cash generating unit (“CGU") and the major underlying

assumptions are summarised below:

A=+T—HLEFE BEREELE

B ([ReELEEM])ATKE S
AR F 2HEBREN T XX
7 :
THERERAD A
T -NEFFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

8

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(i)

Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project
(Continued)

The recoverable amount was determined based on
estimating the higher of the CGU’s value in use and its

fair value less cost of disposal.

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount
was determined based on fair value less cost of
disposal method. That calculation uses the asset-based
approach, which the key assumption includes the

adjusted land unit rate.

As at 31 December 2018, the recoverable amount was
determined based on fair value less cost of disposal
method. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the Directors
covering a 5-year period, and at a post-tax discount
rate of 14.16%. The cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a constant growth rate of

3% per annum.

The recoverable amount was determined based
on level 2 in the fair value hierarchy for the year
ended 31 December 2019, while for the year ended
31 December 2018, the recoverable amount was
determined based on level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.
Change in valuation technique is due to delay in
timeline and changes in market condition, resulting
in a higher recoverable amount using the asset-based
approach than the calculation based on the discounted

cash flow projections.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

8

FANYY ﬁ/ﬁ% ( n )

(i)

A E e RRReELE BN 2 F A
EBEEZEQAER L EKAREF
2B & b

R-ZFB-NF+=-_A=+—0'H
Y m & B IR N BRI &R A LE
E-ZiBEREEEWE HI2
BRREELHE LB ER-

W—ZE—NEFE+-_A=+—8 7
Wl & FEE R AL ER L ERAE
BT AR EDNERAERESH
HEHMEEENRAEHRESRER

Bl AR R 12 B IR 14,16 %5t
E-BBARFHNReRECHE
EFEBERINHEEL

BE-_FT-hhFt+-_A=+—H
LEE - AAREeBERALERE
ERFNE_RBEE MEE_FT
—N\F+t_A=t—HLEFEAK
CeBEARLERESRPHE=
METE - HERME TR ERE
IERREEE N RE S EHER
BEEAMFEENAIKRE S E SR
ERUERRERETWATE Z AT
[ & 58 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, due to delay in timeline
and changes in market condition, management of
the Group has revised its business plan for this CGU
and determined that the provision for impairment of
goodwill amounted to RMB66,058,000 (2018: Nil). The
entire goodwill arising from the acquisition of Supreme
Glory Limited had been impaired as at 31 December
2019.

Management has performed sensitivity analysis for
business of Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project by
adjusting the adjusted land unit rate 5% more than or
less than the based estimate. Based on the sensitivity
analysis, should adjusted land unit rate increase or
reduce by 5% over the base case, the recoverable
amount of the CGU would be approximately
RMB7,800,000 higher or RMB6,253,000 lower than

the current estimate amount.

Cooperative project in Yongfu Town

During the year ended 31 December 2019, goodwill
amounting to RMB3,955,000 was recognised as a
result of acquisition of Zhang Ping Nong Bo Hui New
Specialized Farmers’ Cooperative. Goodwill has been
allocated to the CGU that operates the cooperative
project in Yongfu Town for the purpose of impairment

testing.

As at 31 December 2019, management of the Group
determined that there were no impairment of the CGU

to which the goodwill has been allocated.

SO MR

8 FANYY ﬁ/ﬁ% ( n )

(i)

(ii)

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—HB" @&
REHRREERTREE ~EE
EREEERZBASELENN
EBE - WEEEHBREREA
R %66,058,0007T (= Z — /\&F :
ﬂ%%%ﬁ%ﬁ@“i?imﬁ*
HEER-_ZT-—AE+=-A=+—
HIRE °

EEECHILRARAREMNESR
MEBETRRESN A ARA
BGABR LB A ERRRIER
EREEET5% c ERGRBE D 4
AR BN ERRERERLE
R TBE% AR S EEBMAA]
WEeEHERIERE AT S
4 AR %7,800,0007T 3 A R
6,253,0007T °

KEHEHFEEE
HE-_T-h&+=A=+—H
LtEE RKBETREERR
BESXAEHERBBEARE
3,955,0007TC LR E RIS M = - &
BESREELEKBRAIEEAW
ReEEBMN-

R-ZFB-AF+-_A=+—HB &
SEEEERTEMECHEAEN
ReESBMHBERIE-

m



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

@ PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 9 HEMNRE -BRERHMEWRK
RECEIVABLES b |
2019 2018
—E-AE —T-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET ARETF T
Non-current portion FEREE D
Prepayment for township development /NEFAEEIE B M TE N RRIE
(Note (i) (B REG) ) 17,000 22,000
Prepayment for property, plant and equipment %% - i = & 55 & B 1 5/ 1B 9,991 11,761
Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary W g — Al BT B & R TR AT 5K IB - 3,000
Other prepayment H b I8 FKIE 4,209 =
Deposits for marketing and EHHRMIGHEERES ONIRE
promotion contracts (Note (ii)) ( B RE (i) ) 52,000 -
Rental deposits Meks 438 428
Other deposits HEfbhiz e - 500
83,638 37,689
Current portion T B E D
Prepayments TE T FRIE 3,284 772
Rental deposit Helke 500 4,120
Deposits and other receivables e K& E b fE IR SR8 6,061 4,701
9,845 9,593

The carrying amounts of the Group's prepayments, deposits

and other receivables are denominated in the following

AEBHIENIE RE M E M RUKFIR

MEREENA T IIE®EE:

currencies:
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—N\EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
RMB AR 93,045 43,405
HK$ BT 438 3,877
93,483 47,282

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

@ PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(i)

Prepayment for township development

Pursuant to the framework agreement entered into by
the Group with Yongtai Government on 15 September
2017, Yongtai Government agreed to form a long-term
strategic cooperation with the Group regarding the
development and operation of the Township Project.
Under the framework agreement, the Group shall pay
a deposit of RMB50,000,000 to Yongtai Government,
which was intended to be utilised for participating in
open tender auctions to be organised by the Yongtai
Government for land use rights, assets, grant of lease
and/or operation rights circulation within the project

site.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
entered into an operation right agreement with the
Yongtai Government for the acquisition of a 40-years’
exclusive operation right to develop, construct, manage
and operate commercial activities such as tourism,
sightseeing, resort, culture, sports and entertainment
in the operation site at a consideration of
RMB28,000,000. The consideration of RMB28,000,000
was deducted from the RMB50,000,000 refundable
deposit placed by the Group with Yongtai Government
under the framework agreement. The prepayment of
RMB28,000,000 had been utilised upon completion of
the acquisition on 19 April 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the remaining amount of
RMB17,000,000 (2018:RMB22,000,000) is intended to
be utilised for township development and is classified

as a prepayment for township development.

9 BAXKE

SO MR

BT R E B

5 (%)

(i)

NEEBRBENENRIE
BEAEBEXFERRAR-F
—+tFNAT+HEBIZIERR
BOOKEBNREMAZERESE
NETEE AR ET R ALK
MEERER - BBRERBRE ~&
EEmkERBENZMiEE ARK
50,000,0007T, - #& Fi 7 2 85k T ]
FIHS SR P e A 18 BB ab ) L3 (5
e BE HERTR/SELRE
MEHARBEAE-

BHz_T—+t&F+=-A=+—H
HFE AEBHEXFBRNG L
—EREERE N ABRNE
A0EBRECERE IR E &
1T B HE bR B BOK - E R
Xt BERREENNRE 2
HEREREMEELRYD RER
A R #28,000,0007T - R BEAR¥E
28,000,0007T f& B 7~ & B AR IR AE 42
BEAKRBAE ORISR
& A R %50,000,0007T 7 F1 Bk - 8
3B A R #28,000,0007T & & 7
WEEEE_T—/\FHEA+TIA
TEREER -

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—H #
TiE& AR%17,000,000T (=&
—N\F : AR¥22,000,0007T) #t A
R/ANRIEE M WHEEANDER
BIEEMTEMRIE-

THFERERAR
—E-NFER

g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

9

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(i) Deposits for marketing and promotion contracts
As at 31 December 2019, deposits for marketing
and promotion contracts represent cash paid by the
Group to a property developer in the PRC in relation to
exclusive marketing and promotion services agreements
between the Group and the property developer.
Pursuant to the agreements, the Group has obtained
rights as the sole marketing and promotion services
provider for two real estate development projects
owned by the property developer for terms of 3 years
over the selling period of the real estate development
projects. These deposits will, amongst other terms and

conditions, be repayable to the Group after the Group

meet the sales target as stated in the agreements.

9 FENFIE- -ZRETRHMEKRRK

15 (#&)

(i) EHERTBEBESINZRS
R-_ZE—AEFE+-_A=+—H8 %
HEMGHEES MRS ERAEH
MAEE Y ER BRI L ZBR
IR TISHE ERS A B —
EYERENZINNERS - RIBZ
EhE ASBERYEREEME
BEHMEEHMERZIEEBEER
FEiEMZEIEE HE AR K —2
$H N Th % 1 B AR IS TR AL RO RE T
REB=F RAEEEINZEHE
FrolBRRISHE B 1218 R Eike
(LA R AR BR E A AR TR R k1 ) (B T
NEE-

10 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Biological assets comprise golden camellia flowers growing

on trees.

10 £MEE

EMEEBRIEAM EERNEIER-

2019 2018

—E-hE —T-N\F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET ARETF T

At 1 January R—H—H - -

Changes in fair value due to biological HREDELEH 2

transformation NREES 239 -

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 239 -

As at 31 December 2019 there were approximately 120,000 BE_Z-—NWF+_A=+—HB HF

of golden camellia trees plantations. During the year ended 120,000k S ERAB - BEZT —NF

31 December 2019, the Group has not harvested any of +-—A=+—HItFE KNEE® AWK
these flowers. REER -

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)

The Group’s biological assets as at 31 December 2019 were
valued by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited,
an independent professionally qualified valuer who holds a

recognised relevant professional qualification.

The fair value of golden camellia flowers is determined using
a discounted cash flow model based on the expected flower
yield by certain management estimates and judgments
after allowing for harvesting costs, and other costs yet to
be incurred in getting the flowers for sale. Estimates and
judgement in determining the fair value of the golden
camellia growing on trees include the volume and stages
of maturity of the golden camellia flowers, expected selling

price and the discount rates.

The biological assets were classified as Level 3 under the fair
value hierarchy. There were no transfer between any levels

during the year.

The Group’s management reviewed the valuations
performed by the independent valuer for financial reporting
purposes. The management reported directly to the
directors. Discussions of valuation processes and results were

held between management and the valuer.

The management and the directors verified major inputs to
the independent valuation reports and held discussion with
the independent valuer on the valuation basis, processes and

results.

SO MR

10 £MEE (&)

FBERERAEXREBNBLEREER
HEMEAEENHMERERAT
BAEEBEE_T-NAEF+_-_HA= +—
BzEYBEELETHE

RN AEERETEERES AR
ERARKIERFEHERS TEENE
m&ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%&%%
fAhmTEBER KSR ERAMRARER
EEAEE- #mEEﬁLiﬁmé%
RAERELNGEFT RABBESER
WEERKARR FEHEENMREREK

ARV

EYMEESBRAREBERBEFANE =
A o S AR B AR O A R o

RYBREENME  AREEEEDE
BB A EMETHRE EEEERR
ExRms EEERGEMBBERFR

REREITRIM ©

EREENREEEEBUAEMBSENE
2 ABBY BB EEM A WA EE
Z;g N %iﬁ&mﬂ

THERERA A
—E-NFER

g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

1T INVENTORIES 11 78
2019 2018
ZE-NF —ZE-)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREEF T
Newsprint and printing consumables I 4% K2 BV Rl B % an 774 1,420
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included BRAFXWAA [HEKR] NFEK
in “Cost of sales” amounted to RMB2,819,000 (2018: KA ANKE®2,819,000T (ZF— \&F:
RMB3,621,000). AR #3,621,0007T) °
12 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 12 HEHEWE
The Group's properties held for sale includes the following: REENBIELEMEBRFEATIEAR
2019 2018
—EB-NEF —EN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREEF T
Properties held for sale FIEHEWE 25,386 24,622

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

The properties in the PRC were received in exchange of
advertising services to real estate developers in the PRC. The
Group's intention is to sell these properties and, accordingly,
such rights are recognised as properties held for sale upon
the completion of the advertising sales transaction if the

related properties are ready to be sold.

Management assessed the fair value less costs to sell of
the properties with reference to their market value with
the assistance of an independent property valuer. Valuation
methodologies used in the valuation included direct market
comparable approach and income approach which are within
Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy respectively.
For direct market comparable approach, observable inputs
other than quoted prices within Level 1 included market
price of comparable properties adjusted having regard to
the location, size and nature of the properties (Level 2). For
income approach, unobservable inputs included expected
rent income, growth rate and discount rate (Level 3). There
were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for recurring
fair value measurements during the year. For the year ended
31 December 2019, the management compared the carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell of the properties
and considered no further impairment provision is necessary

(2018: RMB4,252,000) (Note 26).

Cash flows associated with the disposal of properties held
for sale are presented under “Operating activities” in the
consolidated statement of cash flows. The gain or loss on
disposal and impairment loss of properties held for sale are
recorded in “General and administrative expenses” in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

SO MR

12 HEHEWE (K)

TEYEIRATEFHERERRER
EERGERG - AEEH BN RHEZ
EFWE AL BHEMETHLE A
BRBNRERESHERIKER R
FIELHEME-

EEE2BYWENTEIGEAABER
EHERAK - ETANGEREREER
BEMSLBUERKEE IO RIBR AR
BERBERNE_RE=R -BEETS
LhBEME  ATBRRB AR (E—&K
BRERIN) BEAELRMENTE -
ERERMESMS X/ NREEEL AR
(BZR) - HMEEME - TAIBRE A
BEEEHHAERA - BRERTRE
(F=8) REFHERAAREBEFTEMS
FRNE—R B_R/RE=HzELEHE
B-RNEBE-_T-hWF+=-A=+—81L
FE EEEBCLHBYENRRERAR
BERHERAE  RAEBAELE—DRE
BiE (- N\F: AK¥4,252,0007T)
(KtzE26) -

BRLERIFLENENRSRERS
HAETRERIELEH] T2 -HE
FIEHEMENRBEXEBRFELE
MENBEBREAHEHNRERN[—
A M ATHF ] ARCER -

THERERA A
—E-NFER

g
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13 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

13 PRAERKESRARNEEME

i

2019 2018

—E-AE —E-N\F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR T AREETF T

Investment in a network drama — PRI SN E 6,165 6,173

On 8 May 2018, the Group acquired an investment in a
network drama through the acquisition of subsidiaries.
Pursuant to the investment agreement on 22 May 2017,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Supreme Glory Limited
acquired 20% of the income right in a network drama for a
consideration of RMB6,000,000.

The fair value estimation of the investment was based on
the cash flows discounted using a rate based on the market
interest rate and risk premium specific to the investment.
Significant unobservable inputs involved in the fair value
measurement included the expected timing of settlement
and discount rate, which are within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
for recurring fair value measurements during the year ended
31 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, a fair value loss
of RMB8,000 relating to the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss was recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (2018: a fair value gain
of RMB228,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

14 TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET 14 ESERFIE-FH
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREEF T
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 12,724 10,331
Less: provision for impairment of trade B 5 EMGRIB R E R
receivables (3,163) (2,473)
Trade receivables — net B 5 W RIE —F 9,561 7,858
The payment terms with customers are mainly cash on EPEZREENIRRIARE AT
delivery and on credit. The credit periods range from 30 EEHRNFIELEBIEES A& R%E30
days to 365 days after the end of the month in which the HZE365A T & - NEBME F FEWGRIE
relevant sales occurred. Aging analysis of the Group’s trade BEZEZAHNERRITAT :

receivables based on invoice date was as follows:

2019 2018
—F-hF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
1 — 30 days 1230H 8,486 3,942
31 - 60 days 31£260H 112 780
61 — 90 days 61290H 84 470
91 — 180 days 912180H 118 954
181 — 365 days 1812365H 1,068 1,800
Over 1 year —F Ak 2,856 2,385
12,724 10,331

Less: provision for impairment of trade B 5 WGRIE R (B B
receivables (3,163) (2,473)
Trade receivables — net B 5 FEWGRIE — F58 9,561 7,858

THERARDA
—E-NFER e

g
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14 TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in RMB.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract
assets. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation

of the allowance.

As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables of
RMB3,163,000 (2018: RMB2,473,000) were impaired and
provided for. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
amounts of the provision charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income were RMB690,000
(2018: adjustment to provision recognised as a gain in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of
RMB607,000).

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their
carrying amounts are considered to be the same as their fair

value.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, trade receivables
of RMB2,191,000 (2018: RMB10,878,000) were directly
written-off to the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

14 EZBWRIE-FHE (&)

R 5 0 O PR DA R
s

N5 B3R BIBR B %5 S Rl B 95R AY
Bl A ERMEEER HMAE
FRRFBERAHNEEEREHERE
BRE FREBRGBHEZFRIARNME
3.1(b) °

RZZ—NAF+ZA=1+—H BIREK
B AR 3,163,000 (=2 — N\ &F:
}\Eﬁfﬁz 473,0007T ) BB E R B
HE_ZT-NF+_A=+—BLFE"
ﬁééfﬁ%@l&z x & MR E’J%éﬁ %Ez%/\
K ¥690,000L (ZZE—N\F :R&EH2
U 2 R R A W = z}ﬁéﬁﬂ%tﬁ)\
R #¥607,0007T) °

BN E R EWSRRNERIEE - AREE
B ERE R AEMRR -

BE_ZT-NF+A=+—HLFE"
HEARK2,191,000t (ZT— N\ F:
AR #10,878,0007T) 2 & S EWHIBE
BERA M2 ERERMEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO MR

14 TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET (Continued) 14 €5 FEWR0E— 58 (®)

Movements on the Group's provision for impairment on

trade receivables are as follows:

AEEEZRERWAERERENZE SN
N

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥®T R ARBTF T

At 1 January Rn—H—H 2,473 13,752

Changes in accounting policies GETBURE - 206
Net change in provision for impairment of B 5 e W RIE R E BB

trade receivables B E)F R (690) (607)

Receivables written off JE Ui 3 TE i 8 - (10,878)

At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 3,163 2,473

The provision for/(reversal of provision for) impairment
of trade receivables have been included in “General and
administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

B o RERIERERE (BERED)E
AAGRHEEKRERN—REITHRA
X]A-

R B 3 5 A AR R EHE AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are denominated in

the following currencies:

15 RERBITHER

AEEMNBREERASEEIER AT
WU

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETT

Cash at bank and on hand: IRITRFEE S
Denominated in RMB UARESHE
Denominated in HKD LA TTEHE
Denominated in USD LAZETLEHE
Maximum exposure to credit risk SESEER Y0

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rate. The carrying amounts of the cash at

bank approximate their fair values.

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign

exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

9,253 16,036
493 2,372
7 15,472
9,753 33,880
9,708 33,751
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO MR

16 SHARE CAPITAL 16 B
Equivalent
Nominal  nominal value
Number of value of of ordinary Share
ordinary shares ordinary shares shares premium Total
EERHA LEREE EERSEDE BB EE @
HK$ RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BT ARBTT ARETTL ARBTT
Authorised: R
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at RZZ-NE-A-Ak
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2018 Z2-\FTZA=1-H
(Note (a)) SRERIBTHL AR
(Hizt(a)) 10,000,000,000 0.1
Capital Reorganisation (Note (b)) BRAER (MizEb)) 90,000,000,000 (0.09)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZB-AF+ZA=1+-RZ

at 31 December 2019 SREBOIETZEAR  100,000,000,000 0.01
Issued: BET:

Ordinary shares at 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=+-Hk

and 1 January 2019 “Z-NE-A-BMLBER  2,287,99,121 228,799,612 191,994 851,682 1,043,676
Cancellation of share premium account FERAEER (HHb)

(Note (b)) - - - (851,682) (851,682)
Capital Reorganisation (Note (b)) BRAEA (M3 () (1,715,997,091)  (223,079,622) (187,194) = (187,194)
Issuance of shares upon conversion of REATAREFEEIRG

convertible bonds (Note (c)) (FzEQ) 185,600,000 1,856,000 1,602 36,376 37,978
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NFTZR=1-H 757,599,030 7,575,990 6,402 36,376 42,778
Notes: B 5
(@)  Prior to 19 April 2018, the Company had an authorised share (@ RZZTE—NFHEA+NHA &XARQF

capital of HK$200 million divided into 2,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.1 each. The Company’s shareholders approved the

increase in the authorised share capital of the Company
from HK$200,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 shares
to HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares
by creation of additional 8,000,000,000 shares through an

extraordinary general meeting on 19 April 2018.

2 A E A £200,000,0008 70 0 B A
2,000,000,000% & fx E {E0. 1% T &)
Bipe RRARIRRIEEEERAS 8
200,000,000 7t (% 42,000,000,000
% B& 17 ) 3% % 1,000,000,0007 70 (5 &
10,000,000,000& /%5 ) * HH BiFER=
T-N\FOA+NBHRRFIAEE
%£8,000,000,0008% f% {5 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

16 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

On 1 February 2019, the Board of Directors proposed the
cancellation of share premium account and to implement
a capital reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation”) which

involves:

(i) the share consolidation of every four issued and
unissued existing shares of HK$0.10 each into one
consolidated share of HK$0.40 each;

(i) the capital reduction such that the nominal value
of each issued consolidated share be reduced from
HK$0.40 to HK$0.01; and

(i)  the share subdivision of each unissued consolidated
share of HK$0.40 each into forty new shares of
HK$0.01 each.

The effective date of the Capital Reorganisation was 10 April
2019 after fulfilment of all precedent conditions. The credits
arising from cancellation of share premium account and any
credit arising as a result of the cancellation of any fraction in
the issued share capital of the Company arising from the share
consolidation are designated as the contributed surplus. Upon
the cancellation of share premium account and the Capital
Reorganisation become effective, the contributed surplus has
been applied by the Board to set off against the accumulated

deficits of the Group in full.

On 21 May 2019, the convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$44,544,000 (equivalent to RMB38,441,000) at
the conversion price of HK$0.24 were exercised. As a result,

185,600,000 new shares were issued and allotted.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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(b)

R-ZE-NF_R—H EFgEEE
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M) BEREk:

(i) KOG KEEEREREE..10
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& Of 3 — B R {E0.40/8 TTHY

B PR

(i)  BRANHIR AR EITE IR
2 H9 T B FR 0.407% 7T &l 8 2£0.01
Bt &

(i)  PRIP DI ABIRE(E0.40/ETH)
AREBETAHBRO AR AT TKE
PR E{E0.01 B T FT AR AD ©

MEKPTE FERIGEMHR  RAZANE
BMEMAE-—T-NFHA+H - -EHR
i ERNERERAFZHEARAE#
TTIRARE R & O B A e E AT I A E
ERERREERSEMAR - N KR
MEBERERAEEERE EFSE
ERESASRBBEBEARRNRE
&5 At o

RZZE-—NALFRAA=ZT—H X%
¥ /44,544,0008 T (HER AR
38,441,0007T ) # Al # iR & 7 12 #2 Bk
B0.2478 T ETT (- #R UL BT R BE 3
185,600,000% %7 f% 15 °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 RESERVES

The details of movement in the Group’s reserves are set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page

99:

(a)

(b)

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve relates to the
redemption and cancellation of the Company’s own

shares.

Capital reserves

Capital reserves primarily represent capital
contributions to certain subsidiaries of the Group
and the differences between the consideration
and proportionate carrying value of the subsidiary
disposed of where the Group still retains control of the

subsidiary.

Statutory reserves

The statutory reserves represent reserves of the PRC
incorporated companies which are set aside for
future development purpose in accordance with the
regulations in the PRC. The allocation is based on
certain percentages of these companies’ profit for the

year, as reported in their statutory financial statements.

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the companies’
respective Articles of Association, each of the Group
companies is required to transfer 10% of its profit for
the year, as determined under the PRC Accounting
Regulations, to a statutory common reserve fund
until the fund balance exceeds 50% of the Group
company’s registered capital. The statutory common
reserve fund can be used to make good previous years’
losses, if any, and to issue new shares to shareholders
in proportion to their existing shareholdings or to
increase the par value of the shares currently held by
them, provided that the balance after such issue is not

less than 25% of the registered capital.

SO MR

17 f##

ARERENEDFRANEIIANE
FREmEK:
(o) BRAEE #HE
P 7S [0 {5 B2 7K X B P (] % 5 3K
KEBRMERR-
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REIME R EEAHEHE A A
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AEFBETBEEMKIABRK
HER B ORE T BOAR R LA
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TE MR AR F R A B E
TEDLETER-

BREBEFBEEHARAGSEENERE
2R AEBET S RAARKR
B & 5HA R FT S TE 9 F s I Y
10%BAEERNER BEEZAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

17 RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Statutory reserves (Continued)

Each of the Group companies is also permitted to
transfer a certain percentage of its profit for the year
as determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations,
to a discretionary common reserve fund. The transfer
to this reserve is subject to approval at shareholders’

meetings.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out

in note 4.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the share premium amounts and the
accumulated deficits of the Group pursuant to the
cancellation of share premium account and the capital

reorganization effected on 10 April 2019.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to

pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium accounts.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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17 RESERVES (Continued)

18

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO ERR

17 f#f (&)

() Convertible bonds reserve

Convertible bonds reserve represents the value of the

conversion rights related to convertible bonds of the

Company, details of which are shown in Note 23. The

reserve will be transferred to share capital and share

premium accounts upon the conversion of convertible

bonds.

SUBSIDIARIES

18

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries of the

Company as at 31 December 2019:

Place of incorporation and

() RS

MR ESHEEEARA R

BlEFFEEZEREEBE"

LpES:

GGk
BRI

BN 5E23 o R R A AT R A E
FEBRBRABRAREDRER-

Eog N
TREINARBANR_-_F—HLF
=t—AMETEHBAR:

Issued or registered/

+=A

Effective interest held

Name kind of legal entity Principal activities paid up capital as at 31 December
£R AR B R R A R TEXHR BROGEM/BEARE RI-A=+-BRENEREZR
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\E
Directly owned subsidiary:
ERBENELAR:
Dragon Soar Ltd. The British Virgin Islands, Limited Investment holding UsD1 100% 100%
liability company
EABRRA ERRRES BREALRT RELR (Eo
Ysolde Group Limited Samoa, Limited liability company  Investment holding UsSD50,000 100% 100%
THEREEERAA BES EREEQH REZR 50,000% 7T
Graceful Universe Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands, Limited Investment holding usD1 100% 100%
liability company
TEEERARA R RERAHE EREMAR REER (E
ShiFang Expert Company Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability Human resources HKD1 100% 100%
company
THEABRAR BB BREEAR ANER BT
Glory Peace Limited Samoa, Limited liability company  Investment holding UsD1 100% 100%
REERRF BET BREERT REER E3
Supreme Glory Limited Samoa, Limited liability company Investment holding USD43,521 100% 100%
SRERAA BEL HREERTF RERR 43,51% T
Indirectly owned subsidiaries:
BEEEREAR:
Fuzhou DingCe Culture Communication Co. Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Provision of full-line ~ USD200,000 100% 100%
company advertising agency
B B services
BNEFE UL ERARAR HEEMN BEREEAR REZHNES 200,000% 7T
RERS
Fuzhou ShiFang Printing Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Provision of printing RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
company services
M EBERAR HERN BEREADE RN R R AR #10,000,0007
THEERAERAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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18

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

18

Place of incorporation and

MELR (&)

Issued or registered/

Effective interest held

Name kind of legal entity Principal activities paid up capital as at 31 December
2R EENEEYSINF] TEER ERTHEM/BERE WMH-A=T-ARENEREZR
2019 2018
“B-NF -0\
Indirectly owned subiidiary: (Continued)
BEEEHEAR: (&)
Fuzhou ShiFangYuan Advertisement Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Provision of full- line  RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
company advertising agency
~ - services .
BETHRESERAR PEEN FEREERA REEHUES AR 5,000,007
RIBRT
Fujian DaFang Advertisement Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Provision of full-line RMBS5,000,000 100% 100%
company advertising services )
BREANTRERRAF PEBMN BEREERA RE2FUESRSE  ARE5,000,0007
Kunming HanDing Printing Technology Consulting ~ Kunming, the PRC, Limited Provision of publishing  RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. ) liability company and printing services
RRESERI S MAAERAE HERH BEREADH REHRRARRE  ARE10,000,0007T
Xiamen DuKe Information Science & Technology Xiamen, the PRC, Limited liability Provision of technology RMB11,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. (“Xiamen Duke") company promotion and
\ y consultancy services .
EREREENBARAR ([EFEE]) HEER BEREEAR R R AR 11,000,000
IR
Fujian HaoBang Real Estate Consulting & Agency  Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Property marketing & ~ RMB10,000,000 51% 51%
_Co. Ltd. company agency services .
BEFAFEXRAKEARRA PEEMN FREERA NEEHRRERSE  AR$10,000,0007
Fujian FangKe Network Technology Corporation Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Provision of full-line RMB50,000,000 51% 51%
company advertising services &
- - Property marketing .
BEREEBBHNBRRAERAA PEEN BEREERA RERTURERSE  ARK50,000,0007
SIES
Fujian ShiFang KaiTai Advertisement Technology Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Provision of technology RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. company promotion and
-~ B consultancy services
RETTHARBRNEARAR rEBM ARREAR RESMERR AR 10,000,000
A o RS
Tian Pu Commercial Management Co., Ltd. Hong Kong, Limited liability Investment holding HKD100 51% 51%
company
EEMHBEERERAR & AREEAR RERR 1007 7T
Fujian Tian Pu Commercial Management Co., Ltd. ~ Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Property marketing & ~ RMB10,000,000 51% 51%
company agency services
REEAAEXERERAF FEBMN AREERF NEEHERERSE  ARK10,000,0007T
Fujian ShiFang Real Estate Investment Consulting  Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Property investment RMB50,000,000 51% 51%
_Co,, Ltd ; company consultancy services .
BRETHHEREBHNERAT REBMN FREERF NERERARYE AR 50,000,000
Ningbo Expert Culture Communication Co., Ltd. Ningbo, the PRC, Limited liability Human resources HKD7,000,000 - 100%
company (Note a) (Note a)
‘ ‘ } - o (FEa) (HEa)
ERTREXLEEER AR REER AREEAA ANER 7,000,003 72

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation and

18 ME~E (&)

Issued or registered/

Effective interest held

Name kind of legal entity Principal activities paid up capital as at 31 December
ZB EENEEYSIN V] TEEH ERTHAEM/BERE RA-A=t-ARENEREZR
2019 2018
“B-NF -0\
Indirectly owned subiidiary: (Continued)
BEEEMEAR: (8)
Fuzhou Kungfu Town Scenic Area Development Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Tourism and USD25,000,000 100% 100%
_Co,, Ltd. compan _ entertainment
BN ASEREARA REBN AREEA RE IR 25,000,000% 7T
Beijing Fanxing Travel Co., Ltd. Beijing, the PRC, Limited liability Tourism and RMBS5,000,000 100% 100%
company entertainment
HREEKEARAF FELLR AREEAF igeidrtd AR 5,000,007
Zhangpingshi Lianchuang Nongye Fazhan Co., Ltd.  Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Tourism and RMB10,000,000 60% 60%
company _entertainment .
BETMHARERRERAR EP@%EJH ﬁ NG TR RIRE AR¥10,000,0007T
Fuzhou Niaoyulin Youle Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Tourism and RMB5,000,000 82% 82%
company _ entertainment )
BMSEREEARAT qﬂl%aa Uk ﬁ BfEA R RE AR 5,000,007
Special purpose entity:
RRENER:
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe Science and Technology Beijing, the PRC, Limited liability Provision of technology RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. company promotion and
o _ consultancy services .
FIRAGEEENBEARAR HEER BEREEAA RERMHERER AR 1,000,000
IR
Note a: The subsidiary was deregistered on 4 December 2019. Miza: ZMBRARRZ=ZT—-—AF+=AMEA
FEEHEAD ©
THEERAERAR
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BOF IR

18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

18 MEE (&)

(a) Material non-controlling interests () EXFEEZERER
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREETF T
By subsidiaries: ZHEB AR :
Fujian Fangke Network Technology BERE B PEE R0
Co. Ltd (“Fujian Fangke”) BERARA ([BEER]) 12,411 14,868
Others Hh, (4,203) (2,188)
8,208 12,680

Summarised financial information on a

subsidiary with material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information

for a subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that

are material to the Group.

BREEAFEZEREZNHER
ANMBERBE
TXHEINEEHAKEMSBEXN
HY I P2 AU 2 1) %5 PR BB 8 ) O B 7S
BERBE-

Summarised balance sheets for Fujian Fangke BEEENEESBERME
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Current: VI
Assets BE 27,608 28,951
Liabilities B & (3,205) (4,030)
Net current assets }EEFE 24,403 24,921
Non-current: ERE :
Assets BE 55,795 5,423
Liabilities = (52,000) =
Net assets BEFHE 28,198 30,344

208 SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

18 ME~E (&)

SO MR

Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (o) EXFEEZERRER (K)
Summarised statements of comprehensive income REEENEZEBERBE
for Fujian Fangke
2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AR¥T T
Revenue Wz 20,236 29,929
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRET SRR (E18) 5 (1,965) 1,287
Income tax expense Fr 5 %t 2 - (335)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(BE) HEF (1,965) 952
Other comprehensive income H b2 E s - -
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (E18) WErsE (1,965) 952
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ZEIEEIRE R
allocated to non-controlling interests 2HE (EER) WS eEE (963) 466
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IEIERE R AR E
interests - -
THFERERAR
T -NEFR

209
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

18 MEE (&)

(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) () EXRFERER (&)
Summarised cash flow statements for Fujian REEENRERERBE
Fangke

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—N\%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Cash flows from operating activities EZFZEFBRERE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations #%& #5715, (FTA)IRE 2,711 (2,896)
Interest received B F &2 39 44
Income tax paid B (71) (588)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KESEENFTIS
operating activities (FTR)B&F5E 2,679 (3,440)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEEFE
investing activities (FTH)IREF58 487 (73)
Net cash used in financing activities BERE AR S FE - -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash R& KRB S ZEIER
equivalents #whn, CRd) FE 3,166 (3,513)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#MIRE RIREZEIAH
of year 3,334 6,847
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FARMIRE MIRE&FEIEH 6,500 3,334

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 19 IELEFBH
The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows: BEMSHEBENDTAOT
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR T

Deferred income tax liabilities BIEMERAE
— to be reversed after more than 12 months ~ — BB 1218 A & & [ 49,101 50,861
— to be reversed within 12 months —# P 121E A R [l 1,311 862
50,412 51,723
The movements on the deferred income tax liabilities are as BEFREHBEZSHAT
follows:
Intangible assets
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ART T
At 1 January Rn—H—H 51,723 120
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B B A &) - 52,571
Recognised in the consolidated statement of A& Hf 2 HE W R N FER
comprehensive income (Note 30) (KT5E30) (1,311) (968)
At 31 December R+tZA=+—H 50,412 51,723
No deferred income tax asset has been recognised in RZZBE-NAF+ZA=1+—H ARLE
respect of estimated tax losses of RMB93,778,000 as at EEANBARNY TS EEERY
31 December 2019 (2018: RMB108,285,000) as it is not 8 AR AT R 2R A B R IR & 18 - Bkt
probable that the relevant subsidiaries of the Group will g A R #93,778,0007T (=T — )\ & :
generate taxable profit to utilise the tax losses in the AR #108,285,0007T ) & i 5 ¢ A /&5 18
foreseeable future. Such tax losses have an expiry period of BRELEFMEMEE -ZEMEBENE
five years. WEIRE A RE -

THFERERAR
—E-NFER

g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

20 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 20 ESEMNFRE HWENSRIE
ACCRUED EXPENSES REGRX
2019 2018
—ZE-AF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Trade payables CR2 ) SO E- S 8106 - 4,597
Other payables and accrued expenses: H R SRIE R EET R X
Accrued utility expenses and other liabilities ~— FE&F A H &R F
kEMAE 7,707 3,026
Accrued salaries and welfare Eat & MEF 7,954 7,436
Value added tax and other taxes payable 128 T K B FE < R I8 3,277 3,886
Other payables E A FE 1~ 5118 66,128 9,830
Deposits from customers REBEFEWZE® 1,317 1,317
Contract liabilities (Note 5) A#BE (K3E5) 6,717 5,649
Provision for an onerous operating lease BREESEHERE - 2,902
93,100 34,046
Less: Non-current portion W SEENERER 5
Other payables H b fE OB (52,000) =
_____ SR 34046
49,206 38,643
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

21

ACCRUED EXPENSES (Continued)

Payment terms granted by suppliers are mainly cash on
delivery and on credit. The credit periods range from 30 days
to 365 days after end of the month in which the relevant

purchase occurred.

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on the invoice

date is as follows:

SO MR

20 EZ AR Hitb B RIR
KESTBX (&)
HERES TONREREEARIINA
ROARRERT R AT o (B A fE AR B IR
M A &SRR F30E £3650 TF -

B 58 1 SRR IR B B M R AT
T

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARET T

1 — 30 days 1Z230H 4,031 641
31 - 90 days 31ZF90H 390 406
Over 90 days 90H A I 3,685 3,550
8,106 4,597

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are all

denominated in RMB.

AREE SR FAHEEERBAA
RAMH{E -

BORROWINGS 21 X
2019 2018
—ZE-AF —T—N\FE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T

Secured bank borrowings BERBITER

— current (Note (i) —BIER (B REG)) 4,640 6,877
Other borrowing — current (Note (ii)) E b 5 51— B AR (B 3 GiD)) 1,590 1,500
6,230 8,377
THFERERAR
T -NEFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

21

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note (i):

The maturity of the bank borrowings based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements and excluding the repayment

on demand clause is as follows:

21 B

(&)
B Gi):

BREFGAMBIAEERXD S AHMIREER
SRR G L SRITRERNBIM AT

2019 2018

—E-hF —T—-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T R ARBFT

Within 1 year —F R 2,229 2,229
Between 1 and 2 years —EME 2,230 2,230
Between 2 and 5 years Mz R F 181 2,418
4,640 6,877

As at 31 December 2019, the mortgage loans were classified as
current liabilities due to the related loan agreements containing a
repayment on demand clause which gives the bank unconditional

right to call the loans at any time.

The mortgage loans are secured by the ownership rights of the
properties and the personal guarantee of Zheng Bai Ling and Zhang
Hui, a key management and the spouse of a key management of a

subsidiary of the Group.

The mortgage terms are 7 years and are denominated in RMB. The
mortgage loans are carried at quarterly adjusted floating interest
rate of 1.15 times the benchmark loan interest rate as prescribed
by the People’s Bank of China for loans of a similar length. The
effective interest rate for the year is 7.31% (2018: 7.15%) per

annum.
Note (ii):
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the balance is unsecured,

carries an interest rate at 6% per annum with a term of 2 years, and

is repayable on demand. The balance is denominated in RMB.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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G}

1ZI8 B A X D ZE RO P 75 A B 7R 4% (B — P BfY
BARANEIEEEASHHKMEREEAR
B B AR SR B AT (A0 B A HE R VE R AR
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RIRFEET R - AANSARBRARRITHE
MEHE%M%EEE’]%EE KA E K156 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 PROMISSORY NOTES

On 8 May 2018, promissory notes with principal amount
of HK$100,000,000 was issued by the Company, which
carries interest at 5.5% per annum and repayable on the
third anniversary of the date of issue, to the sellers of
Supreme Glory Limited to satisfy part of the consideration
for the acquisition. The fair value of the promissory notes
amounted to approximately HK$88,740,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB71,982,000) on 8 May 2018 and was
estimated by discounted cash flow model. The fair value
estimates are based on discounted rate of 9.1% to 10.2%
(depending on the time to the expected coupon or principal
payment) with reference to yield-to-maturity of similar bonds
in the market which is a level 3 fair value measurement in

the fair value hierarchy.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, interest payable
of approximately RMB2,523,000 was charged to “finance
costs” (31 December 2018: RMB5,096,000). The promissory
notes has been early redeemed upon the issuance of the
convertible bonds on 23 April 2019 (Note 23).

The carrying amounts of the promissory notes are as follows:

SO MR

22 RAREE

RZZE—NERAANB KARIETAR
% 8 /3100,000,0007 7T 2 # L E K - &
RESEMEFR KL WAENREITHEH
B =RAFERRRERERAAER
B AWK EFIE 2 55 KB &
REBR-_Z-N\FRANBZARE
#)7%88,740,000% 7T (HEE R AR
71,982,0007T ) RIRHFTIRIR & MR T A
BEt e AAEMETTIERLI%E10.2%
(BFENFERAE XA SHRRE) BT
BE - WBEMG EROUES 2B HlE
X -HERANBEREBESRNE=ZRAR

e

BHE-_ZT-NAF+-A=+—HItHF
€ BEK ARM2,523,0007T 2 FE 1 F
BEIATHBERA] (ZE—-—NFE+=A
=+—H: AR¥5,096,0007T) ° & % ZE
BERZTE—AFHEAZ+=B%TA
BRREFEERTER (FI:E23) °

ALRBEOREENT

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
R=2-h& R_ZF-N\F
t=A +T=H
=+—H =+—~H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARETIT

Promissory notes ESIE ¥

- 81,552
THFERERAR
—T-NFFR
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23 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 24 January 2019, the Company entered into the
convertible bond subscription agreement with TopBig
International Development Limited (the “Subscriber”), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Zhi, an Executive
Director and a shareholder of the Company, pursuant to
which the Company conditionally agreed to issue, and the
Subscriber conditionally agreed to subscribe for, 3% per
annum convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$250,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB215,750,000).

The initial conversion price of the Convertible Bonds is
HK$0.24 per conversion share. The Convertible Bonds
matures at the day falling on the third anniversary of the
date of issue of the Convertible Bonds and the conversion
period covers the period commencing on the date of issue of

the Convertible Bonds and ending on the maturity date.

On 23 April 2019, the Convertible Bonds were issued. The
initial value of the liability component was calculated using a
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond

of the Company.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

23 ARREZS

R-T—-NE—A-+WHA KXAFES
TEERZERARRA ([REA]) (AR
RAMITEERRERELEEL2EHESR)
I A RIRESF RE R ZE - Bt KA A
BREREBEZRITMREBABGRERER
B AN 48 % 5250,000,000/8 7T (HHE ®
AR%215,750,0007T ) B IR G F| E3E 5T
EWAHRRES ([FTRKRESF]) °

A] 8 BB 5 0 ) 5 R BB R B R B
70.24787C - A ERE S B HI A R BT A
BREFERET R =BEFERRH M
AR MERERTARBRESE AR
ZRH R EHAE -

ABRRESFR_FT-NLFOA=-+=H
BT -REHONNGBEERAARAS
FIZERAI R EZFHMISH R ES



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO MR

23 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 23 AR ES (&)

The convertible bonds are presented as follows:

AIMRESEF 0T
2019 2018

—B-hE —T-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR T

Face value of the convertible bonds AMREFNETAHNEE

on the issue date 215,750 -
Less: Transactions costs R B A (4,095)
Less: Equity component Ve ki (42,003) =
Liability component on initial recognition X ERNBERLS 169,652
Interest accrued (note (a)) FEETFIE (FiE)) 11,511 =
Conversion during the year (note (b)) FRER (HEb)) (30,494) =
Non-current liability EmEBEE 150,669 -

Notes:

(@) Interest expense is calculated by applying the effective interest

rate of 11.5% per annum to the liability component.

(b)  The Subscriber partially converted the convertible bonds in
the aggregate principal amount of RMB38,441,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2019 (Note 16).

B & -

MERXTDERHAERIRAIISE
MERFENRFESE -

HE-_T-NEF+-_A=+—HBLHF
B REABIBHRASCHEBAARE
38,441,000 s M AT AR E S (HMI5E16) ©



218

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

24 LEASE 24 HE

(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (i)
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet show the following

amounts relating to leases:

EHEERBERZINTEREE
ZHE

As at As at

31 December 1 January

2019 2019
R-ZE-N%F

tT=HA RZ=ZE-I#F

=+—H —RA—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Buildings BF

Lands T

Lease liabilities HEEE
Current RV ER
Non-current SERNER

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ended
31 December 2019 were RMB5,029,000.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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2,608 8,745
4,672 1,934
7,280 10,679
3,010 5,372
9,215 9,104
12,225 14,476

HEz—_Z—NWF+=-_A=+—8H
FtFEFEFEREEEEMARE
5,029,0007T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

24 LEASE (Continued) 24 HE (&)

(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (i) REHEEABRBIAZIRE
sheet (Continued) (#%&)
The Group recognised an impairment charge reflecting REEREAEEERARM R
the aggregate difference totaling RMB5,734,000 =AY RER S AR%S5,734,000
(2018: Nil) for the right-of-use assets. These T(ZE—NF:ZT) - HE_ZT
impairment charges for the year ended 31 December —NF+ZA=+—RBILFEZZE
2019 were recorded in the Group's consolidated BWERIFTANEB S HE2EKE
statement of comprehensive income within “General O —METERAS] A (K F
and administrative expenses” (Note 26). 26) °

(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated (i) REMEEWERAERRE ZNIE
statements of comprehensive income
The consolidated statements of comprehensive income AHEEREREINATHEBREE
shows the following amounts relating to leases: 2 FIA

2019
—B-hF
RMB’000
AR®T T

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FHEEENENX
Buildings BF 2,492
Land T 229
2,721
Interest expense (included in finance costs) HERS (T AFBRA) 621
The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended BHE-ZT-NF+=-A=+—HLt
31 December 2019 was RMB7,944,000. FEHEZREMHUEBRARE

7,944,0007T °

THFERERAR
—E-NFFH}
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

25 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSS — NET 25 Htt M AR HEMEIE - FHE

2019 2018
—E-NE —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETF T
Other income: Hu A :
Compensation income fHE KA - 472
Government grants (Note a) BT B (FizEa) 273 339
Sundry income HIRMWA 63 106
336 917
Other gain/(loss): Hiz ~ (EE) :
Fair value gain on biological asset EMEBEEZ A ENE 239 =
Other losses HhEE (321) =
(82) =
Note Bt 5
(@) The Group obtained and recognised as income government (@ HBEZZ-—NAF+ZA=T+—HIHF

grants of RMB273,000 (2018: RMB339,000) from the Fujian

government authority for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRAR M

26 EXPENSES BY NATURE 26 EHEE WX
Loss before income tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the BRET1S R AT BB &Rk (FA) AT IB
following: B ARK:
2019 2018
=EB-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥BT AR¥EF T
Cost of newspaper advertising AR R S B AR
— Media costs — R A 2,391 2,879
Cost of printing services: E Rl AR 75 A A -
— Raw materials — R ¥ 2,819 3,621
— Other costs —H A AR 519 507
Cost of sales of agricultural products H & BB an AR 76,372 2,878
Depreciation of property, M BERZREBTE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (MF5E7) 5,434 4,284
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 24)  {#H#EEETE (M:E24) 2,721 =
Amortisation (Note 8) #34 (FE8) 5,468 4,129
Auditor’s remuneration ZER B &
— Audit services —FZ IR 4,147 3,437
— Non-audit services —EEZRB - 1,142
Marketing expenses =¥l 10,839 -
Operating lease charges in respect of land and % B 13 X #E F &Y
buildings KEHEWRE 222 8,403
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME - -BERKEEE
plant and equipment (Note 33(b)) 88 (M97E33(b)) 142 =
Gain on disposals of properties held for sale  HEFIELEME MU - (193)
Net change in provision for impairment of B 5 FE W R IE R B B
trade receivables (Note 13) EE)FERE (MFE13) 690 (607)
Provision for impairment of goodwill (Note 8) P25 {E B & (Ff=E8) 66,058 =
Provision for impairment of financial guarantee Bf 7§ ¥& (R 8 (8 & & 1,026 =
Provision for impairment of contract assets BREERBERE 96 25
Provision for impairment of property, Y- B REERERE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (FfF7E7) 2,208 3,029
Provision for impairment of right-of-use assets i Fi # & 2= il (B B 15 5,734 -
Provision for an onerous operating lease EBrEMgEEHERE - 8,958
Provision for impairment of properties held for 1 & ¥) 2 BB B 1
sale (Note 12) (KIsE12) - 4,252
Legal and professional fee EERBEFXEER 2,595 13,266
Write-off of trade receivables B 5 & Y 5k T8 i 8E 2,191 =
Write-off of other receivables EL b 8 U 3k T8 9 8 236 =
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses HNEE (W zS) BB F A (3,560) 6,328
Employee benefit expenses BB
(including directors’ emoluments) (Note 27) (REESMe) (MFE27) 44,274 46,099
Business tax EER 287 1,471




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

27 EERANAX (BEESMH
%)

2019 2018

—E—hEF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T AREFIT

Salaries and other allowances e kE e 41,243 43,512
Defined contribution plan FEHRETE 26 128
Social security costs HIRE A 1,773 1,559
Retirement scheme contribution R EI R 1,232 900
44,274 46,099

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group included 3 directors (2018: 3 directors), whose
emoluments were reflected in the analysis presented
above and Note 39. The emoluments paid/payable to
the remaining 2 (2018: 2 individuals) individuals during

the year ended 31 December 2019 were as follows:

(o) EBREFAL
BHE_ZE-NF+ZA=+—8H
tFE AEBREAESHALE
BB (ZE—N\F:=R)EH"
BREHEE EX R EE39FT 275
WAOMHRRE -REE_T—NF
+ZA=+—HBLEFEE BN E
HHTWME (ZE—NF:MWH)A

THMESHT
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’‘000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETFIT
Salaries and other allowances e M H ek 1,260 1,111
Defined contribution plan FRE G2 37 23
1,297 1,134

For the year ended 31 December 2019, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the 2 (2018:
2) highest paid employees as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as Compensation for loss of

office (2018: Nil).
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ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
the emoluments of the highest paid individuals of the

Group fall within the following bands:

27 EERAFEX (BRESEMSE)

(&)
() EEBEEHFAL (E)

BE-2-NFR-F-\F1=

A=+t—HLLFE AEBE &

ATEBE N FTIIEE

Number of individuals

T3

=1 T

A
2019 2018
—E-AF —E—N\F
Nil to HK$500,000 07 7T £500,0007% 7T = 1
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 L&
1,000,000 T 2 1
2 2

28 RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension scheme
to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of
these subsidiaries. The only obligation of these subsidiaries
with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet the

required contributions under the scheme.

The total contributions incurred in this connection for
the year ended 31 December 2019 were approximately
RMB1,232,000 (2018: RMB900,000). No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contribution

payable by the Group in the future years.

28 RKAEFEE

AEEETERINMBRANER S
b 75 T DR P & M B0 R SRR AR 5 B EY
KB -FRAMBARAZREEELRTFE R
TENETED AT REAKRES B
B DA R ARAE R - 75 T BT A R
EEEMBRRNMARE RARFENK
BEENRARBNEE -ARAMBARRS
REARSFTE O —FEEIRIZEBIE

P AR TE B AR

BHE-_T-NAF+_A=+—HL
FE BRUEEEOHRETOARAR
#1,232,000c (ZZE—N\F: ARK
900,0007T ) © #F & R U f# 5% AT A 16 3 4>

ARRFEAREEEMFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

29 FINANCE COSTS - NET

29 MR- FE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREEF T
Finance income: A ONE
Interest income on short-term bank deposits R HIRITHFAMOFELA 62 111
Finance costs: BF TSR -
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITERZFEFZ (333) (459)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBGBZHNERX (621) -
Interest expense on promissory notes EHEER 2 BRX (2,523) (5,096)
Interest expense on loans from BEE 5 e 2 BB X
a related party (1,297) (2,061)
Loss on early redemption of REBERA N ZHRAEE
promissory notes (9,632) -
Interest expense on convertible bond AmRESFF SR (11,511) =
Other HAt (115) -
Less: amounts capitalised on WA EREERT
qualifying assets B S H - 356
Total finance costs B TSR AN 425 ~_(26,032) (7,260
Finance costs — net RS AK AN — R (25,970) (7,149)

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

SO MR

30 Fr8Bt (ER) X

2019 2018
—2-nFE —2-)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

Current income tax expense BVER P45 7% A 2
Mainland China enterprise income tax PR RRER SRS
— Current tax expense —BVEATR I8 A X 6 1,673
— Overprovision in prior years —RBEFEBRBEREE (3.792) =
(3.786) 1,673
Deferred income tax credit BEFMGHER (1,311) (968)
(5.097) 705
The Group has no assessable income arising in or derived REBREBZ-TE-NFRZZE—N\F
from Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2019 TZA=T—ALEEEIAREEEL

and 2018.

A

HESRRTMA -

THFERERAR
T -NEFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

30 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE
(Continued)
The taxation on the Group's loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the

consolidated entities in the respective jurisdictions as

30 Fri8Bt (ER) X (&)

A o 04 B4 B AT A5 B 0 BUIB BLIR R
AR A RIEER A 6 E 5% T 00 m
CESTE R e PA T
m -

follows:
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETF T
Loss before income tax B P15 %54 AT 5 48 (148,620) (163,892)
Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable REARSEBEEREES
to profits of the entities in the respective a A B 30 75 B R 5 Y
jurisdictions IR (27,259) (29,149)
Tax effects of: A TIEEMBIEBELE
Income not subject to tax AT A (1,024) (5)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes DEIE! %Rﬁﬁﬁ 20,540 25,268
Tax losses for which no deferred income RERBELEFISHEE
tax asset was recognised KR IE B 18 6,683 4,853
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax B A 2 Al R FER
losses T I8 &8 (245) (262)
Overprovision in prior years BT FERERE (3,792) =
(5,097) 705
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 18.3% (2018: MEFHBERBEERI83I% (ZF—N

17.8%). The increase is mainly caused by less operation
for subsidiaries in Hong Kong which were entitled to lower

applicable tax rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 LOSS PER SHARE

SO MR

31 BREE

No dividend has been declared by the Company since its

incorporation.

(a) Basic () EX
Basic loss per share for the years is calculated by FAMERERNEBETIZA QR
dividing the loss attributable to owners of the BEREBERINFERNBEEHITE B
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary AR ANEFHEGTE -
shares in issue during the year.
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
Loss attributable to owners of RNRAFFTEEELEE
the Company (RMB’000) (AR®BTTT) (139,165) (164,403)
Weight average number of B AT IR hIHE T 5 2K
shares in issue, including bonus (BIFARNTE)
element (thousands) (Frx) 686,214 520,041
Basic loss per share (RMB per share) BREAREE
(BRARE) (0.2028) (0.3161)
The Capital Reorganisation has been effective RERKFTA ZRIGHE RAEH
on 10 April 2019 (Note 16) after fulfiiment of all RZE—NFWMA+ B E% (H&F
precedent conditions. Upon completion of the Capital 16) - RIEAEA (BEFSIHERE O
Reorganisation (including the four-to-one share R/R—RZBRDEO) TKIE  BET
consolidation), the weighted average number of shares R MEFHHEERAE AR
in issue has been adjusted for the effect of share BRhEaM- A2 ERR S
consolidation. The calculation of basic and diluted RERRESBEAENE LM
loss per share for all periods presented has also been FEE o
adjusted retrospectively.
(b) Diluted (b) #F
Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting BREEBIE IR BEBETEING
the weighted average number of ordinary shares HRE A ARKAE AR
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive EHETENTRRELBETH -
potential ordinary shares. The Company has no dilutive BHE-ZT-NF+=-A=+—Hlit
potential ordinary shares during the year ended 31 FE - ARAVEABEREELE
December 2019 (2018: same). MERAE(ZFE—NF:HR)
32 DIVIDEND 32 BE

KA B B FE M AL DA R AR B B R (AT IR

B o

oy

THFERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(a)

Cash used in operations

33 BERERME

(a)

R

EBRRARE

2019 2018
—E-NF ZE-N\F
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
B eE AR¥TR ARETT
Loss before income tax B ET SRR E 1R (148,620) (163,892)
Adjustments for: TG RIBIEL
Depreciation for property, ME - BEREETE
plant and equipment 7 5,434 4,284
Depreciation for right-of-use assets EREEENE 24 2,721 -
Amortisation for intangible assets m A E 8 5,468 4,129
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE BE R
plant and equipment HERNBEEE 26 142 =
Net gain on disposal of properties HEREHEMERN
held for sale & 5 68 26 - (193)
Net change in provision for B 5 I W R IBR (B B 16
impairment of trade receivables BAE) AR 26 690 (607)
Net written off on other receivables H A fE Ut SR IE 1 SH % 5E 26 236 -
Provision for impairment of BHEERBERE
contract assets 26 96 25
Provision for impairment of goodwill 7522 g {E & & 26 66,058 =
Provision for impairment of RIELNEMERERE
properties held for sale 26 - 4,252
Provision for impairment of M- BE R
property, plant and equipment RERERE 26 2,208 3,029
Provision for impairment of EREEERERE
right-of-use assets 26 5,734 -
Provision for an onerous B R LT S
operating lease 26 - 8,958
Foreign exchange (gains)/ 18 & R B R INE
losses on operating activities (Wz%) BE 26 (3,560) 6,328
Finance income A 29 (62) (111)
Finance costs B 5 B AR 29 26,032 7,260
Fair value gain on biological assets EYEERD AW 25 (239) =
Write-off of trade receivables B 5 e YR IE 85 26 2,191 -
Net fair value loss on financial assets AREEEBREAER
at fair value through profit or loss SRBENAAE
ERFE 8 84,498
Share of losses of an associate e =N 1,366 165
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33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

FLOWS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Cash used in operations (Continued)

33 BERERKE (F)

() REZKHFARS (H)

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
L= AR TR ARBFT
Changes in working capital: HEESEY:
— Trade receivables —Z Z WA (4,584) 31
- Contract assets —GHEE (1,667) (1,224)
— Inventories -FE 646 (196)
— Prepayments, deposits and other —BNHIE Re Kk
receivables H Ath & W SR IE (56,568) (2,400)
- Amounts due from related parties — B FE A 3R (294) (80)
— Trade payables —E S ENHIA 3,509 84
— Other payables and accrued —H R FRIE K
expenses i3 56,274 (5,397)
- Financial guarantee contracts —UBEREHN 1,026 -
— Amounts due to related parties —JEEEE AT IB 9,845 (6,366)
Cash used in operations REEBMARS (25,910) (57,423)

Disposal of property, plant and equipment

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds

b) HEWE BERSRHE
é1ﬁ£@i/}m§%$ﬁ§%¥ ﬁ}%

from disposal of property, plant and equipment MR B TS RIE B HE -
comprise:
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTTT
Net carrying amount (Note 7) ARMEFRE (MH5E7) 629 11
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE - WE RZHED
plant and equipment (Note 26) B8 F 5 (M5E26) (142) =
Cash consideration from disposal of HEWE - BE REED
property, plant and equipment ReRE 487 11
THFERERAR
T -NEFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)
(c) Non-cash transactions
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the principal

non-cash transaction are:

o Utilisation of prepayment of RMB1,770,000 for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment
(Note 9)

o Utilisation of prepayment of RMB3,000,000 for

acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 9)

o Issuance of convertible bonds has been
partially set-off with loans from a related party
of RMB89,740,000 and promissory notes of
RMB92,500,000 (Note 23)

. Addition of right-of-use assets of RMB5,029,000
(Note 24)

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

33 BaRERME (&)

(c)

F(EERS
BHE_Z—hAF+-_A=+—HIt
FE FEHRERXHA:

e FHKEVE BEIZED
TE A FRIE A R #1,770,0007T
(FfF5E9)

o  FHRWE—TEHBARMTER
IE A R #3,000,0007T (H
519)

o  BTAMREFCHWEABSHE
A R%89,740,0007T LA K 7
HEE ARY¥92,500,0007T F
UABB > 4 8H (PR EE23)

e HEIMFHAEEEARIE
5,029,0007T ( Fff5E24)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)

(d)

Net debt reconciliation

The following section sets out an analysis of net debt

and the movements in net debt for each of the years

33 BHEaRERMHE (&)

(d) EHFEYHRER

AT &#INEBFRDOM KT 2IF

EEEFENR -

presented.

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Net debt B FE ARET T AREF T

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15) HekReEBEEER
(MI5E15) 9,753 33,880
Bank borrowings RITHERK (4,640) (6,877)
Other borrowing H b g K (1,590) (1,500)
Promissory notes A HEE - (81,552)
Loans from a related party R 5 & X - (87,132)
Convertible bonds Al I 18 & (150,669) =
Lease liabilities HEAE (12,225) =
Net debt (E R (159,371) (143,181)
THFERERAT
—E-NFFH}
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)

(d)

33 BaRERME (&)

Net debt reconciliation (Continued) (d) EXEFEHEK(E)
Cash Loans from
and cash Bank Other  Promissory  arelated  Convertible Lease
equivalents  borrowing  borrowing notes party bond liabilities Total
ReRBE
SEER iEiE g REIRE BRAGR  TARES AERE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Net debt as at 1 January 2018~ R=ZF-\£—F—H
HEKEE 60,178 (9,113) - - - - - 51,065
Cash flows Reng (27,875) 2236 (1,500 (70,598) (80,113) - - (177.850)
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ NEE 1577 - - (5,859) (4,958) = = (9.239)
Other non-cash movements AR EY - - - (5,096) (2,061) = = (7.157)
Net debt as at 31 December 2018 K=F—/\F
tZA=1-A
KR 33,880 (6,877) (1,500) (81,552) (87,132) - - (143181)
Net debtas at 1 January 2019 R=E-15-F-R
BT 33,880 (6,877) (1,500) (81,552) (87,132) - - (143,181)
Cash flows Reng (24,136) 237 - - (2,564) (33,510) 7944 (50,029)
Non-cash movements: FReEY:
Initial adoption of IFRS16 NS EMERN RS
(Note 2.2) RHF16% (Hz2.2) - - - - - - (14,476) (14,476)
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ JMEZE 9 - - 1,207 12771 - (43) 2450
Other non-cash movements LY = - (90) 80,345 88,419 (117,159) (5,650) 45,865
Net debt as at 31 December 2019 R=Z—1LE
+ZA=t-H
HERTE 9,753 (4,640) (1,590) = - (150,669) (12,225) (159,371)

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 COMMITMENTS

(a)

Operating Lease commitments — as a lessee

The Group leases various land and properties under
non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The
operating lease commitment as at 31 December 2019
presented below represents the future aggregate
minimum lease payments for the leases with lease
terms less than one year and low value leases. The
remaining leases have been recorded as lease liabilities
as at 31 December 2019 under newly adopted
accounting standard IFRS 16 (Note 2.2). The operating
lease commitment as at 31 December 2018 presented
below represents the future aggregate minimum lease

payments under all non-cancellable operating leases.

SO MR

34 i

(o) REHERE-FREABEA
AEBERBTAIMELEHE W
& HERELHRYE - TXHT

Z-NFT_A=T—H2Z&E
HEAEZEHERER —FNHE
REBEHRENAEKEHEENK
B RBIIM RN g5 E R
BRE SRS ERE165 - HRTHE
ERZZE—NF+-A=+—HA
%EMFE.V\L(MMIZZ)‘FK%

E-N\FF+_A=F+—HZE
EHERERAAE AT HELEM
EETZHAEREHAENKREE-

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-NF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARMT T ARETF T

Not later than 1 year —FENUT 51 5,232
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 —FUAERAFNUT

years - 3,870

51 9,102

Provision for an onerous operating lease of
RMB2,902,000 (Note 20) as at 31 December 2018
is made for the abovementioned operating lease
commitments. Provision for the onerous operating
lease contract has been adjusted to set-off the carrying
amount of right-of-use asset upon adoption of IFRS 16

on 1 January 2019.

RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H 'K
%@%iL%aﬂ EREELER
M= ERME AK®2,902,0007T
(M3E20) - EBEHEMEEHRES OB
BEERAE UEER T —NF
— A —BERMBIR MBS HREERIE
165k L AR & & 2 BREME

THERERA A
—E-NFER

g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

34 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments — as a lessor

The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under

34 %4E (#&)

(b) EEREERE-FREEA
THREEEHENHRFERE

non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: BT
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T ARBT T
Not later than 1 year 2,000 2,000

Later than 1 year and not later than —FUERFEFNAT
5 years 4,000 6,000
6,000 8,000
(c) Capital commitments (c) BEXREE

Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the

RBEEHPREFTHERERSAE

end of the reporting period but not recognised as ZERERNAZNOT :
liabilities is as follows:
2019 2018
ZE-NF —ZT—N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREF T
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB kEE 4,266 7,930

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements,
parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating
decisions, or vice versa. Related parties may be individuals
(being members of key management personnel, significant
shareholders and/or their close family members) or other
entities and include entities which are under the significant
influence of related parties of the Group where those parties
are individuals. Parties are also considered to be related if

they are subject to common control.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the related
party transactions were carried out in the normal course
of business and at terms mutually negotiated between the

Group and the respective related parties.

SO MR

35 MEALRS

IREEHHBHRRME  HRALHRE
NEARBIEHH B REERRBER
FREUAARNEEBMNEATE (R 2T
R) BRATERBREAREBRE-
EATAUSEA(NEEEEAR
TERRRE IEENEAR)AEMBE
B-MAKENBEALBEA  RIEE
Aiﬁ BRRXINBEEATEATENE

BB ERXBIARES - IR A
%%@ AE-e

ARAEZRR REBEALRZRZ TN
BREGEETHEBRASEEASHEA

THEEEOGRTET



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a) The directors of the Company are of the view that the (a)
following companies/individuals were related parties
that had transactions or balances with the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2019:

35 MEALXRE (&)

ERRAEBEERR UTRAEA
BRBE_T-NF+-_A=1—
BUEFERNEAKEETR S HF
BRgpHBEAL:

Name Relationship with the Group

‘B A BEAEEER

Mr. Chen Zhi Executive director of the Company/Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ") of the Group (Note a)

BREZE ARBATES AEETHRAH (HFa)

Mr. Tsui Yiu Ming, Siuming

RIBAA (BI& - R/NB) KA
Ms. Zheng Shou Ling

Brie t+

Fujian ShiFang Digital Technology Co., Ltd

BETHBEBRMARAR A

Fujian Lanting Network Technology
Holding Limited Company

BEFEARMKKROBRAR

TopBig International Development Limited

AFEEEZERER QA
Mr. Yu Shi Quan

RAFHESTE

Mr. Chen Wei Dong
BRIZIR K HE

Ms. Chen Min

BREU 2+

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Former Executive director of the Company/
Former Chief Executive Officer (“Former CEQ") of
the Group (Note b)
ARBAATES AEERTHRAR (H3b)
Spouse of the Executive director of the Company/
Chief Executive Office of the Group
ARBATES AEBETRAHOESE
Controlled by the Executive director of the Group
HARERTEEZES

A significant shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group

REBE—RHfBARNEZRRE

A company controlled by the Executive Director of
the Company

HARBRITEEZEH N —FEAA

Executive director of the Company/Chief Financial
Officer of the Group

ARBRTESE HAEEERFEVBE

Non-executive director of the Company

ARFERITESR

Non-executive director of the Company

ARBFATES



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

The directors of the Company are of the view that the
following companies/individuals were related parties
that had transactions or balances with the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2019: (Continued)

SO MR

35 MEALXRE (&)

() AAFEERAE UTAT/EA
ARBE_T-—NE+-_A=+—
BiltEENAEREERTSRE
BEBOEEAL: (&)

Name Relationship with the Group

HB A BEAEEER

Liaoning Baixin Media Company Limited A significant shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group
EEAEEREERAA AEE-—RNBARNEEZRR

Ms. Chan Ching Yi Key management of the Group

BREHE L AEEXZERBAR

Ms. Chen Xiao Min Key management of the Group

R/ AEEBXT2EREAER

Mr. Zheng Bo Ling Key management of the Group

At £ AEEXTZERAR

Mr. Cai Jian Quan Independent non-executive director of the Company
BEEEL RRARBIULIFEATES

Mr. Zhou Chang Ren Independent non-executive director of the Company
RE&EkE RABBIYIFATES

Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry Independent non-executive director of the Company
=P XL RRABBYLIFATES

Mr. Chen Ye Son of Mr Chen Zhi, Executive director of the Company/

Chief Executive Officer of the Group
R 5 A ARABNTESR AEBTHRAERESEZF

The above names of certain related parties companies
represented the best effort by management of the
Company in translating their Chinese names as they do

not have official English names.

Notes:

(@)  Appointed as CEO of the Company on 9 October 2019

(b)  Resigned as CEO of the Company on 9 October 2019

FIETFRAEAL RANEXS
BWARARREEBAERXHHEE
hBEmRE RAREHEALS

PNGIRIZ: T Sy
fi s
(0 R-F-—AF+ANABEEA

RRABITIRAEE
by R-ZTE-AFTAALEBEAR

AT AR AL — B

THFERERAR
—E-NFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

35 MEALXRE (&)

(b) Transactions with related parties: (b) EEREATETHRS:
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the BRI EREME D P EE I -
financial statements, the following transactions were AEBREZE_ZE—NLEF+=A
undertaken by the Group with related parties during =T —HIEFEEBFEATHETN

the year ended 31 December 2019: Ik

2019 2018
ZE-NF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AR¥T T
Key management compensation FEEFEASF M 8,038 7,990
Lease payment to a related party mM—fEEATHHERS 465 465
8,503 8,455

(c) Balances with related parties (c) EBEATHEENER
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

Amounts due from related parties EWEEALTRIE

- non-trade -*E3
A non-controlling shareholder of AEBNERRH

a subsidiary of the Group FEFE IR AR R
Key management of the Group AEBFEERASR
Directors of the Group rEEES

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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- 470
1,114 300
- 50
1,114 820




35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(c)

Balances with related parties (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the balances are

unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand.

SO MR

35 MEALXRE (&)

(c) HEBEATEENELE (F)
R_E—NFER_ZFT—NF+_A
=+—H #&HAEERRF 28 KA

SR -

2019 2018
—EB-NF g AN
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Amounts due to directors: ERESRE:
Mr. Chen Zhi RERE 3,631 9
Mr. Tsui Yiu Ming Siuming RIBEASE A - 263
Mr. Yu Shi Quan RIS E 1,376 -
Ms. Chen Min BRE 2 £ 30 -
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry =ML AE 30 -
Mr. Cai Jian Quan BERELAE 30 -
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren AEfCfaE 30 =
Mr. Chen Wei Dong PRIZER £ 4 30 -
5,157 272
Amounts due to related parties: ERBEALTRE:
Liaoning Baixin Media Company Limited HZEH{ZEEARE QA 127 127
Ms. Zheng Shou Ling <P 22 - 229 229
Fujian Lanting Network Technology 18 P2 RS E A S B IR
Holding Limited Company AR AR
1,030 =
Mr. Chen Ye B feE 55 A 3,930 -
10,473 628
THERERAD A
—T-NEFER
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c) Balances with related parties (Continued)
The balance due to a non-controlling shareholder is
unsecured, interest-free, with no fixed repayment term
and repayable upon mutual agreement between the
Group and the directors and related parties.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

35 MEALXRE (&)

c) HEAEALFANGS (&)
N — BRI BR M SR A EE
2B RYEETERDY  WAR
AEBREZNFEEALTHEER

2 fkh yoo
mEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZET-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AR T T
Loan from a related party — non-trade BB A ER—FE S
(non-current portion) (SEENERZ &)
A company controlled by Mr. Chen Zhi ~ HBREEEEH B —B A F] - 87,132

The balances are unsecured, carried interest rate at 5%
per annum, and are repayable in two years from the
drawdown date. The loans has been fully repaid on 23
April 2019 upon issuance of the convertible bonds.

As disclosed in note 23, as at 31 December 2019,
the carrying amount of the liability portion of the
Convertible Bonds issued to Top Big International
Development Limited, a company controlled by Mr.
Chen Zhi, is RMB150,669,000 (2018: Nil) with an
outstanding principal amount of RMB177,309,000
(2018: Nil).

36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 37 "Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” to determine
when should contingent liabilities be recognised, which
requires significant judgement.

A contingent liability will be disclosed when a possible
obligation has arisen, but its existence has to be confirmed
by future events outside the Group’s control, or when it
is not possible to calculate the amount. Realisation of any
contingent liabilities not currently recognised or disclosed
could have a material impact on the Group’s financial
position.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

The Group reviews for any significant outstanding litigations
in order to assess the need for provisions. Among the factors
considered are the nature of the litigation, legal processes
and potential level of damages, the opinions and views
of the legal counsel, and the management’s intentions to
respond to the litigations. To the extent the estimates and
judgements do not reflect the actual outcome, this could
materially affect the results for the year and the financial

position.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had no

material contingent liabilities.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In early 2020, after the rapid outbreak of Coronavirus
Disease 2019 (“COVID-19 outbreak”),

precautionary and control measures have been and

a series of

continued to be implemented across mainland China,
including postponement of work resumption after the
Chinese New Year holiday in some regions, certain
level of restrictions and controls over the travelling of
people and traffic arrangements, quarantine of certain
residents, heightening of hygiene and epidemic prevention
requirements and encouraged social distancing, etc. Such
precautionary and control measures is causing short-
term disruption to the Group's tourism and integrated
developments, whereas the Group’s advertising and
marketing related services is also affected by the poor
consumer sentiment caused by the epidemic. If the present
situation in respect of the COVID-19 outbreak continued
and the restrictions and control measures are prolonged,
the Group’s operation performance and cash flow may be

negatively affected.

36

37

SO MR

HERE (&)
AEESRMERMEANFIRFD - AT
HEREREMREREB IERNEARE
IR ANMEE BEREERREF IE
FKFE EREBROER MR B NEE
JE ¥ Bl FE SR aRH) B ) o M fh AT R AR T BE
RREEER AIRREREXEFAXSE
K BT AR ©

R-B-NFR-_F-NF+-A=1+—
B AEEYESAKARAE-

HHEEE
NR-B-TE R-T—LEHEEM
RERRIEE ([COVID-19185 )& -
BIAEEARBREBEN2BEE -
BB 1R e - BLAESE R 204 [ A AR B
FREEAMNEIRSR HABHITERA
BRTHERE TEEORKET R
BXOER ReEEERGEERREED
MR ZEH RGBSR A BNK
BREGEEERCITE  MASEN
B K& HEERE T B BER AR
SSHBEIEE X E - ME RICOVID-19
IR BB LA IR Il e B 5 e AT
RER AEENLERBRREREY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R IR MR

38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 38 ARAIMNEEEBRRRERS
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 1)

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-)N\F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

P = ARBTR AR T

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB R ARIEE 18 137,417 223,340
137,417 223,340
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TE A FRIE R H At
JE U5 5k IE 192 118
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Y BT /B8 A B) XA 142,847 110,932
Amount due from a director Bl — R EEFRIB - 50
Cash and cash equivalents RehReEEIEE 33 1,795
143,072 112,895
Total assets HwWEE 280,489 336,235
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to AREEEAEGER
owners of the Company
Share capital fi& 75 6,402 191,994
Share premium AR 1 5 (B 36,376 851,682
Other reserves B a 189,799 =
Accumulated deficits RETEA a (117,035) (879,128)
Total equity B 115,542 164,548

242 SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E R

38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

38 ARNFAMEERERKRERESE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
Note RMB’‘000 RMB'000
B o ARET T AREF T
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Convertible bonds Al #Af% (& 5 150,669 =
Promissory notes B EE - 81,552
Loans from a related party BB T B K - 87,132
Lease liabilities HEAaE 3,074 =
153,743 168,684
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables b fE N FRIR 7,661 2,635
Amounts due to directors BN EERIE 2,273 =
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE BT B A Bl FRIE 3 139
Amounts due to related parties FET A A 3R 259 229
Lease liabilities HERE 1,008 =
11,204 3,003
Total liabilities wEs 164,947 171,687
Total equity and liabilities EERAEAHE 280,489 336,235

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the

Board of Directors on 7 May 2020 and was signed on its

behalf:

Chen Zhi
BR &

ARAMEERBEREESFEN T
EERALBEHE YR TIHEERKRE

EERE:

Yu Shi Quan
R

Director

EF

Director

EF

THERARDA

—E—NF

F R

iy



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 38 AR EEEBERERES
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY B (4&)
(Continued)
Note a: Reserve movement of the Company MisEa : AR &) AR 2
Accumulated Other
deficits reserves
E= g H itk
RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETTT ARBET T
At 1 January 2018 R=ZZT—-N\F—H—H (724,456) (7,063)
Changes in accounting policies EETHREE) (7,063) 7,063
Restated equity as at 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\E—H—H
KEY (731,519) -
Loss for the year FANEIE (147,609) =
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZZT—\F+ZA=+—H
M—Z-NF—H—H (879,128) -
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.2(b)) EETER 2 28 (Mi5E2.2(b) (192) -
Restated equity as at 1 January 2019 RZZT—-NF—H—H
KEY = (879,320) -
Loss for the year FREE (121,311) =
Capital reorganisation [ NE ] 883,596 155,281
Equity component of convertible bonds BETAIMRKRES ST D
issued, net of transaction costs R 5 KA = 42,002
Conversion of convertible bonds i A MmRES = (7,484)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NAF+=ZA=+—H (117,035) 189,799
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of every directors and the chief

executive is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2019:

SO MR

30 EENmRER (FE (A H
B (58622F) 58383k
QR (HBEESNDER) RO
(B622CE)REBLETRAY
RERNKE)

(A) EBSRTHREARNMS
BEE RITHAEZ R B 550
T

BEE-_F-NFt+=-A=+—H
EEE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:
REAZE (FRRALAZENELR) ESHRANBEDADEUHME:

Discretionary

Fees Salary bonuses

Name 21 e #é LA
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect

of director's

other services

Remunerations  in connection

paid or with the

Employer's receivable  management

Estimated contributionto inrespectof of the affairs

money a retirement accepting  of the company

Housing value of benefit office as or its subsidiary
allowance  other benefits scheme director undertaking Total

HES

EBEE

LV

HHEAT

REREE  ERARMN

BRI BHER BfiBf% HtBREEANE
AERE  AHEMEE HENEIHR UG LG #it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMBT T ARBT R ARETR ARBT T ARBTR ARETR

Executive directors anEs
Mr. Chen Zhi (CEO, Note a) BErE
(TR Mita) 180 1,620 -
Mr. Yu Shiquan RFEEE 180 720 36
Mr. Teui Yiu Ming Siuming RiEH (Rl%: %0 8)
(Former CEO, Note b) ®& (FRGE-
Kib) 157 2,203 -
Non-executive directors F4nEs
Mr. Chen Wei Dong REREE 120 - -
Ms. Chen Min Raxt 120 - -
Independent and BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren AECEE 120 - -
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry ERREE 120 - -
Mr. Cai Jianguan ERLE 120 - -

- - - - - 1,800
- = 1 - = w7

= = 118 = = 2478

- - - - - 120
. - - . = 120

- - - - - 120
- = - - = 120
- - - - - 120
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOF IR

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION

383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES

ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES

(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(Continued)

(A)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018:

30 EERNmkER (FE (AF
HRGI) (5E622%F) E3831H%

QF (HEBEESNZER) RE
(8622CE)REEBEHRAY
RENKE) (&)

(A)

EERTHRARN#ME (&)

BE-Z-N\Ft+ZA=1t—

AIEFE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:

SEARE (FRRARAGENBAR) ERMRANBHE A RBARME :

Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
Remunerations  in connection
paid or with the
receivable management
Employer's inrespect of  of the affairs of
Estimated  contribution to accepting the company
Discretionary Housing  money value of a retirement office  orits subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits  benefit scheme as director undertaking Total
HEF
HBER
VNG
EWBAR
AEREE  EBARHN
Hip R EiRER BUEME EHBHEMS
Name i e He R EREE  REEMEE AHOEIER LB GE] Gl it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AREBTFT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT
Executive directors HirES
Mr. Chen Zhi (CEO, Note ) REiE
(T Mia) 180 1,620 - - - - - - 1,800
Mr. Yu Shiquan RFEEE 180 720 - - 36 8 - - 944
Mr. Teui Yiu Ming Siuming IR (BI4&: f0)
(Former CEO, Note b) A (RTRER .
Htith) 217 2817 = = = 165 - - 3,199
Non-executive directors FAES
Mr. Chen Wei Dong REREE 120 - - - - - - - 120
Ms. Chen Min Reat 120 - - - - - - - 120
Independent and BUkanES
non-executive directors
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren EEfas:2 120 - - - - - - - 120
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry ERREE 120 - - - - - - 120
Mr. Cai Jianquan BRiErs 120 - - - - - - - 120
Notes: Bt o
(a)  Appointed as CEO of the Company on 9 October 2019 (@ RZZE-NFT+ANBEZER
RN BITBAEE

(b)  Resigned as CEO of the Company on 9 October 2019

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(Continued)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any

retirement benefits during the year (2018: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any

termination benefits during the year (2018: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third parties

for making available directors’ services (2018: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

Save as disclosed in note 35, there is no other loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour
of directors, bodies corporate controlled by and entities
connected with all directors of the Company as at 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil).

SO MR

30 EERNmRER (FE (AF
B (58622F) 58383k
DNF (RBEESNZEH) A5
(B622CE)REBLETRAY
RENKE) (&)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

EERAKER
FA-BEEECKRKBKERE
RKREN(ZF—N\FE)-

ESRLERERN
FA-HEEEC WK KRR
EAREEREEN(ZF—\F:
&) -

RREHESRBEAE=FXM
HRE
RBE_FT-NAF+_A=1—
BILEFE ARrERREHRES
RBAEFAE=TXNRE(=F
—\F ) e

FHRUES ZZRSESEHN
FABERRZEEENRER

BEASBEANER EERRH
BRI E3SABEEEN R_F—N
FH+-A=+—RH HMEFHENE
E-RARBABESZEHAEA
BERANFMEESNHEEER
REBANEMER EERRE
MRXBLHE(ZF—NF &) -

THERARDF
—E-NFFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(Continued)

(F)

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 35, there is no other
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office (2018: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2019 there was
no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year
(2018: same).

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

309 EENmRER (FE (A H
RG> (58622%F) 58383k
QR (HBEESNTER) R
(B622CGE)REBLETRAY
RENKE) (&)

(F)

EERRS THASHNEK
R
PRSI BEE N RERKEF
P I fa] By ] 3 4 (T (] R AN 2 R 5L AR
SEXBITUMARAETHEE R
FMEAEEARENEARS X
BXanFE-

BE-_T-NAF+-_A=+—HLt
FE ASEBRAAETAESTZN
e ERMAREERRNIMAR
SEENEBNIELRMBMAE (=
T-N\F &)

BHE_ZT-HhEF+-_A=+—H
LHFE BEEENFAREXR
ERECAMESOTH(ZZT—N
F:H8R) -
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